BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS FIRE CHIEF

Kitty Jung, Chair Charles A. Moore

Bob Lucey, Vice-Chair

Marsha Berkbigler

Vaughn Hartung DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

Jeanne Herman David Watts-Vial

WASHOE COUNTY, NV

FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

Notice of Meeting and Agenda

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

9:00 a.m.
Tuesday, December 13, 2016
Washoe County Health District Board Room, Bldg. B
1001 E. Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada

NOTE: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; combined with other items; removed from the agenda;
moved to the agenda of another meeting; moved to or from the Consent section; or may be voted on in a block. Items
with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.

The Washoe County Health District Board Room is accessible to the disabled. If you require special arrangements for
the meeting, call the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Office, 326-6000, 24-hours prior to the meeting.

Time Limits. Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters, whether listed on
the agenda or not, and are limited to three minutes per person. Additionally, public comment of three minutes per
person will be heard during individual action items on the agenda. Persons are invited to submit comments in writing
on the agenda items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting. Persons may not allocate
unused time to other speakers.

Forum Restrictions and Orderly Conduct of Business. The Board conducts the business of the District and its
citizens during its meetings. The presiding officer may order the removal of any person whose statement or other
conduct disrupts the orderly, efficient or safe conduct of the meeting. Warnings against disruptive comments or
behavior may or may not be given prior to removal. The viewpoint of a speaker will not be restricted, but reasonable
restrictions may be imposed upon the time, place and manner of speech. Irrelevant and unduly repetitious statements
and personal attacks which antagonize or incite others are examples of speech that may be reasonably limited.

Responses to Public Comments. The Board can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an
agenda properly posted prior to the meeting. During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed
or not listed on the published agenda. The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public
comments by the Board. However, responses from Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become
deliberation on a matter without notice to the public. On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has
notice of all matters the Board will consider, the Board members may choose not to respond to public comments,
except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda. The
Board may do this either during the public comment item or during the following item: “*Commissioners’/Chief’s
Announcements, Requests for Information, Topics for Future Agendas and Statements Relating to Items Not on the
Agenda”.




TMFPD BOFC Agenda, Dec 13, 2016
Page 2 of 2

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, the Agenda for the Board of Fire Commissioner Meetings has been posted at the following
locations: Washoe County Administration Building (1001 E. 9" Street, Bldg. A), Washoe County Courthouse-
District Court Administrator/Clerk of Court (75 Court Street), Washoe County Downtown Library (301 South Center
Street) and Sparks Justice Court (1675 East Prater Way) and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s website at
www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd

Support documentation for the items on the agenda, provided to the Board of Fire Commissioners is available
to members of the public at the District’s Admin Office (1001 E. 9th Street, Bldg. D, 2" Floor, Reno,
Nevada) Sandy Francis, Administrative Assistant I, phone (775) 328-6124 and on the Truckee Meadows
Fire Protection District’s website at www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd ; and https://notice.nv.gov.

All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible
action” were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item
for which no action will be taken.

9:00 am *1. Salute to the Flag
*2. Call to order/roll call

*3.  Public Comment - Comment heard under this item will be limited to three minutes per
person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of Fire Commissioners
agenda. The District will also hear public comment during individual action items, with
comment limited to three minutes per person. Comments are to be made to the Board of
Fire Commissioners as a whole.

4. Consent Items:

A. Approval of minutes from the November 15 2016 meeting.

B. Accept a personal monetary donation in the amount of $900 from Vaughn
Hartung in support of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s inaugural
firefighter recognition event and to express appreciation for the thoughtful
contribution.

C. Approve a change of the third party administrator for the Districts Health Savings
account and flexible Benefit Plan, from Discovery Benefits to American Fidelity
for the 2017 Health Benefits Program for District employees.

*5. Presentation — EMS Advisory Board update presented by Christina Conti

6. Review and acceptance of the Sierra Fire Protection District’s Audited Financial
Statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016.

7. Review and acceptance of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s Audited
Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016.

*8. Commissioners’/Fire Chief’s announcements, requests for information, topics for future
agendas, and statements relating to items not on the Agenda. (No discussion among
Commissioners will take place on this item).

*9. Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited to three minutes per
person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board of Fire Commissioners
agenda. The District will also hear public comment during individual action items, with
comment limited to three minutes per person. Comments are to be made to the Board of
Fire Commissioners as a whole.

Adjournment


http://www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd
http://www.washoecounty.us/tmfpd
https://notice.nv.gov/

$Q°*EE...@%O&
SIS TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

= .
TWABHOR COUNTY, NV
STAFF REPORT e cior U
Board Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 Finance \Q
Legal \
Risk Mgt.

DATE: November 30, 2016 HR S
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Phone: (775) 328-6123 Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Accept a personal monetary donation in the amount of $900 from Vaughn Hartung in
support of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s inaugural firefighter
recognition event and to express appreciation for the thoughtful contribution. (All
Commission Districts)

SUMMARY

Accept a personal monetary donation in the amount of $900 from Vaughn Hartung in support of the
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s inaugural firefighter recognition event and to express
appreciation for the thoughtful contribution.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities

PREVIOUS ACTION

The Board has accepted monetary donations from citizens for various purposes.

BACKGROUND

On Friday, November 4, 2016 Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District held a Firefighter Recognition
and Appreciation Event. Mr. Hartung desires to donate $900.00 to pay for gift cards presented to Staff
and Volunteers in association with an award.

FISCAL IMPACT

The monetary donation will be deposited into the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District account
within the operational budget to purchase gift cards.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board accept a personal monetary donation in the amount of $900 from
Vaughn Hartung in support of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s inaugural firefighter
recognition event and to express appreciation for the thoughtful contribution.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’ recommendation, a possible motion could be:

“I move to accept a personal monetary donation in the amount of $900 from Vaughn Hartung in support
of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s inaugural firefighter recognition event and to
express appreciation for the thoughtful contribution.”

AGENDA ITEM # 4B



CMARMOE COUMTY, NN

PROY'{-T’II’T’;IUIIY.IL‘.I 'v\‘
Fire Chivz:foN
STAFF REPORT Fll&ﬂgie
Board Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 Risk Mgt.‘

HR{
DATE: November 30, 2016
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

Telephone: (775) 328-6123, Email: cmoore@tmfpd.us

SUBJECT: Approve a change of the third party administrator for the Districts Health Savings
account and flexible Benefit Plan, from Discovery Benefits to American Fidelity for the
2017 Health Benefits Program for District employees. (All Commission Districts)

SUMMARY

Staff is recommending Board of Fire Commissioners approve a change of the third party administrator
for a the Districts Health Savings account (HSA) and flexible Benefit Plan (FSA), from Discovery
Benefits to American Fidelity for the 2017 Health Benefits Program for District employees.

Strategic Outcome supported by this item: Sustainability of our financial, social, and natural
resources.

PREVIOUS ACTION

On November 15, 2016, the Board approved the 2017 Health Benefits Program for District employees,
dependents and retirees at an estimated annual cost of $1,691,633.

BACKGROUND

Upon completing the account set up with Discovery Benefits, they required an automatic deduction from the
Districts Accounts to fund the HSA for our employees. As this is not common practice for the District, an
inquiry was made to our Broker, LP Insurance to solicit bids from other third party health benefit
administrators with like products and minimal cost increases. Since employees already have some voluntary
supplemental benefit plans through American Fidelity and they submitted a proposal at or below the cost of
Discovery Benefits, the District is seeking approval to change our HSA and FSA Vendor to American
Fidelity.

Health Saving Account

The District proposes to change from Discovery Benefits to American Fidelity as the third party
administrator for the HSA, and will contribute biannually the Cost difference between the PPO and the
HDHP minus any administration fees to a HSA in the employee’s name

Flexible Benefit Plan (Section 125)
The District proposed to change from Discovery Benefits to American Fidelity as the administrator of
the Flexible Benefit Plan providing employees the ability to direct a part of their pay, on a pre-tax basis

AGENDA ITEM #4C



BOFC Meeting December 13, 2016
Page 2 of 2

into a special account that can be used to reimburse them for dependent day care and/or unreimbursed
medical expenses.
FISCAL IMPACT

Funding for the Health Benefits Program was approved on November 15, 2016; this change will not
incur any additional cost to the District.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Fire Commissioners approve a change of the third party
administrator for the Districts Health Savings account and flexible Benefit Plan, from Discovery
Benefits to American Fidelity for the 2017 Health Benefits Program for District employees.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be:

“Move to approve a change of the third party administrator for the Districts Health Savings account
and flexible Benefit Plan, from Discovery Benefits to American Fidelity for the 2017 Health Benefits
Program for District employees.”



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

Angela Kyle, Nevada State Manager
775-829-1313
angela.kyle @americanfidelity.com

Administered and Managed by: Marketed by:
American Fidelity AMERICAN FIDELITY |
Health Services Administration "' a different opinion

a different opinion

SB-25514-0915 Confidential and Proprietary. Copyright 2016 American Fidelity Assurance Company.



SB-25514-0915

American Fidelity Health Services Administration, L.L.C. (AFHSA) is proud to be an affiliate
of American Fidelity Corporation (AFC). American Fidelity Assurance Company (AFA), also
an affiliate of AFC, is a family-owned organization with a 50-year history of providing its
customers with sound financial security solutions. AFHSA is proud of our association with
AFA, one of the top-rated insurance companies in the nation.

Why choose American Fidelity Health Services Administration (AFHSA)

AFHSA has been an independent HSA provider since 2005. Our independence means that,
unlike other HSA trustees that are integrated with the major medical plan, we give you
more flexibility to make changes to your major medical plan insurer or administrator without
the need to change HSA providers and affect your employees’ HSAs. Additionally, AFHSA
gives consumers the opportunity to drive their health care decisions and provide the tools,
resources and services valued by those taking advantage of what an HSA has to offer.

Adept in the world of HSAs and their relationship with a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP),
we provide every customer personal attention and a wealth of options to meet individual
needs. Easy 24-hour online access and investment opportunities that fit your requirements,
we believe makes AFHSA the right choice.

Proud of our association, AFHSA is an affiliate of AFA. A third-generation, family-owned
organization, AFA provides insurance products and financial services to education
employees, trade association members, and companies throughout the United States and
across the globe.

HSA and Section 125 Plans

An HSA can be offered easily under your existing Section 125 Plan — along with a qualified
High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP), making it a great fit for your existing benefit package.

By placing the HSA under your Section 125 Plan, you are allowing your employees to payroll
deduct a monthly tax-free contribution. This automatic deduction is typically preferred to
depositing amounts directly into the HSA because it is more convenient, the deductions are
exempt from employment taxes, and the employee will not have to file for a tax deduction on
their annual return.

Centralized Offering of Basic Account and Investment Options

We offer a central approach where HSA funds are invested in FDIC-insured interest-bearing
accounts. The more that an employee saves in the HSA, the more interest earned. For
current interest rates visit www.afhsa.com.

In addition, your employees will have access to mutual fund investment offerings that cover a
wide range of risk tolerances for balances above the $2,500 required in their cash accounts.
A current listing of funds available can be viewed at www.afhsa.com.



When coupled with your Section 125 Plan, the HSA allows your employees a triple tax
advantage:

e Pre-tax contributions
* Tax-free interest accumulation

* Tax-free distributions for qualified medical expenses

Employee Education

Educating your employees about how an HSA can work for them is important for successful
implementation of a high deductible health plan paired with an HSA. Especially when
coordinating with the FSA unreimbursed medical, if currently offered, as proper coordination
is needed to ensure employees meet the eligibility requirements to contribute to an HSA. We
work with you on deciding what avenue is best for your employees. We can provide employee
workshops, marketing materials, as well as talking with them via telephone or email. We offer
HSA educational information on our website, www.afhsa.com.

Enroliment

Your AFA Representative will work with you on how to best enroil your employees in the HSA
during your open enroliment. This will help ensure the proper coordination with your qualified
HDHP and your Health Flexible Spending Account Plan (Health FSA). Your representative will
also work with you on how to best enroll any new employee you hire after open enroliment.

Customer Service

Our experienced staff is available to answer questions that you or your employees may have
during business hours (Monday through Friday, 7am — 6pm Central Time). We do not have an
automated voice response system because we want to answer your questions personally.

Our team of specialized individuals are dedicated to serving you and your employees.
Our team of HSA professionals allows us to provide the best service possible. Our staff is
committed to providing:

* Personal Service — Your employees can expect to speak with a familiar person when
they call, which helps build lasting relationships.

* Quick Response — We strive to return emails and phone calls within 24 hours.

* Advice on All Accounts — Our staff regularly communicates with each other to know
what is going on with our customers. If for some reason the person your employee
contacts is unavailable, you can trust that any other team member will be able to help.

AFHSA is dedicated to serving our customers and their investments with the respect they
deserve.

SB-25514-0915



SB-25514-0915

AFHSA WILL PROVIDE

Account Access

Since the HSA money is the employees’ money, accessing those funds should be easy.
We offer several ways for them to access their money. They can choose the way that
best suits them!

e Debit Card — Use the debit card at different vendors, for example a doctor’s office or
pharmacy, to get immediate access to HSA funds for qualified medical expenses.

¢ Online Account — Distributions can be requested online either before or after an
expense has been incurred. Distributions can be received via check by mail or by
direct deposit to an account chosen by your employee. Distributions can also be
sent directly to doctor’s offices, dentist’s offices, etc. via our new “pay someone else”
feature.

¢ Distribution Request Form —A distribution form can be filled out and printed from our
website. Once completed, your employee can either fax or mail the form in to receive
a distribution via check.

These three avenues give your employees different options when they are trying to decide
when and how to access their HSA funds. Unlike traditional bank accounts, your employees
will not need to order and keep track of checks. When they are ready to take a distribution of
funds from their accounts, it is quick and easy, just like it should be.

Billing

Unlike flexible spending accounts, employees can change their HSA contribution amount
monthly. To help you with processing your employee’s HSA contributions, you can request
that a monthly bill is sent to you.You can simply make changes to your employee’s
contributions on your bill and send to us by email. We will then process your request once
received. A new bill with the updated information will be sent to you the following month.

Secured Website

Our website, www.afhsa.com offers your employees a quick and easy way to navigate to
administrative forms, quick reference guides, as well as allow them access to their secured
online accounts.

The website offers different educational items including a slideshow for both you, the
employer, and account holders. You can refer your employees to our website to go through the
slide show to help them gain an understanding of an HSA.

All account maintenance forms are available on our website in the Forms and Information
section. Your employees can utilize this section of the website when they need to conduct a
name or address change, a distribution request, or an investment funds transfer.



Online account access offers an array of possibilities. The website’s functionality helps your
employees get the most out of their HSAs by giving them the following items:
e Balance Information — Get year to date balance information, current balance, etc.

* Distribution Requests — Request distribution via direct deposit or check. Change
direct deposit information.

¢ Access 24/7 — Access your account 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

* Recent Transactions — Not only can recent transactions be viewed on the home
screen, but all transactions can be viewed on the Account Activity page.

* Upload Receipts — Your employees can upload receipts to their online account to
avoid possibility of damage or fading.

Our goal is to make HSA administration as easy as possible. We do this by having items that
are simple to access right at your fingertips.

Independence

AFHSA will be your administrator regardless of which medical insurance provider you

use. Like many employers, you may change insurance providers every 3 - 4 years. If you
coordinate your HSA with your health care provider, you will probably be required to change
HSA providers as well. Why change HSA providers when your employees have built up
savings?

Changing HSA providers may require educating your employees on a number of things
including:

*  What to do with their HSA funds

¢ How to manage two HSAs

* How to transfer funds

Keeping your HSA with AFHSA could avoid additional paperwork and signatures which
means less work.

SB-25514-0915



SB-25514-0915

FEE STRUCTURE

We handle the majority of account administration at no charge to you or your employees.
Certain non-routine activities such as manual distributions, stop payment fees, and
researching fees may incur an additional fee if applicable. See www.afhsa.com for a full

listing of miscellaneous fees.

* We do not allow accounts to be overdrawn. If the money is not there, the debit
card transaction or the distribution request will be declined. With many banks, if the
money is not there, the charge will be paid for you but you will also be charged an
overdraft fee. Overdraft fees normally are charged on a per item basis, which can add
up very quickly. On rare occasions, a vendor might process a force post causing the
participant’'s HSA to have a negative balance. We do not charge a fee for this and

work closely with the participant to resolve the issue.

e There are no trade fees specific to HSAs. Employees can choose to move their HSA
funds to our wide variety of investment options. Occasionally, there may be a fee

associated with a specific mutual fund.

* There is no need to order checks, which can be lost or have to be re-ordered due
to changing an address, phone number, ¢tc. The HSA can be accessed online and
unlimited online distributions can be made free of charge. Employees can request a
check to be mailed to them or they can receive direct deposit to an account of their

choice for a miscellaneous fee per transaction.

Having an HSA with AFHSA allows employees access to a knowledgeable staff that they

demand.

Service AFHSA

Set-up Fee

No Charge

Monthly Maintenance Fee*, including...

No Charge

2 debit cards

e Account Statement Mailed Quarterly

*  Unlimited on-line withdrawals 24/7

* Receipt Upload functionality

e Account Holder decides when to be reimbursed
¢ No overdraft fee

¢ Personalized customer service




Fee Structure, cont.

Miscellaneous Fees (if applicable, per transaction)
Service AFHSA

Miscellaneous Fees (per transaction)

e Manual Distribution (On-line distributions are no charge) $10.00

* Additional / Replacement Debit Card (one time charge) $10.00

e Excess Contribution Distribution, Mistaken Distribution $15.00
Return, Reissue of Reimbursement Check, Correct IRS

Filing Fee/Copy
) $25.00
* Rollover/Transfer, Wire Transfer, Account Closure,

Research on Account / Debit Card

Investments** (A current listing of mutual funds can be found at www.afhsa.com)

Service

Set-up (Account base minimum of $2,500) No Additional Charge
Access to investment personnel No Additional Charge
Trading Fees i No Additional Charge

*Monthly maintenance fees will be deducted automatically from your HSA on a monthly basis following set up of the account
and each month thereafter unless otherwise directed by the individual or is paid by a third party. If you signed up for the
Health Savings Account through your employer or major medical plan, the set up fee and/or the monthly maintenance fees
may not apply to your account as long as your employer or plan membership remains the same. Some negotiated services
or obligations may apply. Employees that terminate employment will be required to pay the current fee as outlined on www.
afhsa.com

**AFHSA reserves the right to sell these funds if the base account does not have the funds to cover the monthly maintenance
fee or other transaction fees, $50.00 trade minimum.

AFHSA may change the amount or type of any of the above fees or add additional fees at any time in accordance with the
terms of the Custodial Agreement.

SB-25514-0915(AWD)



10LSI(J YIBIH A1Uno) S0YSBAA
Luoy) Bunsuy)




UIMIDY JOYJBIH — URBIDNSTIRIS o
u0lAR(J uenLIg — I0)RUIpIO0)) Wei3old SINH e

1JU0)) BUNSLIY)) — JoFeur|A WeIZ0Id JYSISIOAQ SINH »



3urzodax pue uonod9[[0d eIep Jo voIsuedxyg e
douewI0}Iad “sA douerduo) .

"STAIA JO judtdAoxdur
pUR JUSWINSBIW “Judwdgeue Y} I0F (JHOM Y} Urgiim
uorouny JYSISIOAO0 SIAH [BUOIZII € PAIRIID JUSWAAITR O], »

suonoIpsunl reonijod Aq paidope 1YIISIOAQD
SINA 10J (V1) JUSWAIT Y [eI0T-IU] — [ ()7 ISN3NY



10LSI YI[BOH AIUN0)) 0YSBA\
pue ‘SIQUOISSTWWO)) AJuno)) Jo preoq Ajuno)) d0YseAp\ I0LISIq
UO01109]01J 9] SMOPRIA 993oni], ‘syredg Jo A1) ‘oudy Jo A1)

S91I0JBUSIS JO Sannp pauad(

we13o1d WYSISIAQ SINH JO sannp paulga(g
wWeI301J JYSISIDAQ SN [BUOISY PAysIqeIsy
preog AIOSIAPY SINH PaysI[qeIsq

WSISIOAQD SINH 10J JUIWIAIFY [0 U]

(HOQA) YesH JO preog 101si( -



(Juoumurodde HOAQ)

— 2AnRIUdSAIdY (1O)) 1wawaAoxdwy Ayjend) snonurjuo)) [eIdsoy
(uaumuroddy HOG(Q) — UBIOISAYJ WOOY AJUSSIOW e
190 O YHESH IOLOSI(T -
J93eURIA AJUNO)) QOYSBA\ o
J93euRN A1) sytedg .
IOZRURIA AJ1D) OUDY
:SIOqUIdW SUTMO[[O] Y} JO PasLIdwod ST pieog AIOSIAPY SINT o



"SQOTAIOS [BOIPIN AoudSiowry Jo judtudAoIdwr Snonuruod
PUE UOIIBNJBAS ‘MITAJI ‘UOTJRUIPIOOI JOJ PAYSI[qeIsd sdnoi3 Sursprom ur
uorjedionred Surpiedal sIouUN0))/Spreog JA1IOASII 0} SUOEPUIWWOIL ST »

“we1301d WYSISIOAQ SN U} JO SUOIIBPUIWIWOI JUWA[AWI 0) SOAINS
"010 ‘s[000301d [eoTpawW ‘spiepuels dduewIOfIod
0} pate[a1 HOE( Y} Jo/pue I90IFO I[BOH 1OLISI(] O} SUOTIBPUSTIUOIAI SOYRIA
"weidoid JYSISIDAQ SINH Yl JO SUOTIBPUIWIOIAI PUR ‘SUOTIBN]RAD
‘s110da1 sMA1AI pue A[1o)renb syoowr preog AIOSIAPY SINH YL o

"WoISAS SINH A3Uuno)) 20ySsep\ Y3 urgiim so1do) juasaid Jo marAdl
JUSLINOUOD 9PIAOId 01 PAYSI[qeISd sem pIeoq AIOSIAPY SINH YL e



wels3odd 3IysisianO SINI

U

pieog AlOoSINPY SINT

I

YileaH jo pJieog 12143510

......

[1IDUNOo)D >u.,.mU ouay




SIAWYSIU0IY
910¢-510¢ Ad

JuowdoaAd(q ueld 0139181S SINH JBIA-G [eUOISIY
O1/11/L0 Ponmugns ‘uoneudisd(] Arunuo)) 9jes LUedH e

ue[d

93Ing [BOIPAJA PIMIIR]S Y} 0] XAUUY [BUOISIY JO JUdWdOo[oAd(J
01/L0 AL ‘S]090301J B3dUI() JO JUAWAO[OAS(]
O1/L(0 2AT}O9IJO ‘UOISIAJIL UR[ JUIPIOU] AJ[ense)-NInjA

01/L0 2A19]J0 ‘dews souoz osuodsal SSIYOURIJ DUBR[AQUIE JO UOISIAY



103y [enuuy
9102-G10¢ Ad




047 0 [BALLIE QUWII} QWIRS »

040’ :PAA[OURD SIPUOASAI [[V o

%1°C :(Pa[[eoued YSINAY) ATUQ 211 -«
%¢ 11 :(pa[[edued a1y) ATUQ VSINAY  »

%¢ '8¢ IS VSINHY -
04 L1 J1SI1J Aoud3e oI

UONRULIOJU] AOUA3Y SUIALILY
SIINUIW 6[:L( -JeALLIe VSINHY <— [[BD [16
SAINUIW SS:9() [BALLIR IOPUOdSIY ISI] QU] «<— [[BD 116 -

SOWIL ], SUOASY UBIPIN o

VSINHY pue moﬂoﬁowm QI1J U99M}9( STTed PAYOIIBIN »
JOTAIAS I0J S[[BO $6T'SY o



N1d 91931V41S viA Il
Sl TUNOID34




pIeOg AIOSIAPY SINH 01 sajepdn Ajxoyen) .
(suorjedTunwIuod oIper) SOYDIM

VSINHY
soAnejuasaIdar Jvsd

SOATIRIUISAIAAI AT ] o

SIOPIOYa LIS UM SSUIIIW ATJIUOJA
syredg Jo A1) ‘[[OISLI(] JOTBURIN o
SUOISSIS FULIOJUdW ATUIUOIA

G107 1sn3ny ‘dnoin) SursjIop, SINA -«

(syeary], 2
‘sontunizodd() ‘sassauyeopy ‘SYISuanNS) sisAreuy LOMS



‘s1opraoad
SINA YHM UOoneIOgR[[0d YSNoay) AJuno) d0YSBA\ JO SIONSIA
pue sassauIsng ‘SUdZId dY) 0} SAJIAIDIS [RIIPIUW AJUSTIOUID
QATIOJJO PpuB JUIIDIGY JO AIDAIPDP 9Y} 9JeUuIpIoOd O],



JUIUIIIE]S UOISIA

"AJTunuwIwod 9y} JO suorje}dadxo a3 SUIPIdIXI
auidipaw [eyrdsoyard paseq-ooudpIAd FuIpraoid aredr)[eay
pajeI3aUI PuUB SUHOIJO JANBIOQR[[0D Y3noiyl dred judned
Airenb g3y apraoid 1M waisAs SINH A1Uno)) d0YSBA\ Y[



QAT}RIOQRI[0))

doueInsSSy JuduAoxduy Ajfen()

JAISUOASIY
[EUOISSQJOI]

9[qBIUNOODY
PIUSLI() OTAIDG JOUWIOISN)

[Npoadsay



9A1193[q0 9y} 2A31YDE 03 SdAIS AU} — SA3IJRIIS
[203 ) SAJIYDIE 0} SJUIWI[D Y} — SIANRI[qQ -

UO0I331 JOJ [B0O3 SUIYIIRIIAO — S[BOL) .



11609

suond(Q uonelrodsuei], JBUINY

S[020)01] B3W()

‘suorydo uorjelrodsuen

pue suondo 901AIRS  ‘S[0o0j0xd  JjeUId)[E  YInoIy)

‘90TAIOS I0J [[ed AU} AQ paurjap se ‘saoialds djeridoidde
gumgojewr Aq S90IN0SAI SN JO UONRZI[IN 90UBYUH



*~Z 1803

JUWAINSBIUI
asuodsaz (suonarpsun( a1ry) [ IO1], SINH UL

SJUOWIAAITY PIV [BINA o

dew asuodsax 9asmyoueIy QURMNAULY

uonezIjnn (10)e307] J[OIYIA dNeWoINY ) TAV e
‘sa10170d 9su0dsai [euoI3aI JO JUWdO[9AdP A1)

pue A3ojouyd9) JO asn aY} Y3noay} sawir) dsuodsar ud)sAs
Suronpar Aq oouewiojrdd SN  [endsoyard saoxduy



8 1803

SO[OTUIA STAH I0J UOTIRZI[BNSIA "TAY

SOBLIUL AVD-0}-AVD -

SUOTBITUNUITIOD OIPRI OUBYUH o

"SQUITIPINSG [BUOIZaI

Jo 1uwdoPAdp Ayl pue A30[0UYII) JO dFesn PIdUBYUD
ysnoay souaed SINH U9M19q suonRITUNWIWO.) dAoxdwy .



11603

viep 1endsoy yim 1odar aouewniofjrod wo)sAs SINH [enuuy .

Junioday a1e)) Juaned dTUONIIH

‘Teydsoy o)

0] QUAJS J) WO SIdJSueI) uorjewIoyul judned 2Insud jey)
$9ss9001d [eUOIZaI YInoIy} aied Jo Apnunuod dAoxdwy .



"~ g 1809

$59201d JudwWAOCIdWI SNONUIIUOD [BUOISIY

$[020301d [BUOIZIY

doueInsse Ajifenb pue sj000301d [BUOISAI JATIOALD
ysnoay) waIsAs asuodsor QINH poouequo ue u3iso(g e



91809

(pIeOg 99SIYOURIJ DUB[NQUIE 29 JUIWIAISY
8207 J91U] JO Sa1I0jeugIs 03 J0dal [enuuelq) uoneInpd
[euo13a1 y3noay) wer3ord JYSISIOAQ SINH J0WoI]

$9AN23[qo 2139)e1)S UO JOdaI pue AJBUIPIOO))

"SIOp[OYeIS

AwJes  orqnd  pue  SUONRZIUBSIO [JBIY  ‘SIIOUISE
SINH [eUOISdI UM [OpOW  DJAIIRIOQR[[0D dNUNUO)) .



" $59304d UOISINGY

UI[B9H JO pIeog 101SI(] pur pieog AIOSIApY
SN H 03 ueld 91391613 SINH [RUOISY pajepdn Suuyg .

£0C-¢C0¢
SIedA I0J SA1331e1)S pUB SIAIDAIQO ‘S[e03 Funjelp UIsayg .

810T 1990100



$1991044 Huluueld
B3NS [10Z-9102 Al

(L1/1€/T1 1hun 3u103u0) VSINTY
pue dVSd U99MIaq 398U VD 01 AV YSI[qEISH .
(L1/0€/90) S0003101J [BUOIZIY JO 1UdWdO[OAd(
(LO/T€/€0) TUWINSBIW dSUOdSAT QIIJ [RUONIIPSTIN[
(91/0€/60) SMa1Aad1 dew ISIYOULRY
ddue[nquie J0J ASO[OPOYIdUW PIAZIPIEPUR]S IZI[RUT

(91/0£/60) s1000301d B39W(Q 9]}
JO UOTJBOLJLIDA SS3001d JOJ SJUIUWII[D BJep JO UOTJRUIULINNS(] e



H o ., cw«»

9’ a&bﬂ.\\_‘, iLlio} J .I.ﬁl &.&Q 7 i 0 .?mv o
WL/, onnRInEf03 7 S et Mo
ﬁ,ww Nall fTE [ s SO ) <A & .hu.@eﬁ% “,
& 1eisnNg, Yo, & dpo suonezuesio
,..i.v ﬂ Q .

== p" O
7Sy S

@v@\ ._ \10%__e_e=a=§ow.. /S
Q 0 Y Q GEpmpR %.%... % o
& Doyl .

QY Yo 7 )
/90 %——— c ﬂw ’W \Q,%%%

0 3" Ay, Seudoldde
“w“w wwﬁwﬂoé % %%&w@ SI10}ISIN

ME SN e
$j0301040 V%" @ P

= w



WASHOE COUNTY
EMERGENCY MEDICAL

SERVICES
2017-2021: Five-Year Strategic Plan

Washoe County EMS Oversight Program




The Washoe County EMS System

The Washoe County Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Five- Year strategic plan was created
with EMS Advisory Board support and reviewed by:

Contracted Ambulance Provider:

REMSA Stakeholder Organizations and County
Departments:

Fire Service Agencies: North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District

Reno Fire Department Pyramid Lake Fire Rescue

Sparks Fire Department Reno Dispatch

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Airport Authority Fire Department

Gerlach Volunteer Fire Department Sparks Dispatch

WC Shared Communication System
Washoe County EMS Oversight Program
Washoe County Communications

Approved by:
District Board of Health
EMS Advisory Board

Document Distributed to:

Contracted Ambulance Provider

Fire Service Agencies

Incline Village Community Hospital

Northern Nevada Medical Center

Renown Regional Medical Center

Saint Mary’s Regional Medical Center

Stakeholder Organizations and County Departments
Veterans Affairs Sierra Nevada Health Care System



CONTENTS

Strategic Planning at a Glance
Executive Summary
Emergency Medical Services Regional Mission, Vision and Values
Emergency Medical Services Authority
Regional Strategic Plan Process, Objectives and Implementation
Goal #1
Goal #2
Goal #3
Goal #4

Goal #5
Goal #6

Strategic Plan Evaluation and Update

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft



Strategic Planning at a Glance

Ihe Washoe County EMS system will provide bigh geashity patient care

through  collaboranye  cflonts and ntcerated  healthcare  providing

cvidence based prehospital medicine exceeding the expectations ot the

cammunily

Itis the mission of the WC EMS System to coordinate the delivery of efficient and effective emergency medical services to the citizens, businesses and
visitors of Washoe County through collaboration with EMS providers.

' Enhance the regional EMS resources utilization
matching the appropriate services as defined by the

|
I 1“0 : "
|| call for service through alternative protocols, service
lt® options and transportation options.

' and the deyelubment of regional response palicies. |

I Improve pre-hospital EMS performance by ;Educmg |
* system response times through the use of technology

Improve aofqmun.is._mons
enhanced usage of

(Tl

between EMS partners through

of

chnology and the d
~ regional guidelines,

Improve cantinuity of care through regional processes that
ensure patient information transfers from the scene ta the
hospltal. g

| i . 5 !
Design an enhanced EMS response system through effective regional
protocols and quality assurancs. I

] I

%

Continue collaborative madals with regional EMS agencies,
health organizations and public safety stakeholders.

)

{ EMD process tor low acuity calls )

)

Sesvice Levels for Omega Calls
Automaric Vekicle Locator

( Ambulance Franchise Area Map Review )
CMutuai Ard Agreements for EMS scrvu:es)

C
>
-
C
C
(
(

=

Erhance 1adio communicabos systesns )

£

Tier 1 response measurement
CAD To CAD imtertace

Prehospital gatient information flow

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft

)

EMS sysiem bonunl repor?:

(/'_‘\

9egwral set of protocols

(

( Regional cuality improvement process

¢
(

)
)
)

Strategic plan implementation

Reparting structure te {LA signatories




Executive Summary I

Washoe County is the second largest EMS region in the state of Nevada. It is 6,551 square miles in
size and has approximately 433,000 residents. Washoe County is diverse geographically in its
mountainous, urban, suburban, rural and wilderness/frontier terrain.

There are many EMS system stakeholder organizations including police and fire agencies, dispatch
centers, healthcare organizations, and a contracted ambulance provider. The current ambulance
contractor provides service to Washoe County; excluding the Gerlach Volunteer Fire Department
service area and the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District.

The Washoe County EMS Five-Year Strategic Plan was created between August 2015 and October
2016 to guide the future direction of the Washoe County EMS System. The assessment process
evaluated the strengths and weaknesses, as well as the opportunities and threats facing the EMS system
from national, regional and local influences. The information obtained through the analysis created
goals to optimize the structure, processes, and outcomes of the EMS Five-Year Strategic Plan, focusing
on: 1) maintaining or improving clinical care and patient satisfaction; and 2) improving operational
efficiency and collaboration across the region.

The best EMS systems are based on collaborations among the diverse organizations that comprise the
EMS system. When these organization’s strengths are emphasized by system-wide integration and a
culture of trust, the EMS system can more effectively capitalize on new opportunities and mitigate threats
to the system. The planning process for Washoe County was supported by and involved EMS
stakeholder leadership.

The strategic planning process was collaborative and included consensus building processes within the
region and provided periodic updates to the EMS Advisory Board and District Board of Health. The
results of this process were the EMS System's Mission, Vision, Values, Goals and Objectives. The
EMS Five-Year Strategic Plan was approved by the EMS Advisory Board on October 6, 2016 and
approved by the District Board of Health on October 27, 2016.

The six goals within Washoe County EMS Five-Year Strategic Plan are most relevant to the EMS
system’s ability to adapt to the changing healthcare environment, specifically focusing on pre-hospital
care. There are three goals within the strategic plan to ensure maintenance and improvements related to
clinical care and patient satisfaction. The remaining three goals focus on improving operational
efficiencies within the region, both internally and externally through collaboration. These include
proposed changes to existing processes that will positively impact the EMS System in its entirety.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft 5



Emergency Medical Services Regional Mission, Vision and Values

It is the mission of the Washoe County EMS System to coordinate the delivery of efficient and
effective emergency medical services to the citizens, businesses and visitors of Washoe County
through collaboration with EMS providers.

Vision:

The Washoe County EMS system will provide high quality patient care through collaborative efforts
and integrated healthcare providing evidence-based prehospital medicine exceeding the expectations of
the community.

The values of the Washoe County EMS System are:

e Respectful: To be open-minded of all stakeholder’s views and ideas.

e Customer Service Oriented: To be responsive to our customers’ needs striving to provide high
quality services in a respectful and courteous manner.

e Accountable: To be responsible for our behaviors, actions and decisions.

e Professional: To be dedicated in our service to the region and ourselves through adherence of
recognized policies, rules and regulations. This includes maintaining the highest moral and
ethical standards.

e Responsive: To rapidly identify emerging issues and respond appropriately.

e Quality Improvement/Assurance: To continuously evaluate operations, procedures and
practices to ensure the EMS system is meeting the needs of our patients and stakeholders.

o Collaborative: To work together towards delivering efficient and effective emergency medical
services to the citizens, businesses, and visitors of Washoe County.

Emergency Medical Services Authority

Washoe County is comprised of three political jurisdictions, the City of Reno, City of Sparks and
unincorporated Washoe County. In addition to the political bodies and their operational policy
decisions, the State Division of Public and Behavioral Health also oversees EMS licensing and
certifications within Washoe County.

There are multiple regulations that impact how the EMS system operates in Washoe County. At the
State level, Nevada Revised Statute 450B is the overarching legislation that identifies minimum
requirements for EMS services. In addition, the Nevada Administrative Code also includes codified
regulations for EMS personnel and agencies.

At the local government level, by the authority established through Nevada Revised Statute (NRS 439.370
et seq.) and the 1986 Interlocal Agreement (last amended 1993), the Washoe County Health District has
jurisdiction over all public health matters in Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County through the policy-making
Washoe County District Board of Health (DBOH). Through this authority the DBOH established an

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft 6



exclusive ambulance franchise in August 1986 in Washoe County, excluding Gerlach and the North
Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District. This Franchise was awarded to the Regional Emergency Medical
Services Authority (REMSA) in May 1987. Through a regional process, the agreement was amended,
restated and approved by the DBOH in May 2014. As part of the regional process, one
recommendation for improvement of the delivery of patient care and outcomes and the delivery of
emergency medical services was the creation of a Regional Emergency Medical Oversight Program
through an Inter Local Agreement (ILA).

The ILA was fully executed in August 2014 and is an agreement between five political jurisdictions;
City of Sparks', City of Reno®, Washoe County Board of County Commissioners®, District Board of
Health*, and Truckee Meadows Board of Fire Commissioners’. The ILA establishes an Emergency
Medical Services Advisory Board (EMS Advisory Board).

The EMS Advisory Board is comprised of the following members:
a. City Manager, Reno

b. City Manager, Sparks

¢. County Manager, Washoe County

d. District Health Officer

e. Emergency Room Physician (DBOH Appointment)

f.  Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) Representative (DBOH Appointment)

The purpose of the EMS Advisory Board is to review reports, evaluations and recommendations of the
Regional Emergency Medical Services Oversight Program and to discuss issues related to regional
emergency medical services. The function of the EMS Advisory Board is to thoroughly discuss
changes within the regional EMS system prior to making recommendations to the respective Board(s),
of the five signatories, and placing items on an agenda for possible approval and implementation.

Additionally, the EMS Advisory Board can make recommendations to the District Health Officer
and/or the District Board of Health related to performance standards and attainment of those standards,
medical protocols, communication, coordination, and other items of importance to a high performing
Regional Emergency Medical Services System, and providing for concurrent review and approval by
the Managers of the City of Reno, City of Sparks and Washoe County, striving to have a uniform
system maintained for the region whenever possible.

The ILA also established the Regional Emergency Medical Services Oversight Program (Program).
The purpose of the Program is to provide oversight of all emergency medical services provided by the
EMS personnel within the signatory jurisdictions, as well as REMSA. Additionally, the Program is
expected to achieve the duties outlined within the ILA. The program consists of a Program Manager,
Program Coordinator and Statistician.

! Referred to as “SPARKS” within the ILA
? Referred to as “RENO” within the ILA

® Referred to as “WASHOE” within the ILA
* Referred to as “DISTRICT” within the ILA
® Referred to as “FIRE” within the ILA

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft 7



The eight duties specifically detailed within the ILA are:

1.

Monitor the response and performance of each agency providing Emergency Medical Services
and provide recommendations to each agency for the maintenance, improvement, and long-
range success of the Emergency Medical Services;

Coordinate and integrate provision of Medical Direction for RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE,
FIRE and REMSA providing emergency medical services;

Recommend regional standards and protocols for RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE and
REMSA;

Measure performance, analysis of system characteristics, data and outcomes of the Emergency
Medical Services and provide performance measurement and recommendations to RENO,
SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE and REMSA;

Collaborate with REMSA, RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE and DISTRICT on analysis of
EMS response data and formulation of recommendations for modifications or changes to the
Regional Emergency Medical Response Map;

Identify sub-regions as may be requested by RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE or the
DISTRICT to be analyzed and evaluated for potential recommendations regarding EMS
response services in order to optimize the performance of system resources;

Provide a written Annual Report on the State of Emergency Medical Services to RENO,
SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE and REMSA covering the preceding fiscal year (July 1* to June
30™), containing measured performance in each agency including both ground and rotary wing
air ambulance services provided by REMSA in Washoe County; the compliance with
performance measures established by the District Emergency Medical Services Oversight
Program in each agency, and audited financial statements and an annual compliance report by
REMSA as required in the exclusive Emergency Medical Ambulance Service Franchise;

Maintain a Five-Year Strategic Plan to ensure the continuous improvement of Emergency
Medical Services in the area of standardized equipment, procedures, technology training, and
capital investments to ensure that proper future operations continue to perform including
Dispatching Systems, Automated Vehicle Locations Systems, Records Management Systems,
Statistical Analysis, Regional Medical Supply and Equipment, and other matters related to
strategic and ongoing Emergency Medical Services and approved by RENO, SPARKS,
WASHOE and FIRE.

The ILA also outlines the duties of the signatories, which support the expectation that the strategic
planning objectives will be achieved. Those duties are:

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft 8



a. Providing information, records, and data on Emergency Medical Services dispatch and
response from their respective Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) and Fire Services for
review, study and evaluation by DISTRICT.

b. Participating in working groups established by DISTRICT for coordination, review,
evaluation, and continuous improvement of Emergency Medical Services.

c. Participating in establishing and utilizing a Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) — to —
CAD two-way interface with REMSA which provides for the instantaneous and simultaneous
transmission of call-related information for unit status updates;

d. Working cooperatively with DISTRICT to provide input to the development of the
Five Year Strategic Plan and to ensure consistent two-way communication and coordination of
the Emergency Medical Services System between RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE, and
REMSA in the future as technologies, equipment, systems, and protocols evolve;

e. Participating on the Regional Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board;

f. Striving to implement recommendations of DISTRICT, or submitting those
recommendations to their governing bodies for consideration and possible action if determined
necessary and appropriate by the respective managers; and

g. Submitting recommendations regarding the Emergency Medical Services System to
DISTRICT for implementation or for consideration and possible action by the District Board
of Health if determined necessary and appropriate by the District Health Officer.

Regional Strategic Plan
Process, Objectives and Implementation

Washoe County has a two tiered system response to emergency medical calls. When an individual
dials 9-1-1 the call routes through one of three Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs): Reno, Sparks
or Washoe County. Jurisdictional fire departments are dispatched to a medical call by PSAP
personnel. If appropriate, the caller is then transferred to REMSA’s communications center for
Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD). EMD allows REMSA dispatch to prioritize the caller's chief
complaint to dispatch appropriate resources and provide pre-arrival instruction to the caller.

There are several agencies and organizations involved in the response to an emergency medical call.
The EMS Advisory Board recognizes the need to provide optimal emergency care under the varied
conditions throughout Washoe County. Therefore, the EMSAB strives to influence the coordination of
all stakeholders as it develops and sustains a system to ensure appropriate and adequate emergency
medical services. With this in mind, the Five-Year EMS strategic plan was constructed.

To ensure the objectives of the entire region were considered, the EMS Working Group convened and

participated in a SWOT analysis. The SWOT analysis looks at the strengths (internal), weaknesses
(internal), opportunities (external), and threats (external) for the regional EMS system.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft 9



Representatives from both dispatch and operations for the EMS agencies provided input and feedback
on the development of the strategic plan. The EMS Oversight Program frequently met with the
representatives to review the goals, objectives, and strategies while discussing realistic timelines for
implementation. These meetings were an integral part of the process to ensure the regional planning
goals mirrored the jurisdictional strategic planning goals of the individual EMS agencies. This
culminated in the development of a regional strategic plan for the EMS Advisory Board’s
consideration.

The Five-Year EMS strategic plan includes goals, objectives and strategies. The six goals of the
strategic plan are broad statements to identify future achievements of the Washoe County EMS
system. Each goal includes objectives designed to measure progress towards the attainment of the
goal. The strategies for each goal describe a major approach or method for attaining the objectives.

Additionally, the strategic plan outlines the method to achieve effective and efficient solutions to
system-wide challenges. The strategic plan calls for maximum collaboration to achieve the objectives
and strategies within the five year planning period (2017-2021). Through continued collaboration, the
strategic plan can be updated to capitalize on new opportunities or to mitigate threats to the system. This
process will ensure key stakeholders remain involved in regional emergency medical services planning
activities.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft 10



Goal #1 -

Enhance utilization of EMS resources by matching the appropriate services, as defined
by the call for service, through alternative protocols, service options and transportation

options by October 7, 2021.

Objective 1.1. Develop
appropriate protocols to
determine service level for
Omega calls by January 5,
2017.

Strategy 1.1.1. Resolve legal issues impacting fire partners
by March 30, 2016.

Strategy 1.1.2. Develop regional Standard Operating
Procedures to address response to Omega calls by June 21,
2016.

Strategy 1.1.3. Approval by the EMS Advisory Board of
protocols determining service levels for Omega calls by
July 7, 2016.

Strategy 1.1.4. Determine data elements required for
process verification by September 30, 2016.

Strategy 1.1.5. Analyze, interpret and report data elements to
EMS Advisory Board and partner agencies quarterly
beginning January 5, 2017.

Objective 1.2. Implement
appropriate protocols to
determine service level
through EMD process to
low acuity Priority 3 calls
by February 5, 2017.

Strategy 1.2.1. Resolve regional concerns
(operational, legal, and patient care) relating to
protocols to determine service level through EMD
process to low acuity Priority 3 calls by June 30, 2016.

Strategy 1.2.2. Develop Standard Operating Procedures to
determine service level through EMD process to low acuity
Priority 3 calls by October 28, 2016.

Strategy 1.2.3. Determine data elements required for
process verification by December 16, 2016.

Strategy 1.2.4. Review by the EMS Advisory Board
of the protocols that determine service levels through
EMD process to low acuity Priority 3 calls by January
5,2017.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft

11




- Goal #1 Continued -

Enhance utilization of EMS resources by matching the appropriate services, as defined by
the call for service, through alternative protocols, service options and transportation

options by October 7, 2021.

Objective 1.3. Develop
standardized procedures for
eligible patients to receive
funded alternative
transportation to obtain
medical care at an
alternative destination by
October 7, 2021.

Strategy 1.3.1. Conduct research on alternative
transportation options utilized across the United States
by October 31, 2020.

Strategy 1.3.2. If applicable, develop processes for dispatch
centers to select eligible patients to receive funded alternative
transport to facilities that accept patients who meet alternative
destination criteria (e.g. urgent care, physician’s office criteria)
by August 31, 2021.

Strategy 1.3.3. If applicable, obtain approval by the EMS
Advisory Board of standardized procedures for patients to
receive funded alternative transportation to obtain medical
care by October 7, 2021.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft

12




- Goal #2 -

Improve pre-hospital EMS performance by reducing system response times through the
use of technology and the development of regional response policies by December 21,
2022.

Objective 2.1. Implement
regional usage of
Automatic

Vehicle Locator (AVL)
technology to dispatch
closest available unit by
December 31, 2022.

Strategy 2.1.1. Complete a regional assessment to identify
and understand existing AVL capabilities to dispatch the
closest EMS responder by June 30, 2021.

Strategy 2.1.2. Approval to utilize AVL to dispatch the
closest available unit to EMS calls by individual
Councils/Boards and EMS Advisory Board by December 31,
2021.

Strategy 2.1.3. Develop regional dispatching process that
will utilize the AVL technology to dispatch the closest unit to
EMS calls for service by June 30, 2022.

Strategy 2.1.4. Purchase and install additional AVL
equipment to increase capabilities in region by December 31,
2022,

Objective 2.2, Establish
ambulance franchise
response map review
methodology by September
30, 2016.

Strategy 2.2.1. Develop standardized methodology
for the annual review of the ambulance franchise
response map by June 30, 2016.

Strategy 2.2.2. Develop standardized methodology for the
five and ten year review for the ambulance franchise
response map by September 30, 2016.

Strategy 2.2.3. Approval by the EMS Advisory Board of the
standardized methodology for the annual, five and ten year
reviews by October 6, 2016.

Strategy 2.2.4 Analyze and report franchise map reviews
annually including any recommended modifications to the
EMS Advisory Board, beginning July 6, 2017.

Objective 2.3. Increase
depth of resources able to
respond to EMS calls for
service in Washoe County by
December 31% annually.

Strategy 2.3.1. Identification of operational
opportunities by WC EMS agencies through a review
of mutual aid agreements (MAA) and/or memorandum
of understanding (MOU) that include EMS services for
Washoe County by June 30" annually.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft




- Goal #2 Continued -

Improve pre-hospital EMS performance by reducing system response times through the
use of technology and the development of regional response policies by December 31,

2022.

Objective 2.3. Increase
depth of resources able to
respond to EMS calls for
service in Washoe County by
December 31* annually.

Strategy 2.3.2. Enter into or modify MAAs/MOUs with
partner agencies as necessarily by December 31%
annually.

Strategy 2.3.3. Provide an update to EMS Advisory
Board on all MA/MOU process changes or additional
agreements being utilized in region by January 31
annually, beginning in January 2017.

Objective 2.4. Define a
measurement for EMS Tier 1
response agencies, to support
recommendations for systecm
improvements, by March 31,
2017.

Strategy 2.4.1. Jurisdictional fire response measurement
identified by March 31, 2017.

Strategy 2.4.2. Review defined jurisdictional measurement
with EMS Oversight Program by March 31, 2017.

Strategy 2.4.3. Monitor and report to the EMS Advisory
Board the performance of the regional EMS system utilizing
the jurisdictional fire measurement and ambulance franchise
response map by the 15™ of the month, following the fiscal
year quarter.

Strategy 2.4.4. Provide recommendations for improvements
based on defined performance measures to EMS Advisory
Board as needed.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft

14



- Goal #3 -

Improve communications between EMS partners through enhanced usage of technology
and the development of regional guidelines by June 30, 2021.

Objective 3.1. Enhance
radio communication
systems within Washoe
County by June 30, 2021.

Strategy 3.1.1. REMSA will ensure interoperability
between UHF and 800 MHz through a gateway connection
between REMSA and Washoe County Regional
Communication System by December 31, 2016.

Strategy 3.1.2. Obtain clarification from District Board of
Health regarding Amended and Restated Franchise section
5.1 by June 30, 2017.

Strategy 3.1.3. Develop a comprehensive migration
interoperability plan for WCRCS that outlines the
enhancement of the radio communication system to include
completion of upgrades, maintenance of REMSA gateway
connection and identified equipment needs by December
31, 2018.

Strategy 3.1.4. REMSA and regional public safety partners
will develop a plan to upgrade system based on
jurisdictional analysis, in alignment with WCRCS target
date of June 30, 2021.

Objective 3.2. Establish a
CAD-to-CAD (computer
aided dispatch) interface
between the primary PSAP
and REMSA dispatch center
by December 31, 2017.

Strategy 3.2.1. Create a regional workgroup to design
the elements of the CAD-to-CAD interface increasing
interoperability between dispatch centers by January
31, 2016.

Strategy 3.2.2. Complete configuration process that includes
development of the data exchange overview document and
implementation by December 31, 2017.

Strategy 3.2.3. Provide process updates to EMS Advisory
Board quarterly, beginning April 7, 2016.

Objective 3.3. Establish a
two-way interface to provide
visualization of AVL for all
EMS vehicles for the primary
PSAPs and REMSA dispatch
center by December 31,
2017.

Strategy 3.3.1. Complete a regional assessment to identify
and understand AVL existing capabilities by December 31,
2016.

Strategy 3.3.2. Develop regional process that will utilize the
AVL technology to visualize EMS vehicles in both the
primary PSAPs and REMSA dispatch center by December
31,2017.

Strategy 3.3.3. If applicable, purchase and install additional
AVL equipment to increase capabilities in region by
December 31, 2017.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft 15




- Goal #4 -

Improve continuity of care through regional processes that ensure patient information
transfers from the scene to the hospital by December 31, 2018.

Objective 4.1. Develop a
process to improve the flow
of patient information
throughout the prehospital
setting by December 31,
2018.

Strategy 4.1.1. Identify the electronic patient care reporting
(ePCR) software being utilized or purchased for use in the
region by June 30, 2016.

Strategy 4.1.2. Evaluate how to transfer information
between the ePCR from the fire response unit to the
REMSA response unit by December 31, 2016.

Strategy 4.1.3. Evaluate existing processes for transferring
all prehospital care information to hospital personnel and
implement process improvement by June 30, 2018.

Strategy 4.1.4. Create and conduct training on
regional policy, to include pertinent information
required for seamless transfer of patient care from
agency to agency by December 31, 2018.

Objective 4.2. Produce an
annual report on EMS system
performance that includes
hospital outcome data by
December 31, 2018.

Strategy 4.2.1. Collaborate with hospital partners on data
available for submission to the EMS Oversight Program for
cardiac, stroke and stemi patients by October 31, 2016.

Strategy 4.2.2. Pilot the annual report with hospital outcome
data with one regional hospital by March 31, 2017.

Strategy 4.2.3. Draft for distribution an annual report with
relevant regional hospital partner data included by June 30,
2017.

Strategy 4.2.4. Review annual report with ePCR
implementation and determine enhancements available
for hospital outcome data by October 31, 2018.

Strategy 4.2.5. Draft for distribution of an annual
report with enhanced data included by December 31,
2018.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft 16




- Goal #5 -

Design an enhanced EMS response system through effective regional protocols and
quality assurance by December 31, 2018.

Objective 5.1. Develop a
regional set of protocols for
the delivery of prehospital
patient care by July 2017.

Strategy 5.1.1. Review current protocols for each regional
agency to determine differences and opportunities for
improvement by October 31, 2016.

Strategy 5.1.2. Coordinate with PMAC® to develop regional
protocols based on national standards and recent clinical
studies, by June 30, 2017, amend as needed with a minimum
annual review.

Strategy 5.1.3. Presentation to the EMS Advisory Board of
the regional protocols and conflict resolution procedure for
prehospital care by July 2017

Strategy 5.1.4. Create and conduct training on regional
protocols for prehospital care by December 31, 2017.

Objective 5.2. Establish a
regional process that
continuously examines
performance of the EMS
system by December 31,
2018.

Strategy 5.2.1. Create a regional team, including
PMAC representation, which would work to improve
the system through examination of system
performance by December 31, 2018.

Strategy 5.2.2. Determine team goals and identify initial
performance measures to be utilized to continuously improve
processes by December 31, 2018.

Strategy 5.2.3. Acceptance by the EMS Advisory Board of
the performance initiatives to be used during the review
process by January 2019.

Strategy 5.2.4. Present information from the quarterly
meeting to the appropriate entity, beginning April 2019.

® PMAC is the Prehospital Medical Advisory Committee for Washoe County

Washoc County Stratcgic Plan Final Draft

17




- Goal #6 -

Continue collaborative models with regional EMS agencies, health organizations and

public safety stakeholders.

Objective 6.1. Coordinate
and report on strategic
planning objectives
quartcrly through Junc
2021.

Strategy 6.1.1. Create a Gantt chart for the regional
partners with the details of the goals by October 31, 2016.

Strategy 6.1.2. Dcvclop structured feedback loops for the
current initiatives of the strategic plan goals.

Strategy 6.1.3. Provide progress reports to the EMS
Advisory Board quarterly, beginning January 2017.

Objective 6.2. Promote the
EMS Oversight Program
through regional education of
the strategic plan’s goals and
initiatives by January 31,
2017.

Strategy 6.2.1. Create a reporting structure for the
signatories of the Inter-Local Agreement and
ambulance franchisee Board to receive updates on the
status of the regional EMS system, biannually,
beginning January 2017.

Washoe County Strategic Plan Final Draft

18




Strategic Plan Evaluation and Update

In an effort to ensure the successful implementation of the strategies and objectives of the EMS
Advisory Board strategic plan, the EMS Oversight Program will develop a Gantt chart. The chart will
be distributed to the regional partners upon approval of the strategic plan by the District Board of
Health. The chart will be reviewed semi-annually to ensure all projected timelines remain achievable.
Progress on the strategic planning strategies and objectives will be included in the EMS Oversight
Program “Program and Performance Data Update” staff report at the EMS Advisory Board meeting,

Every two years, beginning in October 2018, the regional partners will convene to review the status of
the current strategies and objectives. During the October 2018 review, the EMS Oversight Program
will begin to develop the draft goals, strategies and objectives for years 2022-2023. Upon completion
the EMS Oversight Program will bring an updated 5-year strategic plan to the EMS Advisory Board for
review, input and approval.

Washoc County Stratcgic Plan Final Draft 19



PAONLS

| Washoe County EMS

Oversight Program
Annual Report FY 15-16

Washoe County Health District
Division of Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness

EMS Oversight Program




_— e e
EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 1



Acknowledgements

The EMS Oversight Program would like to thank the following for contributing to the FY15-16
Annual Report:

% Washoe County GIS Technological Services/Regional Services for creating all the maps
contained within this document.

% The partner agencies for providing their highlights and accomplishments.

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 2



Table of Contents

Introduction pg 4

Section 1: About the Washoe County EMS Oversight Program pg 4

Section 2: How Washoe County’s 9-1-1 and EMS systems are designed pgo6

Figure 1: 9-1-1 Call Routing in Washoe County pg 7

Section 3: Washoe County EMS Partner Agencies pg 8

Jurisdictional Response and Station Maps pg 8

Figure 2: Jurisdictional Boundaries and Fire Station Locations pg 10
Figure 3: REMSA Franchise Response Map through June 30, 2016 pg 11
Section 4: Regional EMS Performance Analyses pg 12
Table 1 Total matched calls by REMSA priority pg 12
Table 2 PSAP notification of a 9-1-1 call prior to REMSA pg 12
Table 3 The median time intervals to dispatch and arrival on scene pg 13
Table 4 The median travel time pg 13
Table 5 First responding unit on scene pg 14
Section 5: EMS Oversight Program Accomplishments FY 15-16 pg 16
Revised REMSA Franchise Response Map pg 16
Figure 4: REMSA Franchise Response Map Effective July 1, 2016 pg 17
Figure 5: Map of REMSA’s Previous and Current Franchise Response Zones pg 18
HeartSafe Community Designation pg 19
Multi-Casualty Incident Plan (MCIP) Update pe 19
MCIP Executive Training pg 20
Nevada Statewide Medical Surge Plan pg 20
Section 6: Partner Agency EMS Highlights & Accomplishments FY 15-16 pg 21
City of Reno Fire Department Highlights for FY 15-16 pg 21
City of Sparks Fire Department Highlights for FY 15-16 pg 23
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Highlights for FY 15-16 pg 24
REMSA’s Agency Highlights for FY 15-16 pg 26
Gerlach Volunteer Fire Department Highlights for FY 15-16 pg 28
Section 7: Goals for Next Fiscal Year pg 29
Five-Year Strategic Plan pg 29
Patient Outcome Data pg 30

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 3



Introduction

The Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Oversight Program Annual Report contains a summary
of the Washoe County regional EMS system from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 (FY 15-16).
Within the report there are seven sections highlighting the EMS system within Washoe County,
to include EMS response agencies and their jurisdictional boundaries, regional performance
data, and regional EMS accomplishments and goals for fiscal year 16-17.

Section 1: About the Washoe County EMS Oversight Program

An assessment of the Washoe County EMS system was conducted in 2012 by a public safety
consulting firm, TriData; this study resulted in 36 recommendations to the region for the
improvement of EMS services, including the establishment of a Regional EMS Oversight
Program (Program). On August 26, 2014 an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) for Emergency Medical
Services Oversight was fully executed between the City of Reno (Reno), City of Sparks (Sparks),
Washoe County Board of Commissioners (Washoe), Washoe County Health District, and
Truckee Meadows Board of Fire Commissioners (Fire). The ILA created the Program, the
purpose of which is to provide oversight of all emergency medical services provided by Reno,
Sparks, Washoe, Fire, and Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA). The
Program is staffed with 2.5 full-time employees; a full-time Program Manager, a full-time
Program Coordinator, and a part-time Program Statistician. Additionally, the establishment of
the ILA and the Program created specific duties and expectations of the signatories. A summary
of the eight duties of the Program, and seven duties of the signatory partners, as designated
per the ILA, are provided below.

The Program is tasked with the following:

Monitoring the response and performance of each agency providing EMS in the region
Coordinate and integrate medical direction

Recommending regional standards and protocols

Measure performance, system characteristics, data and outcomes for EMS to result in

Ll

recommendations

5. Collaboration with partners on analyses of EMS response data and formulation of
recommendations for modifications or changes of the regional Emergency Medical
Response Map

6. ldentification on sub-regions to be analyzed and evaluated for recommendations
regarding EMS response

7. Provide an annual report on the state of EMS to contain measured performance of each
agency and compliance with performances measures established by the Program for
each agency

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 4



8. Create and maintain a five-year strategic plan to ensure continued improvement in EMS
to include standardized equipment, procedures, technology training and capital
investments

The signatory partners are tasked with the following:

1. Provide information, records and data on EMS dispatch and response for review, study
and evaluation by the EMS Program

2. Participate in working groups for coordination, review, evaluation and continued
improvement of EMS

3. Participate in the establishment and utilization of computer-aided-dispatch (CAD)-to-
CAD interface’

4. Work cooperatively with the EMS Program to provide input on the five-year strategic
plan and ensure two-way communication and coordination of EMS system as future
technologies, equipment, systems and protocols evolve

5. Participate in the EMS Advisory board

6. Strive to implement recommendations of the EMS Program or submit recommendations
to their respective governing bodies for consideration and possible action

7. Submitting recommendations regarding the EMS system to the EMS Program for
implementation or consideration and possible action by the District Board of Health

The ILA also created an Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board (EMSAB), comprised of the
following members:

City Manager, Reno

City Manager, Sparks

County Manager, Washoe County

District Health Officer

Emergency Room Physician (DBOH Appointment?)

Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement (CQl) Representative (DBOH
Appointment?)

S o o 0 oW

The EMSAB was established to provide a concurrent review of topics within the EMS system.
The purpose of the EMSAB is to review reports, evaluations and recommendations of the
Program, discuss issues related to regional emergency medical services and make
recommendations to the respective jurisdictional Boards.

! CAD-to-CAD is a two-way interface with allows for call-related information to be transferred between all agencies
involved with an incident to have access to live updates and incident status information

* DBOH is the Washoe County District Board of Health; the governing board which oversees health-related issues
within Washoe County

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 5



Section 2: How Washoe County’s 9-1-1 and EMS systems are designed

Washoe County has a two-tiered response system to emergency medical calls. A 9-1-1 call is
routed through the Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP), to determine if a caller is requesting
police, medical or fire response; and if medical is requested or needed, the caller is forwarded
to REMSA for Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD).

The two-tiered system is designed so that a fire agency is dispatched first to a medical EMS
incident in their jurisdiction, since fire stations are located within neighborhoods throughout
the region. While fire is being dispatched, the call taker is questioned by REMSA to determine
the call priority, and the subsequent dispatching of an ambulance. The performance of the EMS
System within Washoe County is dependent on all parties working together.

Figure 1 illustrates how a 9-1-1 call is transferred through the EMS system. Starting from the
initial call coming into the PSAP, to the call taker questioning, dispatch of fire, transferring the
9-1-1 call to REMSA, REMSA dispatching an ambulance, EMS (Fire and REMSA) responders
arriving on scene, and REMSA transporting the patient to a hospital.

R
EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 6



Figure 1: 9-1-1 Call Routing in Washoe County

Call is answered by one of
9-1-1 call e o the regional PSAPs (Reno,
Sparks or Washoe)

The call taker asks police,

fire, or medical?

The call taker records Medical call !nfot:mation is The fire disp?tcher alarms
B e T ot sentto the fire dispatcher the appropraite fire station
B [t f'or call andthecalleris with kiiown call
transferredto RESMA infarmation

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 7



Section 3: Washoe County EMS Partner Agencies

The EMS system within Washoe County is comprised of multiple partner agencies. These
agencies work together daily to ensure the needs of the community are met. These EMS
partner agencies include:

e City of Reno®

e City of Reno Fire Department

e City of Reno Public Safety Dispatch (Reno ECOMM)
e City of Sparks®

e City of Sparks Fire Department

e City of Sparks Public Safety Answering Point

e Gerlach Volunteer Fire Department

o North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District

e Pyramid Lake Fire and Rescue

e Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Fire Department
e REMSA

o Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District®

e Washoe County?

¢ Washoe County Health District®

e Washoe County Sheriff’s Office

Jurisdictional Response and Station Maps

Emergency Medical Services in Washoe County are provided by the following career fire
agencies: Reno Fire Department, Sparks Fire Department, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District, North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District and Pyramid Lake Fire and Rescue. The City of
Reno and City of Sparks Fire Departments’ jurisdictions encompass the city limits of their
respective cities (Figure 2), while Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s jurisdiction
encompasses the more rural areas of unincorporated Washoe County (Figure 3) up to the Rural
Fire Boundary (Figure 4). The southwest corner of Washoe County falls under the jurisdiction of
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District (NLTFPD). NLTFPD provides fire and ambulance
coverage and transport for the residents of Incline Village, Crystal Bay and surrounding
communities. Pyramid Lake Fire and Rescue’s jurisdiction includes the Pyramid Lake Tribal Land
reservation boundaries.

® signatory of the ILA
L e e e e e e e e —— = o _—_— 1]
EMS Overslght Program FY 15-16 Annhual Report Page 8



Washoe County citizens also are served by the following volunteer fire agencies: EMS coverage
north of the Rural Fire Boundary is covered by Gerlach Volunteer Ambulance and Fire
Department, their jurisdiction includes the towns of Gerlach, Empire, and surrounding rural
region. The Red Rock Volunteer Fire Department serves a rural area north of Reno
supplemented by Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District.

The private ambulance company, REMSA, is responsible for the transport of patients within
their designated Franchise response area. REMSA'’s response area extends from the southern
border of Washoe County, north to the border of the Pyramid Lake Paiute tribal lands, east to
Wadsworth and west to the border of California (Figure 3).

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 9



Figure 2: Jurisdictional Boundaries and Fire Station Locations for Reno Fire Department,
Sparks Fire Department and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

a Tag_ftaticns

/) renoFn
m Sparks FD
777 Truckee Meadows FrD

e R e =
Page 10

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report



Figure 3: REMSA Franchise Response Map through June 30, 2016

REMSA Zow C

REMSA Zone A
REMSA Zome B
[ | AEMSA Zone D

[ | AEMSA Zone E Froner
CAD Straets

R

Page 11

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report



Section 4: Regional EMS Performance Analyses

EMS related calls are reported by three fire agencies in Washoe County: City of Sparks, City of
Reno, and the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (unincorporated Washoe County), all
of which are signatories of the Interlocal Agreement, as well as REMSA. The reported EMS
related fire calls are matched to REMSA calls for service to allow for an evaluation of system
performance on EMS incident response, from the initial 9-1-1 call through each agency arriving
on scene. The purpose of matching fire call data with REMSA call data is to better understand
how the EMS system is functioning in our region and determine if implemented protocols are
impacting response times and patient outcomes. Additionally it allows the region to review if
there are opportunities for improvement.

The analyses presented in this section are representative of the EMS calls for service during July
1, 2015-June 30, 2016. The calls utilized in these analyses are those which matched between
fire partners and REMSA.

Table 1 Total number of Fire calls which matched to REMSA calls by REMSA priority. The
number used in each analysis is dependent on the time stamp validity for time stamps used in
each table.

Priority # %
1 21,498 | 47.5%
2 17,149 | 37.9%
3 5954 [ 13.2%
9 693 1.5%
Total | 45,294 | 100.0%

Table 2 The proportion of calls when PSAP received notification of an EMS call prior to
REMSA. SFD was able to provide PSAP data starting October 26, 2015. Calls which occurred
prior to October 26 from SFD do not have PSAP data.

Agency # %
REMSA First 5,237 12.4%
PSAP First [ 36,880 87.6%
Total Matched N =45,294, Used N = 42,117

e
EMS Overslght Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 12



Table 3 The median time intervals from the initial call (IC) to responding agency’s dispatch
and arrival on scene.

The initial call (IC) time was calculated using either REMSA call pick up time or PSAP Created
Time, depending on which was first. Those calls excluded from the analysis were missing PSAP
Created Time or did not have an arrival on scene time stamp for either a fire partner or REMSA.

L Median Time from Initial Call (IC) to Dispatch and Arrival On Scene
REMSA Priority - - . -
IC to REMSA Dispatch IC to Fire Arrival IC to REMSA Arrival
1 0:01:12 0:06:46 0:06:56
2 0:01:16 0:07:05 0:07:27
3 0:01:14 0:07:00 0:09:04
9 0:01:17 0:07:15 0:10:03
All 0:01:14 0:06:55 0:07:19

Total matched N = 45,294, Used N = 30,481

The median time from the initial call to REMSA dispatch (clock start) is 01:14 minutes, to Fire
arrival is 06:55 minutes, and REMSA arrives 07:19 minutes after the initial call.

Table 4 The median travel time (time from when fire agency goes en route to fire agency
arrival on scene). Median, Mean (average), and 9o™ percentile. !

Fire Travel Time: En route to Arrival
Median | Mean | 90th Percentile
0:03:57 | 0:04:27 0:07:22
Used N= 38,980

Of the 38,980 fire calls with an en route and arrival time stamp, the median travel time was
03:57 minutes, the mean or average travel time was 04:27 minutes and the 9o™ percentile,
meaning 90% of the calls, were 07:22 minutes or less.

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 13




Table 5 Regional information that indicates the first responding unit on scene, by priority.

. Priority REMSA
First on
1 2 3 9 Total

Scene
it % # % # % # % # %
6,518 | 38.0% | 1,485 | 249% | 152 | 21.9% | 17,366 | 38.3%

REMSA First | 9,211 | 42.8%
REMSA Only-
1,951 | 9.1% | 2,083 | 12.1% | 906 | 15.2% | 125 | 18.0% | 5,065 | 11.2%

Fire cxlId
Fire First | 9,959 | 46.3% | 7,780 | 45.4% | 3,195 | 53.7% | 374 | 54.0% | 21,308 | 47.0%
Fire Only-
185 0.9% 443 2.6% 313 5.3% 29 4.2% 970 2.1%
REMSA cxid
0.2% 12 0.2% 4 0.6% 113 0.2%

Same Time 57 0.3% 40
135 0.6% 285 1.7% 43 0.7% 9 1.3% 472 1.0%
45,294 | 100.0%

All Cancelled
Total 21,498 | 100.0% | 17,149 | 100.0% | 5,954 | 100.0% | 693 | 100.0%

First Arriving Agency, All Matched Calls
All Cancelled,

Same Time, 0.2%

Fire Only-REMSA
cxld, 2.1%

REMSA Only-Fire
cxld, 11.2%

W REMSA First M REMSA Only-Fire cxld  © Fire First

M Fire Only-REMSA cxld ® Same Time ® All Cancelled

e —————————— R e
Page 14

EMS Uversight Program +Y 15-16 Annual Report



First Arriving Agency, by REMSA Priority

Number of Calls
0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000
1 — __|.- R TR 7 B 2 | |
' |

REMSA Priority
w N
!
i
|
- |
|

9 |I l |
M REMSA First B REMSA Only-Fire cxId
' Fire First B Fire Only-REMSA cxId
® Same Time # All Cancelled

-
EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 15



Section 5: EMS Oversight Program Accomplishments FY 15-16

Regional Omega Protocol

An Omega call is a type of 9-1-1 call which when evaluated through the Emergency Medical
Dispatch (EMD) process, is deemed as low-acuity non-emergent and an ambulance response is
not the most appropriate level of care. In 2011, the International Academy of Emergency
Dispatch (IAED) approved 200 Omega EMD determinant codes, these are calls with a chief
complaint such as a spider bite, headache, hiccups, cannot sleep, splinter, or nosebleed without
any other life-threatening symptoms present. About 150 of the 9-1-1 calls in this region are
categorized as Omega each month. The region recognized this was not best-practice or an
appropriate utilization of EMS resources. In June of 2015 the region’s EMS agencies met to
discuss the response protocol for Omega calls. After additional research, including discussions
with other jurisdictions that adopted alternative responses for Omega calls, and multiple
revisions to draft policy, the region’s Omega protocol was accepted by the EMS Advisory Board
on April 7, 2016 and approved by the District Board of Health on April 28, 2016 with an
implementation date of July 1, 2016.

The protocol approves 52 Omega EMD determinant codes to be transferred from the 9-1-1
system to the Nurse Health Line (NHL) for further assessment and evaluation to determine the
appropriate level of care for the patient. This increases the availability of the region’s EMS
resources allowing them to respond to higher acuity calls and reduces the burden on
emergency rooms, while still providing assessment and recommendations to the patient.

Revised REMSA Franchise Response Map

The REMSA Franchise response map delineates the time expectations for REMSA to respond to
9-1-1 calls in the Franchise service area. The process of reviewing and revising the REMSA map
began in February 2015, with regional meetings starting April 2015. EMS staff utilized a
contractor to assist the region in the development of a sound methodology and process for
developing a new REMSA Franchise response map. The methodology adopted by the region
was based on population density models with an overlay of call volume data for a 12 month
period of time. After incorporating quantitative data elements and evaluating several map
revisions, the regional EMS partner agencies met consensus on the newly developed REMSA
response map (Figure 4). The new map was approved by the EMS Advisory Board January,
2016, followed by approval from the District Board of Health February, 2016 effective July 1,
2016.

_——
EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 1b



Figure 4: REMSA Franchise Response Map Effective July 1, 2016

Response Zones

Zom E
Tabal Lands
.| Ranal Fice Bonndacy
.-\%‘ < 28 ) b} IDM
Cope

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 17



Figure 5: Map of REMSA’s Previous and Current Franchise Response Zones

F—
|

| T VI

1in =5 miles

——

Prrnind Lake N Pune fite

Previous REMSA Zones
CJa

Current REMSA Zones
[ lzZonea

[ zZoneB

.

[ __] Zone C

l__] Zone D
[ JzoneE
Washoe County

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 18



HeartSafe Community Designation

In 1991 the American Heart Association brought forth the concept of “Chain of Survival”, the
intention of which was to increase the survival rate of persons who are victims of sudden
cardiac arrest. Nevada Project Heartbeat developed a HeartSafe Community Program to
recoghize the collaborative efforts of organizations and agencies to enhance and improve their
pre-haspital system’s response to cardiac events.

The Washoe County EMS Oversight Program has been working with several partner agencies,
since November 2015, to develop a HeartSafe program and apply for Washoe County to be a
HeartSafe Community. Agencies involved include Renown, Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Fire
Department, Reno Fire Department, Sparks Fire Department, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District, Washoe County Sherriff’s Office, REMSA, American Red Cross, Reno Police Department,
and North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District. Although Incline Village had previously been
recognized as a HeartSafe Community, the partners thought it was prudent to submit an
application on behalf of the County.

The process of developing a HeartSafe Program involved assessing the number of and access to
automated external defibrillators (AED) and the number of residents who are trained and
certified in CPR. The HeartSafe Program works to improve all aspects of the 9-1-1 system, so
that pre-hospital care for a sudden cardiac arrest, including the initiation of CPR and
defibrillation by bystanders, can begin prior to the arrival of EMS providers.

Multi-Casualty Incident Plan (MCIP) Update

The MCIP was first created in 1986 in response to the Galaxy Airlines crash in Reno. The MCIP is
designed to provide the community with the District Board of Heath’s polices and guidelines for
response to an MCI. Since its inception, the MCIP has gone through seven revision cycles to
enhance the plan; the most recent occurred during fiscal year 2015-2016. For several months
EMS staff worked with regional agencies to update plan elements. The larger revisions
included:

o The development of a section on EMS Coverage for Mass Gatherings as mitigation planning

e The addition of American Burn Association information as an appendix {(general location of
burn beds and burn bed criteria)

e The creation of a Family Service Center (FSC) Annex

e The development of a pre-built communications plan (ICS 205)

e The enhancement of the section on mental health and stress management

e The creation of an executive level training on the MCIP

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 19



The District Board of Health heard a presentation on the revisions and approved the updates on
April 28, 2016 with an effective date of July 1, 2016.

MCIP Executive Training

As part of the MCIP revision process, regional agencies identified a gap in regional training on
the MCIP: most executive level personnel are familiar with the MCIP, but could benefit from a
brief training that covers the operational details of the plan. Program staff began development
of the MCIP executive level training to be offered during Fiscal Year 16-17. This training is
intended to be offered on an annual basis.

Nevada Statewide Medical Surge Plan

The Nevada Statewide Medical Surge plan was first written in 2008 and is an all-hazards
response plan that applies to all planned and unexpected events that may necessitate a surge
of hospital and other healthcare resources within Nevada. During Fiscal Year 2015-2016
stakeholders deemed it necessary to update the plan content as well as add regional/multi-
county response annexes. The West region plans include three annexes: medical surge, MCls
and healthcare evacuation.

The West region annexes were developed with the intention of having additional organization
when a response requires multiple counties and jurisdictions. The framework of the annexes
was based off Washoe County plans, but the content was modified for regional response and
coordination. The annex development culminated with a tabletop exercise to test capabilities,
strengths and possible improvements.

(B=———— = = == el S S e
EMS Uversight Program Y 15-16 Annual Report Page 20



Section 6: Partner Agency EMS Highlights & Accomplishments FY 15-16

Partner agencies provided their EMS related highlights for FY 15-16, which include
accomplishments such as increased capacity in terms of scope of work, increased staffing levels,
newly hired personnel, updates to protocol and equipment upgrades. These are instrumental in
assuring the best level of care is provided to the citizens and visitors of Washoe County.

S OF Rm
@ JP@
EST. 1888
FIRE DEPT

City of Reno Fire Department Highlights for FY 15-16

The Reno Fire Department responds to about 36,000 calls annually. Of those calls about 75%
are EMS.

In January 2016 Reno Fire Department hired EMS Chief Dennis Nolan to handle the EMS
Division, and was able to establish a standing EMS committee with a Department EMS training
center located at Station 11.

On January 8, 2016 Reno Fire Department began delivering ALS service for the first time in the
128 year history of the Department.

The Reno Fire Department hired 32 new recruits spread over two recruit academies. The first
academy started on January 4, 2016 and the second academy started April 18, 2016. All recruit
graduates are now line firefighters working for the Reno Fire Department.

The Department participated in the National Reading Month in March, reading to over 1,500
school children in the classroom.

The Reno Fire Department continued its participation with local charitable organizations
including Muscular Dystrophy Association {the Fill-the-Boot program), Northern Nevada
Children’s Cancer Foundation with the charitable fundraising dinner we call Natalia’s night and
Mom'’s on the Run, a local charitable organization that supports families and individuals
impacted by breast cancer.

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 21



The Department raised money for Breast Cancer awareness during October through the sale of
pink RFD duty shirts. The shirts were approved uniform shirts to be worn on-duty during
October.

At Christmas the Department again delivered the Sam Saibini Food Basket program which
provides food, free of charge, to underprivileged families in the region and also held the
Children’s Christmas Party for homeless children in Reno.

In early 2016, the Reno Fire Department began delivering EMS service utilizing a Medical
Response Unit (MRU) which provides an additional resource for the Department and allows for
flexible staffing.

The Department put two new fire engines in service during March 2016, with a third scheduled
to go into service.

The Department chaplain continued to deliver trauma intervention, resources and spiritual care
to employees and the public.

Along with the region, the Reno Fire Department completed the application to become a
HeartSafe Community.

e e e e e e e e —— = = — > — 1]
EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Anhual Report Page 22



City of Sparks Fire Department Highlights for FY 15-16

REMSA Response Map: the entire City of Sparks is now within the 8-minute response zone
after the Response Map revisions.

Implemented the Omega Response Protocols: In conjunction with regional partners,
developed the Omega response protocols allowing Ambulance and Fire Resources to
discontinue response to low acuity priority 3 medical complaints.

Developed a Refusal of Medical Assistance (RMA): Developed, delivered required training, and
implemented a Refusal of Medical Assistance procedure. This provides for better resource
management and proper patient refusal in minor vehicle accidents and falls resulting in lift
assists.

Completed Protocol Update: Updated protocols to reflect the recent changes in American
Heart Association guidelines, scope of practice changes that came with the transition to
Advanced EMT and other changes per medical direction.

Acquired and Renewed POD Endorsement for Numerous Personnel: The majority of SFD
personnel attended vaccination administration training in conjunction with the Washoe County
Health District. This cooperative effort allows SFD personnel to gain an additional endorsement
on their EMS license that permits them to assist the County in delivering needed vaccines
during public health emergencies. SFD personnel, in addition to other first responders,
exponentially expand the resource availability to the Health District during a time of need.

Implemented the NEV CORD Radio Frequency: Programed department radios to include the
NEV CORD frequency to be used to communicate with Air Ambulance resources.

Participated in NAC 450B Workshops and Hearings

Completed Comprehensive Study on the Need for Paramedic First-Tier Resources Within the
City of Sparks

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 23



WASHOE COUNTY, NV

FIRE
PROTECTION DIBTRICT

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Highlights for FY 15-16

Acquired Chest Compression Devices: Thanks to Commissioner Hartung, a chest compression
device was purchased with County funds and placed on the engine in Spanish Springs to
enhance cardiac arrest survival rates in that District. The District subsequently budgeted for
additional units to be placed on all 11 TMFPD engines in FY 16/17.

Staffed Gerlach and developed EMS transport procedures: Due to the resignation of several
volunteers in Gerlach, TMFPD assumed operations of that area on an interim basis until a long-
term plan could be developed and implemented. With approximately 2 weeks’ notice, TMFPD
was able to equip and staff a rescue and ambulance to service the region and provide ALS
ambulance transport. The service was successfully transferred to new County staff on 7/1/16.

Approved Division Chief of EMS for FY 16/17 Budget: With a growing demand for EMS services
and program support needs, the District created and funded a new Division Chief of EMS &
Training, approved May 2016. The District will recruit for the position in mid FY 16/17.

Acquired fiber optic intubation scopes: To enhance success rates during critical, advanced
airway placements, the District acquired fiber-optic video laryngoscopes. These tools allow for
Paramedics to more easily visualize the placement of advanced airways, leading to better
patient outcomes when successful.

Acquired intubation manikins for all stations: To further enhance advanced airway placement
success rates, every TMFPD station was provided with an advanced airway training manikin.
This allows crews to practice these critical skills on a daily basis.

Trained numerous personnel in vaccination administration: The majority of TMFPD personnel
attended vaccination administration training in conjunction with the Washoe County Health
District. This cooperative effort allows TMFPD personnel to gain an additional endorsement on
their EMS license that allows them to assist the County in delivering needed vaccines during
public health emergencies. TMFPD personnel, in addition to other first responders,
exponentially expand the resource availability to the Health District during a time of need.

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 24



65 Certified Paramedics now on staff: Over the course of the last several years, TMFPD has
continued to hire ALS personnel while existing ALS personnel have promoted to higher rank
positions. During March 2016 TMFPD hired six additional firefighter paramedics, bringing the
total to over 65 certified Paramedic§ on staff in various ranks which helps the District in all
levels of its ALS EMS service.

Developed a mutual aid agreement with REMSA for TMFPD’s ambulance: REMSA and TMFPD
have developed a mutual aid agreement that will utilize the TMFPD ambulance stationed in

Washoe Valley during MCI’s and/or when REMSA needs assistance in providing transport in the
South Valley’s.

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 25



mm

)
—= REMSA

REMSA'’s Agency Highlights for FY 15-16

Hours Added: Analysis of demand and implementation of the new response zone map led to
the addition of 240 Advanced Life Support unit hours per week. These additional hours have
been added to the system to increase the number of shift lines and staff available to the system
throughout the week.

Inter-facility System Growth: Growing demand and a dedication to utilizing appropriate
resources based on patient condition led to REMSA adding 144 Intermediate Life Support unit
hours. This increase ensured BLS and ILS transfers can be completed by an ILS transport staff,
increasing the availability of ALS units in the 911 system.

New Dedicated Posts: Two dedicated posts have been added to outlying areas in an effort to
provide services to growing and expanding population centers in the region. A 16-hour
dedicated post at Wedge Parkway and a 16-hour dedicated post in Spanish Springs were
implemented to better serve the expanding geographical population base of the Truckee
Meadows

Community Health: Began transitioning CHP programs from grant-based to sustainable models
with new Healthcare Partners and strategic relationships.

Omega Protocols: Implemented Omega Protocols with approval from all three jurisdictions as
well as the EMS Advisory Board and the District Board of Health. This agreement is part of
REMSA’s Community Health initiatives to get the right care to the right patients.

Communication Staff: Communication staff added to support the increase of requests specific
to handling Inter-facility transfers and to help ensure efficiency of the ILS transport systems.

Communication Center Accreditation: Successful reaccreditation of the REMSA Communication
Center by the International Academy of Emergency Dispatch Center of Excellence. This is
REMSA’s 15 year being an accredited Center of Excellence.

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 26



Mutual Aid: Initiated a new Mutual Aid Review Policy to ensure agreements are reviewed more
frequently. A Mutual Aid Agreement with Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District was also
completed and signed on June 28, 2016. Additionally, work began on establishing agreements
with Reno Fire Department and Pyramid Volunteer Fire and Rescue.

National Visitors: Hosted multiple tours of key external decision makers; Dean Heller, Reid's
staff, State Legislators, and representatives from the Center for Medicare innovation.

New Technology: Implemented Mobile Data Terminals in ambulances and supervisor vehicles
for improved routing, information sharing and digital communications. This new technology
allows crews access to more information about calls and increased communications with the
Communications Center.

Mission Life Line Silver Award: Awarded the Silver Mission Life Line Recognition in 2016 for
successfully managing and caring for STEMI patients in collaboration with all local hospitals
based on national criteria, see below.

Core Measures Quarter 1 | Quarter2 | Quarter3 | Quarter 4 Overall

Percentage of pts with non-
traumatic chest pain >35
treated and transported who 95% 95% 95% 92% 94.7%
received a pre-hospital 12
lead:

Percentage of STEMI pts
treated/transported to PCI
facility with first medical 100% 90% 80% 95.7% 92.2%
contact to device <90
minutes:

—_— Y
EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 27




Gerlach Volunteer Fire Department Highlights for FY 15-16

Gerlach Fire and EMS: The small department remained active in FFY-2016, thanks to assistance
from the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD). Due to a variety of factors, the
department was in transition. The first half of the year the station was staffed by volunteers
and the second half of the year the station was staffed by TMFPD.

However, it emerged stronger and more sustainable as a Combination Fire Department with
two full-time employees and two Intermittent Employees to form the nucleus of the revitalized
Department.

Volunteers are being recruited, and regular service calls are being conducted by the two
ambulances stationed at the Gerlach Department. The coverage area remains almost 5,000
square miles and the department averages about 50 calls per year, with call spikes during the
annual Burning Man festival.

Calls for service: During FFY-2016 the Gerlach Volunteer Fire Department or TMFPD, responded
to 71 calls for service within the Gerlach response area, of which 48% (34) were EMS.

T T e e . L —  — - e ————— =1
EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 28



Section 7: Goals for Next Fiscal Year

The following goals are areas which the EMS Oversight Program has been working towards for a
several months, however, they are expected to be in effect within the next fiscal year. The
Five-year Strategic Plan is a duty assigned by the ILA and was developed over much of FY 15-16
in collaboration with partner EMS agencies. The Program will also be working with EMS partner
agencies and regional hospitals to develop best practice methodology to evaluate patient
outcome data for future data reports.

Five-Year Strategic Plan

The Washoe County EMS Five-Year Strategic Plan began in August 2015 to guide the future
direction of the Washoe County EMS System. The strategic plan began with a collaborative
assessment to examine strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats facing the EMS
System fomnational, regional and local influences. The information obtained through the
analysis helped formulate goals to optimize the structure, processes, and outcomes of the EMS
Five-Year Strategic Plan, focusing on: 1) maintaining or improving clinical care and patient
satisfaction; and2) improving operational efficiency and collaboration across the region.

The strategic plan provides Washoe County’s EMS System’s mission, vision, values, goals and
objectives to be accomplished by 2021. The following six goals are outlined in the plan and are
as follows:

Goal 1: Enhance utilization of EMS resources by matching the appropriate services, as defined
by the call for service, through alternative protocols, service options and transportation options
by October 7, 2021.

Goal 2: Improve pre-hospital EMS performance by reducing system response times through the
use of technology and the development of regional response policies by December 31, 2022.

Goal 3: Improve communications between EMS partners through enhanced usage of
technology and the development of regional guidelines by June 30, 2021.

Goal 4: Improve continuity of care through regional processes that ensure patient information
transfers from the scene to the hospital by December 31, 2018.

Goal 5: Design an enhanced EMS response system through effective regional protocols and
quality assurance by December 31, 2018.

Goal 6: Continue collaborative models with regional EMS agencies, health organizations and
public safety stakeholders.

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 29



Patient Outcome Data

As identified in the Program’s FY 14-15 Annual Report, focusing on the relationship between
the two-tiered response system is an isolated review of the EMS system performance and
patient outcome data should be included for evaluating performance of prehospital care.
Promoting a high-quality level of patient care is a priority of all EMS partner agencies. Currently
our region’s EMS providers are not formally informed of patient outcomes after the responders
are cleared from the scene or complete the patient transport to the emergency room.

While all 9-1-1 calls are deemed important, there are a few select conditions which national
guidelines recommend a rapid response time from emergency responders; these include the
following types of calls:

Cardiac arrest: An electrical malfunction of the heart, resulting in an ineffective
heartbeat, or complete lack of heart beat. Often occurs without an early onset of
warning symptoms. When the heart’s electrical pulse is disrupted, the blood flow to the
rest of the body stops, this causes the victim to become unconscious, resulting in death
within minutes.

ST-elevation myocardial infarction (STEMI): Specific type of heart attack in which the
blood flow to a portion of the heart is blocked. The heart is a muscle and if an artery
providing oxygen-rich blood is blocked for prolonged periods of time that section of the
heart will begin to die. Heart attack symptoms may occur suddenly, however many
heart attacks occur slowly over a period of days or even weeks.

Stroke: Occurs when a blood vessel carrying blood to the brain is blocked or ruptures,
resulting in lack of blood to that area of the brain which in turn causes brain tissue and
cells to die. Strokes impact people differently depending on which area of the brain the
blockage or rupture occurred and the extent of tissue death.

Obtaining patient outcomes from regional hospitals allows EMS providers, including
dispatchers, to effectively evaluate dispatch pre-arrival instructions as well as patient care
provided on scene and en route to the hospital. This will help to ensure an accurate patient
assessment is occurring and the prehospital treatment is appropriate. Measuring patient
outcomes is instrumental to evaluate the effectiveness of prehospital protocol and procedures.
The Program’s goal is to work with the EMS partner agencies and hospitals to further identify
patient conditions to analyze and ensure the appropriate data are gathered to effectively assess
pre-hospital patient care.

EMS Oversight Program FY 15-16 Annual Report Page 30



TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

NATHOY COUNTY, NN

FADTECTION O TYRICT

S'I.‘AFF REPORT Fir‘; ﬁ:ﬁ;&‘g}
Board Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 Legalie. s
Risk M gt%
DATE: December 1, 2016 HR YAk
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Mary C. Walker, CPA District Financial Consultant

THROUGH: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

SUBJECT: Review and acceptance of the Sierra Fire Protection District’s Audited Financial
Statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016. (All Commission Districts)

SUMMARY ¢

Please find attached the Sierra Fire Protection District's financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016 which were audited by Eide Bailly LLP. The auditor's opinion of the financial statements
is an "unqualified" opinion which means the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the District's governmental activities and each major fund of the
District as of June 30, 2016.

The auditors have stated in the report the auditors found the District conformed to all significant
statutory constraints on its financial administration during the year and that there were no material
weaknesses. The auditors did note one significant deficiency regarding the financial statement
preparation. Due to limited staffing in the administration of the District and the added staff time to
prepare both the SFPD and TMFPD financial statements, it was determined that contracting with Eide
Bailly LLP for the preparation of the financial statements and the related statement disclosures provided
the best cost benefit to the District. For the future, with the consolidation of the SFPD and the TMFPD,
only one set of financial statements will be required to be prepared. This will provide more staff time
for staff to prepare the financial statements and related disclosures. In addition, with the hiring of a new
Fiscal Officer, this will provide the District the opportunity to hire the staff necessary to prepare the
financial statements internally.

It is recommended the Sierra Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners accept the District’s
Audited Financial Statements for FY'15-16.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Sustainability of our financial, social and natural
resources.

PREVIOUS ACTION

None

BACKGROUND

The highlights of the Sierra Fire Protection District's Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year
Ended June 30, 2016 are as follows:

AGENDA ITEM # 6



BOFC Meeting, December 13, 2016
Page 2 of 2

General Fund:

The General Fund's fund balance as of June 30, 2016 was $2,096,972, an increase of $273,923 or 15%
from the prior year. The increase was caused by revenues exceeding expenditures due to one-time
budgeted capital projects that were not yet completed. The total fund balance of $2,096,972 equates to
30.6% or nearly four months’ worth of expenditures.

In FY 15-16, the total General Fund expenditures were $6,849,553 of which $6,681,780 was payment to
the TMFPD for fire administration and operations. The total expenditures were under budget by
$699,337 or by 10.2% primarily due to not expending the capital budget.

In FY 15-16, the General Fund revenues and other sources exceeded budget by $61,141 or by .9%.

Wildland Fire Emergency Fund:

The Wildland Fire Emergency Fund was established to fund the District's emergency and wildland fire
liability. As of June 30, 2016, the fund balance was $640,386. This fund balance was carried forward to
the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District in FY 16-17 to allow for District funding for the cost of
future wildland fires and other emergencies.

Conclusion

The Sierra Fire Protection District is financially sound as of June 30, 2016. The consolidated operations
of the District with the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District have culminated in administrative and
operational savings and the District’s finances are stable.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

RECOMMENDATION

To accept the Sierra Fire Protection District's Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ended
June 30, 2016.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation a possible motion would be:

“I move to accept the Sierra Fire Protection District's Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year
ended June 30, 2016.”



Pt _‘?i
EideBailly.
\ <
CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS
November 11, 2016

To the Honorable Board of Fire Commissioners
Sierra Fire Protection District
Reno, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of Sierra
Fire Protection District for the year ended June 30, 2016. Professional standards require that we provide
you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of
our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter to you dated February 26,
2016. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related
to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Sierra Fire Protection District are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. The District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72,
Fair Value Measurement and Application. Accordingly, Note 3 to the financial statements has been
updated to categorize the District’s investments using the fair value measurements based on the hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles and the related valuation methods have been
disclosed. No other new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2016. We noted no transactions entered into by Sierra Fire Protection District during the
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the District’s financial statements
were:

Management’s estimate of the actuarial accrued liability for other post-employment benefits is
based on a third party actuarial valuation. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the actuarial accrued liability for postemployment benefits in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:

The disclosure of the District’s participation in the Washoe County OPEB Trust, as
described in Note 5 to the financial statements.

WWW, .com
5441 Kielzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 89511.2094 | T775.689.9100 | F775,689.9299 | ECE



The disclosure of the District’s participation in the Interlocal Agreement for Fire Services
and Consolidation of the Districts as described in Note 1 to the financial statements,

The disclosure of the District’s consolidation with Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District,
effective July 1, 2016, as described in Note 8 to the financial statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. Management has corrected all such
misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s
financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated November 11, 2016.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants,

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.



Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Schedule of
Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits, which are required supplementary information (RSI)
that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Fire Commissioners and management of
the District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties,

Very truly yours,

&M L7

Reno, Nevada



Sierra Fire Protection District
June 30, 2016




Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Sierra Fire Protection District

| www.eidebailly.com



Sierra Fire Protection District

Table of Contents
June 30,2016
Independent Auditor’s Report. cuumsissssbiasiiiraississicssiisitisesis st s ot s et s st s s oot e b T Ao asan i
Management's Discussion and ANALYSIS .......cc..cuvieveiriiiciiieesieciesesisssereesesssesesmimsssessasssssssessssssssesens ssesassssssessssesssens 3
Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement Of NEt POSIION .......ccvciviriiiiiriiincieiieitnsies it rensratssssees e e e ssssessars seseresssstsrissiessmsstesenearssonsessessanss 9

SEAtEMENT Of ACHIVIEIES . c1.uveireeieeeerseesesseneersrssreesessrssnesseesrnsssessesssnnssnrnessssssessensassessersaessssassessesnnsssesssssssssasnannersoes 1O

Fund Financial Statements

Balance Sheet — GOVErNMENTAL FUINMS .........ooiiiieiiiiiiiiiieis i ie e eeeeesies e s sesessseba et semesmestestesssmesnssemsaeasesennassenenes 11
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position ...........c.ccevvevnens 12
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds.............cc.coueie. 13
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental

Funds t0 the StAtemMEnt Of ACTIVITIES ....ocvee i iviieiieierieiisisetsessssesssesesesaeessssanenssesseesesssessasnsessseaassssessasssssssssasssssness 14

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — General Fund... 15
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — Wildland Fire

Emergency ReESEIVE FUNM ....uiiiiriviniiiiiiiniii it s eve s be e s snesssasssssbesssenssssussanssssasssassssessnssesans 16
Notes to Financial Statements..........ccviuaerieriinisicrniiesisisissiseissesesaesseesssssssssssassessasssassessasseneeseassarsssenssessnssesese 11

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits ............ccocvieiieinniniieieeeieseesssiecscie e 29
Notes to Required Supplementary INfOrMation .......uiiciiciiciouiiiiiiiiiiisiiiniieiissoseiosis oo saseessssssssssesssssessassrsssiesass 30

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards......31

Compliance Section
Schedule of FINAINgs and RESPOMSES ......c.vivieiiemeienriiriieiirineiiseississasiesaesas s ressesssesssasesssesesssssesassssesessssssesssssenns 33

AUAIEOI’S COMMENES ......cveeversiirirraeeseersanetssenreerasoserseimrssstsssassinmessomreste anesesestsssantsmesntassasssessessestessessesaserssesessssessens 34



EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Board of Fire Commissioners
Sierra Fire Protection District
Reno, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major
fund of Sierra Fire Protection District (the District) (a component unit of Washoe County, Nevada) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively

Anannsmninn tha TUntkwAtla lhnnin fliannmninl fbnbnannmtn nn linkad (ot talhln AF nnmbnnén

TUARARA AU SIAW A ALTIATL L LAY LAIALGIAWALA WLLALWASAWEALL ML AIULWLS 461 LiIn WMALAW UL Wi iilwisoiss

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€rTor,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

WWW, .com
5441 Kietzke Ln,, Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 895112094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the District as of June
30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and the respective budgetary comparisons for
the General Fund and the Wildland Fire Emergency Reserve Fund for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the schedule of funding progress on pages 3-8 and 29 respectively, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements, Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 11,
2016, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

C;«Mxm"

Reno, Nevada
November 11, 2016



Sierra Fire Protection District

Management’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2016

As management of the Sierra Fire Proleclion District's (the District) finances, we offer readers of the
District's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the District's governmental activities exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by $4,088,643 which includes $4,151,815 net investment in capital assets,
$640,386 which is restricted for wildland fire emergencies and ($703,558) which is the unrestricted
net position. Governmental activities includes all funds of the District.

e For fiscal year 2016, the District's Government Wide revenues were $7,114,596 while the total
expenses were $7,553,367 for a net decrease in Net Position of $438,771 primarily caused by an
increase in the OPEB liability.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $2.737.358. an increase of $158.923 or 6.2% in comparison with the orior
year. This increase was caused by an increase in revenues caused by the economic recovery.

e On April 1, 2012, the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District took over the administration and
operations of the Sierra Fire Protection District through an Interlocal Agreement. The Sierra Fire
Protection District paid the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District $6,681,780 for this service in
fiscal year 2016.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial
statements. The District's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business. ’

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating. Total assets of the District at June 30, 2016 were $6,937,852 with capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, accounting for $4,151,815 of that total. Of the total liabilities of $2,849,209
approximately 99.7% represent liabilities related to long-term liabilities of the District, Total net
position decreased by $438,771 primarily due to the increase in OPEB liability.



Sierra Fire Protection District
Management’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2016

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). Total revenues for the year ended
June 30, 2016 were $7,114,596 consisting primarily of property taxes and intergovernmental revenues
while total expenses were $7,553,367. This resulted in a decrease in net position of $438,771.

Both of the government-wide financial statements show the public safety function of the District, which
is principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities). All
governmental activities of the District are included in the public safety function since the District is a
single-purpose entity.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9 and 10 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District fall into the governmental funds category.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-tcrm
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and the Wildland Fire Emergency Reserve Fund,
both of which are considered to be major funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for each fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget. The
governmental fund financial statements, the reconciliations to the government-wide financial statements,
and budgetary comparisons can be found on pages 11-16 of this report.



Sierra Fire Protection District
Management’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2016

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential (o a [ull
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 17-28 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position.

Sierra Fire Protection District’s Net Position

Governmental Activities
2016 2015
Current and other assets $2,786,037 $2.626,855
Capital assets 4,151,815 4,375,046
Total Assets $6.937.852 $7.001,901

Other liabilities 0,427 288
Long-term liabilities 2,839,782 2,474,199

Total Liabilities 2.849.209 2,474,487
Net Position:
Investment in capital assets 4,151,815 4,375,046
Resltricted 640,386 755,386
Unrestricted (703.558) (603,018)

Total Net Position $4.088.643 $4.527.414

The assets of the District's governmental activities exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $4,088,643. The net position includes the District's net investment in capital assets (e.g.,
vehicles and equipment). There was no debt related to capital assets outstanding at June 30, 2016. The
net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2016, was $4,151,815 a decrease of $223,231 from the
prior year primarily due to the depreciation of capital assets. The District uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

An additional portion of the District’s net position (15.7%) represents resources for wildland fire
emergencies that is subject to external restrictions on how it may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net position was ($703,558).

At the end of the fiscal year, the District is able to report positive balances in two of the three categories
of net position. The negative unrestricted net position is caused by the District's OPEB Liability.



Sierra Fire Protection District

Management’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2016

Sierra Fire Protection District’s Changes in Net Position

Revenues:

General revenues:
Property taxes $5,287,487 $5,053,035
Consolidated taxes 1,439,971 1,305,581
Other taxes 300,136 273,556
Reimbursements - 383,620
Unrestricted investment

earnings 64,676 24,574

| Other 22.326 16,159

| Total revenues 7,114,596 7,056,525

Expenses:
Public safety 7,553,367 7,256,206

Change in net position (438,771) (199,681)
Net position, July 1 4,727,095

Net position, July 30 ¢

Total Revenues. The District's total revenues increased by $58,071, or 1%, in essence relatively flat
from the prior year.

Total Expenses. The District's total expenses increased by $297,161, or by 4%, which reflected an
inflationary expenditure increase.

Net Position. The District's total net position decreased by $438,771 during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2016. This decrease was primarily caused by the increase in the OPEB liability.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
District's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.



Sierra Fire Protection District
Management’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30,2016

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $2,737,358, an increase of $158,923 or 6% in comparison with the prior year. This
increase was primarily caused by an increase in general revenue. The District's combined governmental
fund balances consist of the fund balances of the General Fund and the Wildland Fire Emergency
Reserve Fund.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the
fund balance for the General Fund was $2,096,972, an increase of $273,923, or 15% from the prior year.
The increase was caused primarily by an increase in general revenues. The total fund balance was an
assigned fund balance.

As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the June 30, 2016 fund
balance of $2,096,972 to fund expenditures. This fund balance represents 31% of total General Fund
expenditures. This represents nearly 4 months® worth of expenditures. This fund balance will give the
District's General Fund the required cash flow to help meet its operational obligations in the upcoming
year.

The Wildland Fire Emergency Reserve Fund (NRS 474.200) fund balance is due to the District's
accumulation of financial resources to fund the cost of suppressing future large unforeseen wildland
fires. This reserve provides additional financial stability to the District. At June 30, 2016, the fund
balance of the Wildland Fire Emergency Reserve Fund was $640,386.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital assets. The District's net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2016, amounts to
$4,151,815 (net of accumulated depreciation). This net investment in capital assets includes fire stations,

vehicles and equipment. For more information see Note 4.

Long-term debt. At the end of the fiscal year, the District had no bonded debt outstanding,



Sierra Fire Protection District
Management’s Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2016

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

Nevada's local governments rely heavily on sales tax as a primary revenue source. Washoe County's
taxable sales reflect the current recovery of the U.S. and Nevada economy and compares favorably
to Statewide and Clark County for fiscal year 2016 as demonstrated below.

Percentage Increase (Decrease) in Taxable Sales Over Prior Year

Fiscal Year
Entity 2013 2014 2015 2016
Statewide 5.2% 4.9% 7.1% 4.8%
Clark County 4.8% 7.6% 6.3% 4.7%
Washoe County 5.5% 9.4% 12.2% 10.7%

Washoe County’s taxable gaming revenues showed some growth with a 4.7% increase in fiscal year
2016 over the prior year which demonstrates the Northern Nevada economic recovery. Clark County
saw a 1% increase over the prior year and the State of Nevada saw a 1.14% increase. The taxable
gaming revenue trend reflects the modest national and statewide economic recovery.

The. June 2016 unemployment rate in Washoe County was 5.9% which compares favorably to the
June 2015 unemployment rate of 6.4%. Washoe County’s June 2016 unemployment rate of 5.9% is
more favorable than the Clark County unemployment rate of 6.9%. The statewide unemployment
rate was 6.8% at June 30, 2016 which compares slightly more favorably to the 6.9% statewide
unemployment rate at June 30, 2015.

The SFPD increase in assessed valuation over the past two years demonstrates the District's recovery
from the Great Recession. Due to the recession, in FY 12, the District experienced an 8.26%
decrease in assessed valuation followed by a 3.28% decrease FY 13 and a .6% decrease in FY 14
However, with the economic recovery, the District's assessed value increased by 9.14% in FY 15
and experienced another strong increase of 9.95% in FY 16.

These factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2017 fiscal year,

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances for all those with
an interest in the District's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Truckee Meadows/Sierra Fire
Protection District, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 89512,



Sierra Fire Protection District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Due from other governments
Interest receivable
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilitics
Accounts payable
Noncurrent liabilities
Other postemployment benefits

Total liabilities

I\'UI: ?Ub;i‘lull
Investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Wildland fire emergencies
Unrestricted

Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

Governmental
Activities

$ 2,383,608

49,099

346,933

6,397

172,114

3,979,701

6,937,852

9,427
2,839,782

2,849,209

4,151,815

640,386
(703,558)

$ 4,088,643



Sierra Fire Protection District

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Capital Operating
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities
Governmental activities
Public safety $ 7.553.367 $ - $ e $ - $ (7.553,367)

General Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Consolidated taxes
SCCRT-AB 104
Real property transfer tax-AB 104
Licenses and permits
Unrestricted investment earnings

Total general revenues
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

5,287,487
1,439,971
300,136
14,246
8,080
64,676

7,114,596
(438,771)
4,527,414

$ 4,088,643

—_—

10



Sierra Fire Protection District

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
June 30, 2016

Wildland Total
General Fire Emergency Governmental
Fund Reserve Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 1,743,222 $ 640,386 $ 2,383,608
Taxes receivable 49,099 - 49,099
Due from other governments 346,933 - 346,933
Interest receivable 6,397 - 6,397
Total assets $ 2,145,651 $ 640,386 $ 2,786,037
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 9,427 $ - $ 9,427
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 39,252 - 39,252
Fund Balances
Restricted - 640,386 640,386
Assigned 2,U90,9 /2 - 2,U90,9 /2
2,096,972 640,386 2,737,358
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 2,145,651 $ 640,386 $ 2.786,037

See Notes to Financial Statements 11



Sierra Fire Protection District

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30,2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Total fund balances - total government funds $ 2,737,358

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore
are not reported in the funds.

Governmental capital assets 6,404,735
Less accumulated depreciation (2,252,920)
4,151,815
Deferred inflows of resources are not available to fund current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are not reported as revenue in the funds. 39,252
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.
Other postemployment benefits (2,839,782)
Net position of governmental activities $ 4,088,643

See Notes to Financial Statements 12



Sierra Fire Protection District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures
Public safety
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund balances, beginning or ¥ ear

Fund Balances, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

Wildland Total
General Fire Emergency Governmental

Fund Reserve Fund Funds
5,296,367 $ - $ 5,296,367
8,080 - 8,080
1,754,353 - 1,754,353
64,676 - 64,676
7,123,476 - 7,123,476
6,806,140 115,000 6,921,140
43,413 - 43,413
6,849,553 115,000 6,964,553
273,923 (115,000) 158,923
1,523,049 /133,380 2,158,433
2,096,972 $ 640,386 $ 2,737,358

13



Sierra Fire Protection District

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Activities

June 30, 2016
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 158,923
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlay in the current period. (223,231)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds.
Change in deferred inflows of resources (8,880)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds.

Change in postemployment benefits

Change in net position of governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements

(365,583)

$

(438,771)

14



Sierra Fire Protection District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual —
General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes
Ad valorem, general $ 5,209,250 $ 5,209,250 $ 5,234,658 $ 25,408
Ad valorem, AB 104 60,050 60,050 61,709 1,659
Licenses and permits
Gaming, AB 104 2,500 2,500 8,080 5,580
Intergovernmental
Consolidated taxes 1,331,415 1,331,415 1,439,971 108,556
Real property transfer tax,
AB 104 9,500 9,500 14,246 4,746
Supplemental city/county
relief tax, AB 104 257,472 257,472 300,136 42,664
Interlocal agreement, fire
suppression 153,148 153,148 - (153,148)
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings 24,000 24,000 36,434 12,434
Net increase in the fair
value of investments - - 28,242 28,242
Reimbursements 15,000 15,000 - (15,000)
Total revenues 7,062,335 7,062,335 7,123,476 61,141
Expenditures
Public safety function
Fire
Services and supplies 7,048,890 7,048,890 6,806,140 242,750
Capital outlay 500,000 500,000 43,413 456,587
Total expenditures 7,548,890 7,548,890 6,849,553 699,337
Net Change in Fund Balance (486,555) (486,555) 273,923 760,478
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,685,296 1,685,296 1,823,049 100,598
Fund Balance, End of Year 5 1,198,741 $ 1,198,741 $ 2,096,972 $ 861,076

See Notes to Financial Statements 15



Sierra Fire Protection District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual —

Wildland Fire Emergency Reserve Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Expenditures
Public safety function
Fire

Services and supplies  § 645,000 $ 645,000 115,000 $ 530,000

Net Change in Fund Balances (645,000) (645,000) (115,000) 530,000

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 755,386 755,386 755,386 -

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 110,386 $ 110,386 640,386 $ 530,000
See Notes to Financial Statements 16



Sierra Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

Sierra Fire Protection District (the “District”) is a municipality of the State of Nevada located in Washoe County,
Nevada. The District is governed by the Board of Fire Commissioners. The Washoe County Board of County
Commissioners functions as the Board of Fire Commissioners of the District.

The District became a component unit of Washoe County (the “County”) effective July 1, 2006. At that time,
expenditure responsibility was transferred under an interlocal agreement from the State of Nevada to the new
Sierra Fire Protection District under the governance of the Washoe County Commissioners acting as the Sierra
Fire Protection District Board of Directors. Although the District is a legally separate organization, the County
was financially accountable, as defined in governmental accounting standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, for Sierra Fire Protection District. Financial accountability was determined primarily by the
Board of County Commissioners' participation as the governing body of the District. As of July 1, 2012, the
County has no financial benefit or burden relationship with the District and, as such, the District has been
reclassified from a blended component unit to a discretely presented component unit.

An ~L8T0o. 1 ANND 1. - TN i D : arc AIM A AN T ™ . T
430 VL oMLY 13 LVVU, LAV ulauuﬂ. Waos luulsmllavu LOULL GIL ININD /0 1 MG L IULCbuUu umu l\.«l. wan 1‘1\0 "fl“t puuut_y

Fire Protection District, thereby creating a new government. An NRS 473 Fire District is designed for wildland
protection through the management of the State of Nevada while an NRS 474 Fire District is a local government
with authority for ad valorem tax collection under the management of the District’s Fire Chief and the Board of
Fire Commissioners.

As of April 1, 2012, an Interlocal Agreement for Fire Services and Consolidation (Agreement) became effective
for the District and the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District. Under the Agreement, the two Fire Districts
consolidated fire department administration and operations, although the two Fire Districts remain legally
separate governmental entities. The major points of the Agreement in effect as of April 1, 2012 are listed below:

e The District will continue to levy taxes and make equal monthly installments to the Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District to fund its portion of the Consolidated Budget.

o All District employees became employees of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District. All sick leave
and vacation hours accrued by the District at the time of transfer to the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District transferred with District employees. Health insurance and workers' compensation benefits are paid
by the District through the Consolidated Budget.

» The District retained its interest in and ownership of real property, with the Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District maintaining such property. The District has retained ownership of equipment and rolling
stock. All real and personal property are insured by the District. The cost of replacement of such property is
the District's responsibility. The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District has assumed normal
maintenance and repair of such items.

* The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District provides comprehensive general liability insurance for all
claims arising out of acts or omissions of personnel; the District continues coverage for the actions of the
District Board of Fire Commissioners.

e Dispatch services are provided to both Fire Districts by the Washoe County Sheriff's Department.

e Other costs paid by the District include debt service, independent contractors hired by the District, actuarial
studies, annual audits, retiree health costs, wildland fire emergency expenditures and any other costs needed
to sustain a local government.

17



Sierra Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report
information about the activities of the District. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the public safety function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The fund financial statements provide information about the funds of the District. The two major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modificd accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Governmental funds report
deferred inflows of resources in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to
liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also report deferred inflows of resources in
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. Expenditures generally are recorded when
the related liabilities are incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures related to other
postemployment benefits are recorded only when payment is due.

The District initially utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities prior to unrestricted resources,
which are utilized as they are needed.

Property taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenues, and interest earnings associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by
the District.

18



Sierra Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Wildland Fire Emergency Reserve Fund, a special revenue fund, was created pursuant to Nevada
Revised Statutes to account for the cost of unforescen large wildland fire emergencies. Board committed
property taxes and fire reimbursements from other governmental agencies qualify this fund for reporting as
a special revenue fund.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Sierra Fire Protection District adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act incorporated within the
statutes of the State of Nevada, which include the following major procedures to establish the budgetary data,
which is reflected in these financial statements:

1.

A
—

On or before April 15, the Board of Fire Commissioners files a tentative budget with the Nevada
Department of Taxation for all funds.

..k L,.....'..N- ROE IR P DD R S I PRIt PSS | Ry FOpRL IR [ N SRR, D 4L H
4 LUV UV IS0 VAL GLIV LWL Y W UUMEVL WLV 1IVIM UL LIy Wil uLuuua_y 181 J.\uu'y 1 \.;vuJ (IR vvu,u

Washoe County's budget hearing.

Prior to June 1, at a public hearing, the Board indicates changes, if any, to be made to the tentative
budget and adopts a final budget by the favorable vote of a majority of the members of the Board.
The final budget must then be forwarded to the Nevada Department of Taxation for compliance with
laws and regulations. In any year in which legislative action, which was not anticipated, affects the
local government's final budget, the Board may file an amended final budget within 30 days of
adjournment of the legislative session.

Formal budgetary integration in the financial records of all funds is employed to enhance
management control during the year. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the year.
Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 354.598005 the person designated to administer the budget may
transfer appropriations within any function. Budget amounts between functions within a fund may be
transferred if the governing body is advised of the action at the next regular meeting and the action is
recorded in the official minutes of the meeting. Transfer of appropriations between funds or from the
contingency account or budget augmentations in excess of original budgetary amounts may not be
made without prior approval of the Board of Fire Commissioners, following a scheduled and noticed
public hearing, as necessary.

In accordance with state statute, actual expenditures generally may not exceed budgetary
appropriations of the public safety function of the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund.

Cash Deposited and Invested with Washoe County Treasurer

The majority of all cash transactions of the District are handled by the Washoe County Treasurer's office. Cash
balances are combined and, to the extent practicable, invested as permitted by law in combination with Washoe
County funds.

19



Sierra Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Taxes Receivable

Real property taxes receivable reflect only those taxes receivable from the delinquent roll years. Delinquent taxes
from all roll years prior to 2013-2014 have been written off. No provision for uncollectible accounts has been
established since management does not anticipate any material collection loss in respect to the remaining
balances.

Personal property taxes receivable reflect only those taxes management believes to be collectible.

Amounts not collected within 60 days after year-end have been recorded as deferred inflows of resources at the
government fund level.

Receivables

Management does not anticipate any material collection losses in respect to the receivable balances.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings and building improvements, and vehicles and
equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial statements, Capital assets are defined by the District as
assets with an initial individual cost of $10,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset's life are not
capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the District are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 20 years
Building and building improvements 20-40 years
Vehicles and equipment 3-15 years

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet may report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents and
acquisition of fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The District recognizes deferred inflows of resources as it relates to property
taxes.

Fund Equity

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as Net Position and displayed in three
components:

20



Sierra Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2016

Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets, if any.

Restricted net position — consists of net position with constraints placed on its use either by (1) external groups
such as creditors, contributors, or laws or regulations; (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Unrestricted net position — all other net position that does not meet the definition of restricted or net investment in
capital assets.

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are ¢lassified based primarily on the extent to which
the District is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of resources in the fund. The nonspendable fund
balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form. The
restricted fund balance occurs when constraints arc placcd on the usc of resources cxternally (such as through debt
covenants or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation). For the District, the restricted fund balance consists of assets restricted by Nevada Revised
Statutes for emergency resoulces The assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the

TN 4t oad L. L ~_ ~a ™ I3
Lridion’ 5 uuvut [V uavu s op\.»\.alllv puLpuoud auu \JUILDIDLD Ul v Ulbu 1\4!. B wluuluunauucb ad a.lJlJlUVUU U_y e

Board of Fire Commissioners and the amount of fund balance to be expended in the ensuing fiscal year as
approved by the Board of Fire Commissioners. The remaining fund balance is shown as unassigned. When
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any unrestricted fund balance classifications could be
used, committed funds are to be spent first, assigned funds second, and unassigned funds last.

Property Taxes

All real property in the District is assigned a parcel number in accordance with state law, with each parcel being
subject to physical reappraisal every five years. A factoring system is used to adjust the appraised value during the
years between physical appraisals. The valuation of the property and its improvements is being assessed at 35
percent of "taxable value" as defined by statute. The amount of tax levied is determined by multiplying the
assessed value by the tax rate applicable to the area in which the property is located. The maximum tax rate was
established in the State Constitution at $5 per $100 of assessed valuation; however, as a result of the legislative
action the tax rate was further limited to $4.50 per $100 of assessed valuation except in cases of severe financial
emergency as defined in NRS 354.705 or as a result of the State of Nevada rate.

Taxes on real property are a lien on the property and attach on July 1 of the year for which the taxes are levied.

Taxes may be paid in four installments payable on the third Monday in August, and the first Mondays in October,
January, and March, to the Treasurer of Washoe County. Penalties are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an
installment within ten days of the installment due date. After a two-year waiting period, if taxes remain unpaid, a
tax deed is issued conveying the property to the County with a lien for back taxes and accumulated charges.
Redemption may be made by the owner and such persons as described by statute by paying all back taxes and
accumulated penalties, interest, and costs before sale.

Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out annually and the

tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department of Taxation and tax rates
described above.

21



Sierra Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2016

The major classifications of personal property are commercial and mobile homes. In Washoe County, taxes on
motor vehicles are collected by a State agency and remitted to the local governments in the County as part of the
Consolidated Tax distribution.

Implementation of GASB Statement No. 72

As of July 1, 2015, the Sierra Fire Protection District adopted GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement
and Application. The implementation of this standard requires governments to measure investments at fair value.
The additional disclosures required by this standard are included in Note 3.

Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances includes a
reconciliation between net change in fund balances — total governmental funds and change in net position -
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains "Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures while the Statement of
Activities allocates the cost of those assets over their estimated useful lives and reports depreciation expense."
The details of the $223,230 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 43,413
Less amounts not capitalized (33,884)
Less depreciation expense (232,760)

Net adjustment to decrease net change in fund balances -
governmental funds to arrive at change in net position -
governmental activities $  (223,231)

Note2 - Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative Code

The District conformed to all significant statutory and administrative code constraints on its financial
administration during the year.

Note3- Cash and Investments

Fair Value Measurements

Investments are measured at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value measurements are those that
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net position
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to

measure an asset’s fair value: Level | inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

22



Sierra Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

The District participates in the Washoe County Investment Pool (WCIP). The Washoe County Board of County
Commissioners administers and is responsible for the WCIP in accordance with NRS 355.175. The investment
pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Public Financial Management, LLC determines
the fair value of the investment pool monthly. Washoe County has not provided or obtained any legally binding
guarantees during the audit period to support these values. Each participant’s share is equal to their investment
plus or minus their pro-rata portion of monthly interest income and realized and unrealized gains/losses. The
related fair value is determined as follows:

June 30, 2016
Fair Value Level 2
Washoe County Investment Pool $ 2,383,608 § 2,383,608

Credit Risk

Fixed income securities are subject to credit risk. Credit risk refers to the risk that a borrower will default on debt
by failing to make required payments. The District does not hold any such investments directly, but participates in
the WCIP. The WCIP is unrated by recognized statistical rating agencies.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that an entity’s deposits, which are in the possession of an outside party, will not
be returned to the entity if the counterparty fails. The District is a participant in the WCIP. Balances in the WCIP
are covered by one or more of the following: Federal depository insurance, the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation, collateral held by the District’s agent in the District’s name, or by collateral held by depositories in
the name of the Nevada Collateral Pool, and the balances arc not exposcd to custodial credit risk.

23



Sierra Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 4 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Governmental Activities Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 121,000 $ - $ - $ 121,000
Construction in progress 41,585 9,529 - 51,114
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 162,585 9.529 - 172,114
Capital assets, being depreciated
Land improvements 24,105 - . 24,105
Buildings and building
improvements 2,901,259 - - 2,901,259
Vehicles and equipment 3,307,257 - - 3,307,257
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 6,232,621 = - 6,232,621
Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements (8,881) (1,269) (10,150)
Buildings and building
improvements (312,095) (79,946) (392,041)
Vehicles and equipment (1.699.184) (151,545) (1,850,729)
Total accumulated
depreciation (2,020,160) (232.760) - (2,252.920)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 4.212,461 (232,760) - 3.979.701
Governmental activities capital
assets, net $ 4,375,046 $ (223,231) $ - $ 4,151,815

The increase in accumulated depreciation includes depreciation expense of $232,760 charged to the public safety
function,

24



Sierra Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 5- Postemployment Health Care Benefits
Plan Description

The District provides health insurance benefits to eligible retired employees who transferred from State service on
July 1, 2006 or transferred from District service to the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District in fiscal year
2011-2012. As of April 1, 2012, all District employees transferred to the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District under the terms of an Interlocal Agreement for Fire Services and Consolidation between the two Districts.
The health insurance benefits are through the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Retiree Group Medical
Plan, however, the liability for the payment for these retiree health benefits is retained by each District. The plan
is a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan. As of June 30, 2016, there were
five employees participating in the plan who retired from the District. The District pays pre-funding of the service
costs or other associated costs of the future obligation of health benefits to retiring District employees. As of July
1, 2010, the Plan is administered through an irrevocable trust, Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust (Trust)
established on May 11, 2010 by the Board of Washoc County Commissioncrs. The Trust, a multiple employer
trust, was created to fund and account for the participating employers' costs of retiree healthcare benefits pursuant
to Nevada Revised Statutes 287.017. The District is a participating employer in the Trust. Complete financial
statements of the OPEB plans and the trust fund may be obtained by writing to: OPEB Trust, ¢/o Washoe County

ANtV NALLE .. MM Do 111N T .. WT. 1. OANTAN
SOVLLIUV VLWL O3 WLLEWW L oW LDJUA 1L AV NIV, INWYAMA U7 DLV

Eligibility

In accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes, the Board of Fire Commissioners for the Sierra Fire Protection
District (District) entered into an agreement between the District and the Sierra Firefighters Association for retiree
health insurance. This employee agreement was assumed by the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District as of
April 1, 2012, however, the payment of the monthly benefits continue to be paid from the District's portion of the
OPEB Trust. Eligible employees who retire from District employment and receive monthly payments under the
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) of Nevada are allowed coverage in the District’s health benefit
programs. Health benefits include medical, vision, dental and prescription coverage. The District pays 50% of the
cost of health premiums of retirees who transferred to the District as of July 1, 2006 or from the District to the
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District in FY 11-12 and retire directly from the Districts with 10 or more years
of combined service with the Nevada Division of Forestry or the Districts. Retirees are responsible for the
remaining 50% of the health premiums and 100% of the cost of coverage for their spouses or families. Eligibility
requirements, benefit levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions may be amended by the mutual
agreement of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and the Fire Fighters Association, I.A.F.F, Local
3895.

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost
The amount of annual contributions each year is established through the annual budget process by the District's
Board of Fire Commissioners and may be amended through negotiations with the respective employee

association. The required contributions are based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an
additional amount, generally equal to the normal cost, to prefund benefits.

25



Sierra Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

The annual OPEB cost, percentage of OPEB cost contributed to the Trust, and the Net OPEB obligation at June
30, 2016 and for each of the two preceding years is as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Employer Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Cost Contributions Cost Contributed Obligation
2014 $ 1,516,804 $ 544,869 35.92% $ 2,141,475
2015 332,724 - 0.00% 2,474,199
2016 365,583 - 0.00% 2,839,782

The net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2016 was calculated as follows:

Determination of Annual Required Contribution:

Notmal cost $ 148,879

Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) 288,289

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 437,168
Determination of Net OPEB Obligation:

Annual Required Contribution $ 437,168

Interest on prior year net OPEB obligation 173,194

Adjustment to ARC (244,779)
Annual OPEB Cost 365,583

Retiree benefit plan costs paid by district -
District contributions made to OPEB Trust -

Change in Net OPEB Obligation 365,583
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 2,474,199
Net OPEB Obligation, End of Year $ 2,839,782

26



Sierra Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

The funded status as of the most recent actuarial valuation was as follows:

Actuarial valuation date July 1,2014
Accrued actuarial liability (a) $ 3,662,758
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) 1,234,898
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (a-b) § 2,427,860
Funded ratio (b/a) 33.71%
Covered payroll* (active plan members) (c) $ 3,227,080
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage of covered payroll [(a - b)/c] 75.23%

*The covered payroll for active plan members for the District's retiree group medical plan reported above
represents the salaries and wages of former District employees transferred to the Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District per the Interlocal Agreement which the Sierra Fire Protection District retained retiree health
liability.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing nlan involve estimates of the value of renorted amounts and assumntinne ahout
the probability of occurrence of events far in the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, will present multiyear trend
information as it becomes available. The schedule will show whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting putposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

An actuarial valuation of retiree health and life benefits was completed as of July 1, 2014, using the Projected
Unit Credit Method. Significant actuarial assumptions used were a 7.00% effective annual discount rate and an
initial 7.75% health cost trend for non-Medicare and 7.50% for Medicare. The non-Medicare health cost trend
assumes a staggered decline before an ultimate trend rate of 4.50% for 2070 and beyond. The Medicare health
cost trend assumes a staggered decline before an ultimate trend rate of 4.50% for 2099 and beyond. The actuarial
assumptions also assume that Medicare will be the primary coverage once the retiree reaches the age of 65. The
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) is the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to employee service
rendered prior to the valuation date. The AAL equals the present value of benefits multiplied by a fraction equal
to service date over service at expected retirement. The Normal Cost is the actuarial present value of benefits
attributed to one year of service. This equals the present value of benefits divided by service at expected
retirement. The plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount over a 17
year closed amortization period.

27



Sierra Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 6 - Risk Management

The District is exposed, as are all entities, to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. Property and liability is fully insured with the
Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (NPAIP) with a $5,000 deductible. The Pool is considered a self-sustaining
risk pool that provides coverage for its members up to $10 million per event. Property, crime and equipment
breakdown coverage is provided to its members up to $300,000,000 per loss with various sub-limits established
for earthquake, flood, equipment breakdown, and money and securities.

Note 7- Related Party Transactions

As more fully described in Note 1, the District has an interlocal agreement with the Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District to consolidate the operations of the two fire districts, which will occur on July 1, 2016. The
District paid the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District $6,681,780 during the year ended June 30, 2016 in
accordance with the terms of the interlocal agreement.

Note 8 - Subsequent Events

Effective July 1, 2016, the District merged with Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District in accordance with
Washoe County Ordinance 1577. All of the District’s fire services, powers, functions, responsibilities and
obligations conferred upon and exercised by the District were assumed by Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District.

28



Required Supplementary Information

Sierra Fire Protection District

www.eidebailly.com



Sierra Fire Protection District
Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits

June 30, 2016
Actuarial UAALasa
Accrued Actuarial Percentage
Actuarial Liability Value of Covered of Covered
Valuation (AAL) Plan Assets  AAL (UALL) Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (c) [(a-b)/c]
7/1/2011 $2,472,793 $ 530,895 $3,087,570 62.89%
7/1/2013 11,148,737 585,289 3,221,020 327.95%
7/1/2014 3,662,758 1,234,898 3,303,999 73.48%

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

29



Sierra Fire Protection District

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Employer Contributions
The District joined the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust in the fiscal year 2011, Information on employer

contributions can be found in the Trust’s separately issued OPEB Trust, ¢/o Washoe County Comptroller’s office,
PO Box 11130, Reno, NV 89520.

Note 2 — Trend Analysis

The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) decreased by $7,485,979 since the last valuation due primarily to a
change under the current labor agreement, requiring retirees to enroll in Medicare at 65.

30



EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Board of Fire Commissioners
Sierra Fire Protection District
Reno, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities and each major fund of the Sierra Fire Protection District (the District) (a component unit of
Washoe County, Nevada) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated November 11, 2016.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as
finding 2016-A, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

WWW, .com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 895112094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE

31



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards,

Sierra Fire Protection District’s Response to Finding

The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

&M!zfo

Reno, Nevada
November 11, 2016

32



Sierra Fire Protection District

Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016-A Financial Statement Preparation
Significant Deficiency

Criteria:

Condition.

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Management’s Response:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective system
of internal control over financial reporting. One of the key components of an
effective system of internal control over financial reporting is having the
capability to prepare full disclosure financial statements.

The District does not have an internal control system designed to provide for the
preparation of the financial statements and related financial statement disclosures
being audited. In conjunction with the completion of our audit, we were
requested to draft the financial statements and accompanying notes to those
financial statements. Although this circumstance is not unusual for a government
the size of Sierra Fire Protection District, the preparation of financial statements
as part of the audit engagement may result in financial statements and related
information included in financial statement disclosures not being available for
management purposes as timely as it would be if prepared by District personnel.
In addition, the absence of controls over the preparation of the financial
statements and related financial statement disclosures increases the possibility
that a misstatement of the financial statements could occur and not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, by the District’s internal control. It is the responsibility
of management and those charged with governance to determine whether to
accept the risk associated with this condition because of cost or other
considerations.

Internally prepared financial information may not be accurate and full disclosure
financial statements may not be available as timely as they would be if prepared
by District personnel.

Due to a shortage of personnel with the ability to prepare full disclosure financial
statements, the District has chosen to contract with Eide Bailly LLP to prepare its
financial statements and related financial statement disclosures.

We recommend Sierra Fire Protection District’s finance staff obtain training in
the preparation of governmental financial statements and related financial
statement disclosures in order to gain the knowledge needed to prepare the
financial statements and related financial statement disclosures internally.

Management concurs with the Auditor's Findings. With the consolidation of the
Sierra Fire Protection District into the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
in FY 16-17, the audit work load in the future will be significantly reduced
giving staff more time to prepare the financial statements and related financial
statement disclosures. In addition, the District is currently in the process of hiring
a new Fiscal Officer which will give the District the opportunity to hire the staff
necessary to prepare the financial statements.

33



EjdeBailisz,

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Auditor’s Comments

To the Honorable Board of Fire Commissioners
Sierra Fire Protection District
Reno, Nevada

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major
fund of the Sierra Fire Protection District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the
related notes to the financial statements, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that Sierra
Fire Protection District failed to comply with the specific requirements of Nevada Revised Statues cited
below. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such
noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to
our attention regarding the District’s noncompliance with the requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes
cited below, insofar as they related to accounting matters,

Current Year Statute Compliance
The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration during the
year.

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance
There were no potential statute or Administrative Code violations noted in the June 30, 2015 audit.

Prior Year Recommendations
The prior year finding 2015-A is repeated as finding 2016-A in the current year. The prior year finding
2015-B was corrected.

Current Year Recommendations
Our current year recommendations are included in the Schedule of Findings and Responses.

@M!L?‘)

Reno, Nevada
November 11, 2016

WWW. .com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 89511-2094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE

34



CKEE MEagy

L

a3 ‘_"" TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

WA E DUl'_'I' NN

’I
FAODTECTICEN QVSYRICT

STAFF REPORT Fire Chief NV

Board Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 F"&‘;‘;

Risk Mgty AU
HR}&[\Q

DATE: December 1, 2016
TO: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners
FROM: Mary C. Walker, CPA District Financial Consultant

THROUGH: Charles A. Moore, Fire Chief

SUBJECT: Review and acceptance of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s Audited
Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016. (All Commission Districts)

SUMMARY

Please find attached the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District's financial statements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016 which were audited by Eide Bailly LLP. The auditor's opinion of the financial
statements is an "unqualified" opinion which means the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the District's governmental activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2016.

The auditors have stated in the report the auditors found the District conformed to all significant
statutory constraints on its financial administration during the year and that there were no material
weaknesses. The auditors did note one significant deficiency regarding the financial statement
preparation. Due to limited staffing in the administration of the District and the added staff time to
prepare both the SFPD and TMFPD financial statements, it was determined that contracting with Eide
Bailly LLP for the preparation of the financial statements and the related statement disclosures provided
the best cost benefit to the District. For the future, with the consolidation of the SFPD and the TMFPD,
only one set of financial statements will be required to be prepared. This will provide more time for
staff to prepare the financial statements and related disclosures. In addition, with the hiring of a new
Fiscal Officer, this will provide the District the opportunity to hire the staff necessary to prepare the
financial statements internally.

It is recommended the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board of Fire Commissioners accept
the District’s Audited Financial Statements for FY15-16.

Strategic Objective supported by this item: Sustainability of our financial, social and natural
resources.

PREVIOUS ACTION

None

BACKGROUND

The highlights of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District's Audited Financial Statements for the
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 are as follows:

AGENDA ITEM # 7



BOFC Meeting, December 13, 2016
Page 2 of 3

General Fund:

The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s finances are stable in the short-term and long-term.
The General Fund's fund balance as of June 30, 2016 was $10,619,291, an increase of $203,891 or 2%
from the prior year. The increase was primarily caused by revenues exceeding expenditures and other
financial uses. The total fund balance of $10,619,291 equates to 48.8% or nearly six months’ worth of
expenditures.

In FY 15-16, the total General Fund expenditures were $21,766,383 which was $2,010,436 under
budget. The General Fund revenues and other sources exceeded budget by $1,037,990 and generally
reflects an improving economy.

Emergency Fund:

The Wildland Fire Emergency Fund was established to fund the District's emergency and wildland fire
liability. NRS 474 allows Fire Districts to set aside up to $1 million per year for emergency operations,
primarily wildland fire operations. As of June 30, 2016, the fund balance was $658,264. This fund
balance was carried forward to FY 16-17 to allow for District funding for the cost of future wildland
fires and other emergencies.

Capital Projects Fund:

The TMFPD Capital Projects Fund is used to fund the purchase of equipment, building improvements
aud Luustiustutl pLujouis (Ut e Disiict. As ul Jutie 53U, 2010, s Capitai T1ujects Tund Dalaics was
$7,022,011 due to the time delay in the purchase of capital assets and construction projects. This is a
one-time accumulation of funds for the District’s Capital Improvement Program. This fund balance
allows the District to pay for the capital projects and purchase of capital assets without acquiring debt,
thus saving taxpayers interest expenses. The fund balance has been carried over to FY 16-17 for the
District’s Capital Improvement Program.

Workers® Compensation Fund:

In FY 03-04, the District established the Workers’ Compensation Internal Service Fund in order to
account for the District’s liability for workers’ compensation claims. Per the Reno/TMFPD Interlocal
Agreement, the TMFPD shall pay a pro rata share of the Reno Fire Department workers’ compensation
claims based upon the number of positions attributable to the TMFPD vs. the total Reno Fire
Department staff. With the termination of the TMFPD/Reno Interlocal Agreement, the TMFPD will
continue to pay their proportionate share of actual costs for the remaining year of the 5 year buy-out. As
of June 30, 2016, the District had restricted net position of $3,291,881 which is set aside to fund the
District’s workers’ compensation liability.

Other Funds:

As of June 30, 2016, the District’s Stabilization Fund had a fund balance of $590,932 which is
consistent with prior years. The fund is available to be utilized for decreases in revenues and for
emergencies. As of June 30, 2016, the Sick and Annual Comp Benefits Fund had a fund balance of
$335,125 which is a decrease of $126,294 from the prior year. This fund was established to be used for
the significant retirement payouts related to sick and comp time benefits.



BOFC Meeting, December 13, 2016
Page 3 of 3

Conclusion

The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District is financially sound as of June 30, 2016. The
consolidated operations of the District with the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District have
culminated in administrative and operational savings and the District’s finances are stable.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

RECOMMENDATION

To accept the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District's Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal
Year ended June 30, 2016.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation a possible motion would be:

“I move to accept the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District's Audited Financial Statements for the
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016.”



EjdeBaili%

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

November 11, 2016

To the Honorable Board of Fire Commissioners
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Reno, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District for the year ended
June 30, 2016. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well
as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our engagement letter to you dated February 26, 2016. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. The District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. Accordingly, Note 3 to the financial statements has
been updated to categorize the District’s investments using the fair value measurements based on the
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles and the related valuation methods have
been disclosed. No other new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies
was not changed during 2016. We noted no transactions entered into by Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the District’s financial
statements were:

Management’s estimate of the actuarial accrued liability for other post-employment benefits is
based on a third party actuarial valuation. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the actuarial accrued liability for postemployment benefits in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the pension liability is based on actuarial valuation. The
actuarial valuation is calculated based on the employee information submitted by the
District to the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS). We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate of the pension
liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as
a whole.

WWW, .com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 89511-2094 | T775.689.9100 | F 775.689.9299 | EOE



Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:

The disclosure of the District’s participation in the Washoe County OPEB Trust, as
described in Note 7 to the financial statements.

The disclosure of the District’s participation in the Interlocal Agreement for Fire Services
and Consolidation of the Districts as described in Note 1 to the financial statements.

The disclosure of the District’s consolidation with Sierra Fire Protection District, effective
July 1, 2016, as described in Note 11 to the financial statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dcaling with management in performing and completing out
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected
by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial
statements taken as a whole.

In addition, the following summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements, for which
management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

e Prior year understatement of salaries payable in the General Fund $34,722
e Current year understatement of salaries payable in the General Fund $29,968

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements, including the effect of the reversal of prior year
uncorrected misstatements, is an understatement of change in fund balance of $4,754, and an
overstatement of fund balance of $29,968, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016 in the General Fund.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated November 11, 2016.



Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, budgetary
comparison information, Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits, Schedule of
District’s Share of Net Pension Liability, and Schedule of District’s Contributions, which are required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did
not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL

We were engaged to report on the combining and individual fund statements and schedules, including
budgetary comparisons and reconciliations, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI.
With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated
the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it
has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Fire Commissioners and management of
the District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

@«M LerP

Reno, Nevada



MEADOWQ

WASHOE Cou NTY, NV .

57

.. Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

June 30, 2016




Financial Statements
. June 30, 2016
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District

’ www.eidebailly.com



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Table of Contents
June 30, 2016

Independent Auditor’s Report.cusssmsumimmssmsiassssniiissiinasiaismiiiai i i amsmsarssmesmsronsemssenseasec]
Management’s DiSCUSSION AN ANALYSIS....uuureveriiirerinsiseiuniniasesriasisimsesesssssessssssiessssstsamsssssssssssasesssessassssesesssssesses 4
Financial Section

Government-Wide Financial Statements

SEAtEMENE OF NEt POSIION ....oviisiesiieiiisiiseieceseeeceeritseaees e bessessssssssoteseressetsssresessessssssseeessersseseetesssee s e seeseeeesens 12
StAteMENt OF ACHIVIEIES. ..eviiveeerieie st cvesresa s esssersresesssraesessesssssenesssssesanssesenssesenssesensssnesessessessessessssssssesesrenssnns 13

Fund Financial Statements

Balance Sheet — GOVernmMENtal FUNAS ........coivicireiiiiriereesireeesseesseseessssesesesssssssasasssessssssssesenssssssemsssseeeeseeeesoesssons 14
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net POSItLON ..o..ovveoveoevvvrinnn 15
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds.............o.......... 16

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental
Funds {0 the Statement Of ACHVItIES ........cuuuueiurisriiriinsersessssssssessessmmssessssesssssssssesssnsnssssnssnsnessssessessessesseassseess 17

Statement of Net Position — Proprietary FUNA ........cc.ocovirieimrinneeniinssisesesisscsssnesssseses oo nese s sesesessessessnsssenns 18
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Proprietary Fund ...........ccoccveveevnevreerisrennns 19
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary FUNG .........cccorueieniininaeisinnnsenssisirisesssnssssssssssssessonsesssessssssssnssssas 20
Notes 10 Financial SIACINEINLS........ccuriiiinieirreieiesee st ess et et sereceeseenssasesssessestesessaserans P — 21

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual —

General Fund (Budgetary Basis)...........cccouurrinerninninisinesissensmsessesisssssrsssssestsssne sesessesssesssnsessssessssssssssnesas 39
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual —
Major Special Revenue Fund — EMergency FUNG..........coveviveiveeneresseeieressessessessessassesssssesesssesssnssssnsesssssessessssenss 40

Reconciliation of the General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) to the General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) .........cccovovieirecovnresisrnrerssesesesssssesssssssssssessons 41
Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment BENEfIts ............c.cccireursmieressarssrnrasssesasssssessssersssssssess 42
Schedule of District’s Share of Net Pension Liability .......ccccucuiiirinriniiiiesseissssssssessesessssesessssessssssessessessenensos 43
Schedule of DiStrict’s COBITDULIONS .......c.eueriereiiieerrercceres e vt esesersrsssesssrrstsessesecsscsesesssnssssssesssesessssessmsssesees 44

Supplementary Information

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules
Reconciliation of the General Fund Balance Sheet (Budgetary Basis) to the General Fund Balance Sheet

(GAAP Basis) — GOVernmental FUNAS..........c..vorioriieesiuniessaeisseemssssssssssssessssssssissssssensassssasessssssssessessssssesans 46
Combing Balance Sheet — Internally Reported (Budgetary Basis) Funds Reported as Part of the General Fund
for External Reporting PUIPOSES ......vvvvveiiiieieinsiee e cosiesoscaensessnenssesessesmsoressssesssesssssens S T T 47
Combing Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Internally Reported
(Budgetary Basis) Funds Reported as Part of the General Fund for External Reporting Purposes.................... 48
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual ~

Sick Annual Comp Benefits FUNG .......c.ccorimiririiinrcaecritiiceresesensseseesemceseessesseseensesssasseesesseseesssesasssssssssseses 49
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual —

StabiliZation FUN ..........cciiieriiicr s e s s st eses st e st e ess st s s seseesees 50

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual —
Capital Projects FUNM........coiiiiiiieicicecsineecre et e sttt st sbme s ess st s s nsesens e s sensa st oes et 51



Proprietary Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position — Internal Service Funds .. cremrerens SO, ¥/}
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Posmon Intemal Serv1ce Funds ............. 53
Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Internal Service FUndS .............ccocvceiiimieniiiniieeieisseess e cseseeise e ssessesens 54
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Budget and Actual —

Workers” Compensation FU .........ccoviieiieiiiieei e ettt et see et e s eaeesaes e sees et et aesnbaees 55
Schedule of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Workers” Compensation Fund...............cocoiiviincccimnninninn. 56
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — Budget and Actual —

Health Benefits Fund .. weRaR R aT e T
Schedule of Cash Flows - Budget and Actual Health Beneﬁts Fund ssnssriRmeie O 8

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards......59

Compliance Section
Schedule of Findings and RESPONSES ......ccccvcecumrireesrsscrirnsrorsrssssermonssssssassssissrestssesivnsssesssssensssssassssssesassasssse 61

AUATEOI’S COMMUMEIIES ... eeeveeseiesressosasersessnesresssssnssessesasesssssnssessssansss sssnsnsessbessassessessnsansssnssansssessssassssnesnssessnssessensssnssans 62



E\ideBaiﬂyo

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Board of Fire Commissioners
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Reno, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (the District)
(a component unit of Washoe County, Nevada) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

W belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

WWW. .com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 89511.2094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the District as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of funding progress, schedule of
proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of contributions on pages 4-11, 39-41, 42
and 43-44, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquirics of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and
schedules, including budgetary comparisons and reconciliations are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules, including budgetary comparisons and
reconciliations are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund
statement and schedules, including budgetary comparisons and reconciliations are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report November 11, 2016, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

@M:zj‘)

Reno, Nevada
November 11, 2016



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

As management of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District's (the District) finances, we offer
readers of the District's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District's governmental activities exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $16,538,504
of which includes $17,671,594 net investment in capital assets, $659,745 restricted for wildland fire
emergencies, $7,022,011 restricted for capital projects, $3,908,425 restricted for claims, and
($12,723,271) which is the unrestricted net position. Governmental activities include all funds of the
District.

¢ The District took over the administration and operations of the Sierra Fire Protection District through
an Interlocal Agreement for Consolidated Fire Service as of April 1, 2012. The Sierra Fire Protection
District paid the District $6,681,780 for this service in fiscal year 2016.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $19,225,623, an increase of $2,183,840 or 12.8% in comparison with the
prior year. This increase was primarily caused by a transfer of one-time savings to the capital
projects fund in anticipation of funding capital project needs with cash instead of acquiring debt.
Approximately 43.4% of the combined ending fund balance is available for spending at the
government's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial
statements. The District's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating. Total assets of the District at June 30, 2016, were $43,410,891 with capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, accounting for $17,671,594 of that total. Of the total liabilities of
$29,340,483, approximately 95% represent liabilities related to long-term liabilities of the District. This
is an increase of $3,282,085 in liabilities in comparison with the prior year which was primarily caused
by the increase in the Net Pension Liability.



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). Total revenues for the year ended
June 30, 2016 were $26,630,645 consisting primarily of taxes and intergovernmental revenues, while
total expenses were $24,435,890. This resulted in an increase in net position of $2,194,755, an
indication that the financial condition of the District improved during the year which was primarily
caused by an increase in general revenues of the District.

Both of the government-wide financial statements show the public safety function of the District, which
is principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activitics). All
governmental activities of the District are included in the public safety function since the District is a
single-purpose entity.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 and 13 of this report.

Foand financial ctatomante A Hand ic a gvnnp;nn nf ralatad ancmimta that 10 noad tn mnintain canteal
Fand financial etatemants, A fund ic 3 arouming of related accounts that ic ncad to maintain conteol
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-

related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District fall into the governmental funds category,
except for the proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Emergency Fund and Capital Projects Fund, all of
which are considered to be major funds.



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for each of its funds. A budgetary comparison
statement or schedule has been provided for each fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget. The
governmental fund financial statements and the reconciliations to the government-wide financial
statements can be found on pages 14-17 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The District maintains two types of proprietary funds, which are both internal
service funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the District’s functions. The District uses two internal service funds to account for its
workers’ compensation liability and health benefits liability. Because these services benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. The internal service funds are reported in the proprietary fund
financial statements and can be found on pages 18-20 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 21-38 of this report.

Other information. The District maintains a stabilization fund and a sick annual comp benefits fund
for internal purposes. These funds do not meet the definition of special revenue funds under
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which was implemented in 2011 by the District. The activity for
these funds is included in the General Fund in the basic financial statements; however, since the District
prepares a budget for these funds, a reconciliation of budgetary basis financial statements to GAAP basis
financial statements is presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. These
reconciliations can be found on pages 41 and 46 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial

position. As of June 30, 2016, the District's total net position was $16,538,504, which is a $2,194,755
increase from the prior year. The primary reason for the increase was the increase in general revenues.



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2016

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s Net Position

Governmental Activities
2016 2015

Current and other assets $25,739,297 $25,100,374
Capital assets 17,671,594 17,170,326

Total assets 43.410.891 42,270,700
Deferred outflows of resources 5,749.113 3,663,602
Other liabilities 1,461,457 2,052,868
Long-term liabilities 27.879,026 24,005,530

Total liabilities 29.340.483 26,058,398
Deferred inflows of resources 3,281.017 5.532.155
Metsositieon:
Investment in capital assets 17,671,594 17,170,326
Restricted 11,590,181 9,670,103
Unrestricted (12,723.271) (12.496.680)

Total net position

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District's governmental activities exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $16,538,504.
Net position includes the District's net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and
equipment). The net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2016 was $17,671,594. The District uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending.

An additional portion of the District's net position $11,590,181 represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used, such as the retiree health benefits, capital projects and
emergencies. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position was ($12,723,271).

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District is able to report positive balances in two of the three
categories of net position. The negative unrestricted net position was caused by the implementation of a
new accounting standard requiring the reporting of the Net Pension Liability on the balance sheet.



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2016

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s Changes in Net Position

Government ctiviti ]

2016

2015

Revenues:

| Program revenues:

Charges for services

$ 7,230,944

$ 6,917,724

Operating grants and contributions

82,699

128,966

General revenues:

Property taxes

11,099,590

10,664,958

Consolidated taxes

5,874,270

5,630,395

Other taxes

818,165

740,766

Unrestricted investment
earnings

509,202

219,725

Reimbursements

414,085

341,683

Other

601.690

49,136

Total revenues

26,630,645

24.693.353

Expenses:

Public safety

24,435,890

22.340917

Increase in net position

2,194,755

2,352,436

Net position, July 1

11991313

t position, June 30

14,343,749
b 8,504

Total Revenues. The District’s total revenues increased by $1,937,292, or 7.8%. The primary increase
was caused by an increase of property tax, consolidated tax revenue and other revenues which reflects a

recovering economy.

Total Expenses. The District's total expenses increased by $2,094,973 or by 9.3% which was primarily

due to an increase in operating costs.

Net Position. The District’s total net position increased by $2,194,755 during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016, and $2,352,436 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The increase in total net
position in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 was primarily caused by increased revenue due to the

economic recovery.



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
District's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $19,225,623, an increase of $2,183,840 or 12.8% in comparison with the prior year.
This increase was primarily caused by a transfer of one-time savings to the capital projects fund in
anticipation of funding capital project needs with cash instead of acquiring debt. Approximately 43.4%
of the combined ending fund balance is available for spending at the government's discretion
(unassigned fund balance).

The (General Find ic tha nﬂmarv nhpra‘hnn find af tha Nictrinrt FBar tha ﬁonnl T andad Tina 20 2014

Ny A ary

the total fund balance for the General Fund was $11,545,348. The total fund balance included
$3,189,040 assigned for encumbrances and appropriated fund balance and $6,432 in nonspendable fund
balance. The remaining fund balance of $8,349,876 is unassigned and consists of the General Fund
unassigned fund balance of $7,423,819, the Stabilization Fund unassigned fund balance of $590,932 and
the Sick Annual Comp Benefits Fund unassigned fund balance of $125,125.

The total fund balance for the General Fund in the amount of $11,545,348 is an increase of $89,979
from the prior year. This increase was generally attributable to the improving economy.

As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the June 30, 2016, total fund
balance not attributable to the Stabilization Fund or the Sick Annual Comp Benefits Fund of
$10,619,291 to fund expenditures. The fund balance represents 48.8% of total General Fund
expenditures. This represents approximately 6 months’ worth of expenditures. The fund balance will
give the District's General Fund sufficient cash flow to meet its operational obligations in the future and
the ability to pay for large wildland fires as they occur.

The District's Emergency Fund was established according to NRS 474 for the funding for unforeseen
emergencies, primarily large wildland fires and other natural disasters. In fiscal year 2016, the District
did not incur any large wildland fires within its jurisdiction; however, it provided fire suppression
services to other entities for a fee and paid for the State wildland fire insurance program and other
expenditures which totaled $464,994. The Emergency Fund balance as of June 30, 2016 was $658,264.
The Capital Projects Fund activity in fiscal year 2016 included, among other things, the purchase of
radios, land, and the purchase of several pieces of apparatus.



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

Proprietary funds. The District’s proprietary funds provide information on the workers’ compensation
and health benefit programs of the District. The net position of the Workers’ Compensation Internal
Service Fund as of June 30, 2016, was $3,291,881. The net position of the Health Benefits Fund was
$616,544. In fiscal year 2016, the District fully funded its workers' compensation and health benefits
liabilities. In fiscal year 2017, the District budgeted to continue to fully fund the District’s workers’
compensation and health benefits liabilities.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital assets. The District's net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2016, amounts to
$17,671,594 (net of accumulated depreciation). This net investment in capital assets includes land,

construction in progress, buildings and building improvements, and vehicles and equipment. Refer to
Note 4 for further detail.

Long-term debt. At the end of the fiscal year, the District had no bonded debt outstanding. Refer to
Note 5 for further detail.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES
® Nevada's local governments rely heavily on sales tax as a primary revenue source. Washoe County's
taxable sales reflect the current recovery of the U.S. and Nevada economy and compares favorably

to Statewide and Clark County for fiscal year 2016 as demonstrated below.

Percentage Increase (Decrease) in Taxable Sales Over Prior Year

Fiscal Year
Entity 2013 2014 2015 2016
Statewide 5.2% 4.9% 7.1% 4.8%
Clark County 4.8% 7.6% 6.3% 4.7%
Washoe County 5.5% 9.4% 12.2% 10.7%

e Washoe County’s taxable gaming revenues showed some growth with a 4.7% increase in fiscal year
2016 over the prior year which demonstrates the Northern Nevada economic recovery. Clark County
saw a 1% increase over the prior year and the State of Nevada saw a 1.14% increase. The taxable
gaming revenue trend reflects the modest national and statewide economic recovery.

e The June 2016 unemployment rate in Washoe County was 5.9% which compares favorably to the
June 2015 unemployment rate of 6.4%. Washoe County’s June 2016 unemployment rate of 5.9% is
more favorable than the Clark County unemployment rate of 6.9%. The statewide unemployment
rate was 6.8% at June 30, 2016 which compares slightly more favorably to the 6.9% statewide
unemployment rate at June 30, 2015.

10



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

e The TMFPD increase in assessed valuation over the past three years demonstrates the District's
recovery from the Great Recession. Due to the recession, the District experienced a 9.89% decline in
assessed value in FY 13. However, with the economic recovery, the District's assessed value
increased by 2.58% in FY 14, increased by 7.14% in FY 15 and experienced a strong increase of
11.13% in FY 16.

These factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2017 fiscal year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances for all those with
an interest in the District's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report

or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Truckee Meadows/Sierra Fire
Protection District, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 89512.

11



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016
Governmental
Activities
Assets
Cash and investments $ 23,449,768
Accounts receivable 141,966
Taxes receivable 102,242
Due from other governments 1,451,072
Interest receivable 59,048
Deposits 6,432
Net OPEB asset 528,769
Capital assets, not being depreciated 2,279,729

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension related amounts 5,749,113
Liabilitics
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,314,967
Due to other governments 133,368
Unearned revenue 13,122
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Claims and judgments 533,000
Compensated absences 1,145,260
Due in more than one year
Compensated absences 842,004
Net pension liability 25,358,762
Total liabilities 29,340,483
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension related amounts 3,281,017
Net Position
Investment in capital assets 17,671,594
Restricted for
Wildland fire emergencies 659,745
Capital projects 7,022,011
Claims 3,908,425
Unrestricted (12,723,271)

Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

15,391,865

43,410,891

$ 16,538,504

12



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Functions/Programs Expenses

Contributions

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Position
Operating
Grants and Governmental
Contributions Activities

Governmental activities

Public safety $ 24,435,890

$ 7,230,944

$ 82,699  § (17,122,247)

General Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Consolidated taxes
SCCRT-AB104
Real property transfer tax
Licenses and permits
Reimbursements
Unrestricted investment earnings

Other

Total general revenues
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

11,099,590

5,874,270
781,089
37,076
22,453
414,085
509,202
579,237

19,317,002

2,194,755

14,343,749

§ 16,538,504

13



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

June 30, 2016
General Capital Total
Fund Emergency Projects Governmental
(GAAP Basis) Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 11,207,763 $ 653,549 $ 7,092,976 $ 18,954,288
Accounts receivable 141,966 - - 141,966
Taxes receivable 102,242 - - 102,242
Due from other governments 1,432,150 18,922 . 1,451,072
Interest receivable 31,126 - 17,188 48,314
Deposits 6,432 - - 6,432
Total assets $ 12,921,679 $ 672,471 $ 7,110,164 $ 20,704,314
Liabilities
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities $ 1,227,210 $ 12,726 $ 75,031 § 1,314,967
Due to other governments 68,579 - - 68,579
Unearned revenue - - 13,122 13,122
Total liabilities 1,295,789 12,726 88,153 1,396,668
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenues
Property taxes 80,542 - B 80,542
Reimbursements - 1,481 - 1,481
Total deferred inflows
of resources 80,542 1,481 - 82,023
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 6,432 B - 6,432
Restricted - 658,264 7,022,011 7,680,275
Assigned 3,189,040 - - 3,189,040
Unassigned 8,349,876 - E 8,349,876
Total fund balances 11,545,348 658,264 7,022,011 19,225,623

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 12,921,679 $ 672,471 $ 7,110,164 $ 20,704,314

See Notes to Financial Statements 14



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Total fund balances - total governmental funds $ 19,225,623

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and, therefore
are not reported in the funds.

Governmental capital assets 28,949,252
Less accumulated depreciation (11,277,658)
17,671,594
Deferred inflows of resources are not available to pay for current period expenditures,
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 82,023
The net OPEB asset cannot be used as a current financial resource to finance
general operations, and, therefore, is not reported in the funds. 528,769
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.
Lompensated absences (1,987,204)
Net pension liability (25,358,762)
(27,346,026)
Deterred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to
future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 5,749,113
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (3,281,017)
2,468,096
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activitics
to individual funds. The net position of the Internal Service Funds is reported with
governmental activities 3,908,425
Net position of governmental activities $ 16,538,504

See Notes to Financial Statements 15



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Stalement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from asset disposition
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

General Capital Total
Fund Emergency Projects Governmental

{GAAP Basis) Fund Fund Funds
$ 11,114,153 $ - $ - $ 11,114,153
22,453 - - 22,453
13,994,976 - - 13,994,976
11,102 - - 11,102
818,369 478,944 151,702 1,449,015
25,961,053 478,944 151,702 26,591,699
21,864,623 464,994 526,455 22,856,072
28,508 - 1,545,336 1,573,844
21,893,131 464,994 2,071,791 24,429.916
4,067,922 13,950 (1,920,089) 2,161,783
22,057 - - 22,057
- - 4,000,000 4,000,000
(4,000,000) - - (4,000,000)
(3,977,943) - 4,000,000 22,057
89,979 13,950 2,079,911 2,183,840
11,455,369 644,314 4,942,100 17,041,783
$ 11,545,348 $ 658,264 $ 7,022,011 $ 19,225,623

16



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental
Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 2,183,840

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay
exceeded depreciation in the current petiod. 501,268

Some revenues reported in the governmental funds were reported on the statement
of activities in the prior year. (264,904)

Some cxpenscs reported in the statement of activitics do not require the usc of current
financial resources, and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental

funds:
Change in compensated absences (287.,805)
Change in postemployment benefits (257,678)
(545,483)
Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned is reported as
pension expense.
Pension contributions 2,085,511
Pension expense (1,656,553)
428,958
The internal service funds are used by management to account for the costs of
retiree health medical expenses and workers' compensation. The net revenue
of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (108,924)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 2,194,755

See Notes to Financial Statements 17



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2016

Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments
Interest receivable

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Due to other governments
Claims and judgments
Total liabilities

Net Position
Restricted

See Notes to Financial Statements

Governmental
Activities
Internal Service
Funds

$ 4,495,480
10,734

4,506,214

64,789
533,000

597,789

$ 3,908,425

18



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Proprietary Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Governmental
Activities
Internal Service
Funds
Operating Expenses
Services and supplies
Claims $ 166,623
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earnings 54,913
Net increase in the fair
value of investments 41,398
Interest expense (38,612)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 57,699
Change in Net Position (108,924)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 4,017,349

Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

8 3908405

19



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Operating Activities
Cash payments for services and supplies

Noncapital Financing Activities
Interest paid

Investing Activities
Investment earnings

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Ycar

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Governmental
Activities
Internal Service
Funds

$ (423,839

(38,612)

98,874

(363,572)

4,859,052

$ 4,495,480

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash from (used for)

operating activities
Operating income (loss)

§  (166,623)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

from (used for) operating activities:
Change in
Due to other governments
Pending claims
Total adjustments

Net Cash used for Operating Activities

See Notes to Financial Statements

64,789
(322,000)

(257,211)

$ (423,839

20



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (District) is a municipality of the State of Nevada located in Washoe
County, Nevada. The District is governed by the Board of Fire Commissioners. The Washoe County Board of
County Commissioners functions as the Board of Fire Commissioners of the District.

Prior to July 1, 2012, the District was considered a blended component unit of Washoe County. Although the
District is a legally separate organization, the County was financially accountable, as defined in governmental
accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America, for Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District. Financial accountability was determined primarily by the Board of County Commissioners' participation
as the governing body of the District. As of July 1, 2012, the County has no financial benefit or burden
relationship with the District and, as such, the District has been reclassified from a blended component unit to a
discretely presented component unit.

As of April 1, 2012, an Interlocal Agreement for Fire Services and Consolidation (Agreement) became effective
between the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and the Sierra Fire Protection District. Under the
Agreement, the two Fire Districts consolidated fire department administration and operations, although the two
Fire Districts remain legally separate governmental entities. The major points of the Agreement in ettect as of
April 1, 2012 are listed below:

o The Sierra Fire Protection District will continue to levy taxes and make equal monthly installments to the
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District to fund its portion of the Consolidated Budget.

o All Sierra Fire Protection District employees became employees of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District. All sick leave and vacation hours accrued by the District at the time of transfer to the Truckee
Meadows Fire Protection District transferred with Sierra Fire employees. Health insurance and workers'
compensation benefits are paid by the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District through the Consolidated
Budget.

¢ Each Fire District retained their separate interests in and ownership of real property, equipment and rolling
stock while the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District provides for the repair and maintenance of such
assets. The cost of insuring and replacing these assets is the responsibility of each District.

¢ The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District provides comprehensive general liability insurance for all
claims arising out of acts or omissions of personnel; the Sierra Fire Protection District continues coverage
for the actions of the District's Board of Fire Commissioners.

o Dispatch services are provided to both Fire Districts by the Washoe County Sheriff's Department.

e Other costs paid by each District separately include debt service, independent contractors hired by each
District, actuarial studies, annual audits, retiree health costs, wildland fire emergency expenditures and any
other costs needed to sustain a local government.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report

information about the activities of the District. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements,

21



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the public safety function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The fund financial statements provide information about the funds of the District. Major individual governmental
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds’ financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Governmental funds report
deferred inflows of resources in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to
liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also report deferred inflows of resources in
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. Expenditures generally are recorded when
the related liabilities are incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, postemployment benefits, and claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due.

The District initially utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities prior to unrestricted resources,
which are utilized as they are needed.

Property taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenues, and interest earnings associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by
the District.

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income or loss, changes in net
position, financial position, and cash flows. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for internal service funds include the
cost of services (employee benefits). All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to
businesses in the private sector.

‘The District’s Internal Service Funds are the only proprietary funds. The financial statements of the Internal
Service Funds are consolidated into the governmental column when presented in the government-wide financial
statements. The costs of these services are reported in the public safety function. The effect of interfund activity
has been removed from the government-wide financial statements.

22



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the District,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Wildland Fire Emergency Reserve Fund (The Emergency Fund), a special revenue fund under Nevada
Revised Statutes (NRS), was created to account for the cost of unforeseen large wildland fire emergencies
pursuant to NRS 474.510.

The Capital Projects Fund, a capital projects fund, accounts for the financial resources to be used for the
acquisition and construction of major capital assets.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund type:

The Internal Service Funds, proprietary funds, account for the workers’ compensation activity and the health
benefits activity.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Lruckee vieadows F1re rrotection DIstrict aaneres to tne Local Government Budget and Finance Act incorporated
within the statutes of the State of Nevada, which include the following major procedures to establish the
budgetary data, which is reflected in these financial statements:

1. On or before April 15, the Board of Fire Commissioners files a tentative budget with the Nevada
Department of Taxation for all funds.

2. Public hearings on the tentative budget are held on the third Monday in May in conjunction with
Washoe County's budget hearing.

3. Prior to June 1, at a public hearing, the Board indicates changes, if any, to be made to the tentative
budget and adopts a final budget by the favorable vote of a majority of the members of the Board.
The final budget must then be forwarded to the Department of Taxation for compliance with State
laws and regulations. In any year in which legislative action, which was not anticipated, affects the
local government's final budget, the Board may file an amended final budget within 30 days of
adjournment of the legislative session.

4. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records of all funds is employed to enhance
management control during the year. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the year.

5. Budgets for all externally reported funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, budgets are required for the internally
reported special revenue fund.

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 354.598005 the person designated to administer the budget may
transfer appropriations within any function. Budget amounts may be transferred between functions
within a fund if the governing body is advised of the action at the next regular meeting and the action
is recorded in the official minutes of the meeting. Transfer of appropriations between funds or from
the contingency account or budget augmentations in excess of original budgetary amounts may not be
made without prior approval of the Board of Fire Commissioners, following a scheduled and noticed
public hearing, as necessary. The budget was augmented as set forth above during the year. In
accordance with state statute, actual expenditures generally may not exceed budgetary appropriations
of the public safety function of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Fund.
Also, actual operating and non-operating expenses of the Internal Service Funds generally may not
exceed budgeted amounts.

23



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Cash Deposited and Invested with Washoe County Treasurer

All cash transactions of the District are handled by the Washoe County Treasurer's office. Cash balances are
pooled and, to the extent practicable, invested as permitted by law in combination with Washoe County funds.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are defined as shott-term, highly liquid
investments, generally with original maturities of three months or less. Since all cash and investments of the
District are pooled with Washoe County funds and are available upon demand, all cash and investments of the
District are considered to be cash equivalents.

Taxes Receivable

Real and personal property taxes receivable reflect only those taxes receivable from the delinquent roll years.
Delinquent taxes from all roll years prior to 2013-2014 have been written off. No provision for uncollectible
accounts has been established since management does not anticipate any material collection loss in respect to the
remaining balances.

Personal property taxes receivable reflect only those taxes management believes to be collectible.

Amounts not collected within 60 days after year-end have been recorded as deferred inflows of resources at the
governmental fund level.

Receivables

Management does not anticipate any material collection losses in respect to the receivable balances.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, and equipment, are reported in the governrent-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial individual cost of
more than $10,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset's life are not
capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the District are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 40 years
Buildings 40 years
Building improvements 20 years
Vehicles and equipment 5-20 years

24



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS) Base Plan (Base Plan) and
additions to/deductions from Base Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the Base Plan, For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position and Governmental Funds Balance Sheet may report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. The separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District recognizes deferred outflow of resources
as it related to the net pension liability.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position and Governmental Funds Balance Sheet may report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents and acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
s an INflow OI resources (revenue) Untli mat ume. 1ne UISITICT recognizes delerred INfilow OF resources as i
relates to the net pension liability on the Statement of Net Position. In addition, the District recognizes deferred
inflows of resources as they relate to property taxes and wildland fire reimbursements in the governmental fund
financial statements.

Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Compensated Absences

The costs involved in vacation time and sick leave benefits are accrued when incurred in the government-wide
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured
as a result of employee resignations and retirements; costs are recorded as payroll costs only when the
accumulated benefits are paid or accrued as a result of a termination of service.

The District provides for payment of accrued vacation. Upon death, retirement, permanent disability, or
termination of an employee after ten years of full-time employment or its equivalent if the employee has not
served as a full-time employee for reasons other than discharge for just cause, an employee shall be compensated
for total accrued sick leave at the rate of one hour for every three hours earned up to a maximum hour limitation.

Fund Equity

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three
components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets, if applicable.

25



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Restricted Net Position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on its use either by (1) external groups
such as creditors, contributors, or laws or regulations; (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — All other net position that does not meet the definition of restricted or net investment
in capital assets.

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified based primarily on the extent to which
the District is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources in the fund. The nonspendable
fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form. The
restricted fund balance occurs when constraints are places on the use of resources externally (such as through debt
covenants or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation). For the District, the restricted fund balance consists of restricted assets for capital projects
and emergency resources. The assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent
to be used for specific purposes and consists of the District’s encumbrances as approved by the Board of Fire
Commissioners and the amount of fund balance to be expended in the ensuing fiscal year as approved by the
Board of Fire Commissioners. The remaining fund balance is shown as unassigned. When expenditures are
incurred for purposes for which amounts in any unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used,
committed funds, if any, are to be spent first, assigned funds second, and unassigned funds last.

Property Taxes

All real property in the District is assigned a parcel number in accordance with state law, with each parcel being
subject to physical reappraisal every five years. A factoring system is used to adjust the appraised value during the
years between physical appraisals. The valuation of the property and its improvements is heing assessed at 35
percent of "taxable value" as defined by statute. The amount of tax levied is determined by multiplying the
assessed value by the tax rate applicable to the area in which the property is located. The maximum tax rate was
established in the State Constitution at $5 per $100 of assessed valuation; however, as a result of the legislative
action the tax rate was further limited to $4.50 per $100 of assessed valuation except in cases of severe financial
emergency as defined in Nevada Revised statues (NRS) 354.705 or as a result of the State of Nevada rate.

Taxes on real property are a lien on the property and attach on July 1 of the year for which the taxes are levied.

Taxes may be paid in four installments payable on the third Monday in August, and the first Mondays in October,
January, and March, to the Treasurer of Washoe County. Penalties are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an
installment within ten days of the installment due date. After a two-year waiting period, if taxes remain unpaid, a
tax deed is issued conveying the property to the County with a lien for back taxes and accumulated charges.
Redemption may be made by the owner and such persons as described by statute by paying all back taxes and
accumulated penalties, interest, and costs before sale.

Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out annually and the
tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department of Taxation and tax rates
described above.

The major classifications of personal property are commercial and mobile homes. In Washoe County, taxes on
motor vehicles are collected by a State agency and remitted to the local governments in the County as part of the
Consolidated Tax distribution.

26



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2016

Implementation of GASB Statement No. 72

As of July 1, 2015, the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District adopted GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application. The implementation of this standard requires governments to measure investments
at fair value, The additional disclosures required by this standard are included in Note 3.

Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances includes a
reconciliation between net change in fund balances — total governmental funds and change in net position -
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide Statement of Activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains "Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures while the Statement of
Activities allocates the cost of those assets over their estimated useful lives and reports depreciation expense.”
The details of the $501,268 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 1,573,844
Additional amounts capitalized 51,347
Less depreciation expense (1,123,923)

Netadjustinent 1o {icicass net change in fund balaincss -
governmental funds to arrive at change in net position -
governmental activities $ 501,268

Note2 - Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative Code

The District conformed to all significant statutory and administrative code constraints on its financial
administration during the year.

Note 3 - Cash and Investments

Fair Value Measurements

Investments are measured at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value measurements are those that
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net position
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to

measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

27



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

The District participates in the Washoe County Investment Pool (WCIP). The Washoe County Board of County
Commissioners administers and is responsible for the WCIP in accordance with NRS 355.175. The investment
pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Public Financial Management, LLC determines
the fair value of the investment pool monthly. Washoe County has not provided or obtained any legally binding
guarantees during the audit period to support these values. Each participant’s share is equal to their investment
plus or minus their pro-rata portion of monthly interest income and realized and unrealized gains/losses. The
related fair value is determined as follows:

June 30, 2016
Fair Value Level 2
Washoe County Investment Pool $ 23,449,768 $ 23,449,768

Credit Risk

Fixed income securities are subject to credit risk. Credit risk refers to the risk that a borrower will default on debt
by failing to make required payments. The District does not hold any such investments directly, but participates in
the WCIP. The WCIP is unrated by recognized statistical rating agencies

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that an entity’s deposits, which are in the possession of an outside party, will not
be returned to the entity if the counterparty fails. The District is a participant in the WCIP. Balances in the WCIP
are covered by one or more of the following: Federal depository insurance, the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation, collateral held by the District’s agent in the District’s name, or by collateral held by depositories in
the name of the Nevada Collateral Pool, and the balances are not exposed to custodial credit risk.

28



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2016
Note 4 - Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:
Governmental Activities
Balance Balance
July 1,2015 Increases Decreases June 30,2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 721,545 $ 1,351,629 $ - $ 2,073,174
Construction in progress 154,131 52,424 - 206,555
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 875,676 1,404,053 - 2,279,729
Capital assets, being depreciated
Land improvements 263,322 80,810 - 344,132
Buildings and building
improvements 11,868,454 73,936 - 11,942,390
Vehicles and equipment 14,352,144 66,392 (35,535) 14,383,001
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 26,483,920 221,138 (35,535) 26,669,523
050 GUtwiiiaiod udpn Suiaiion o
Land improvements (183,777) (14,599) - (198,376)
Buildings and building
improvements (3,979,382) (361,703) - (4,341,085)
Vehicles and equipment (6,026,111) (747,621) 35,535 (6,738,197)
Total accumulated
depreciation (10,189,270) (1,123,923) 35,535 (11,277,658)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 16,294,650 (902,785) - 15,391,865
Governmental activities capital
assets, net $ 17,170,326 $ 501,268 $ - $ 17,671,594

The increase in accumulated depreciation includes depreciation expense of $1,123,923 charged to the public
safety function.
Note 5- Long-Term Liabilities

The District does not have any general obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2016. Long-term liability
activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows:

Amount Amount
Outstanding Outstanding Due Within
July 1, 2015 Additions Reductions June 30, 2016 One Year

Compensated absences § 1,699,459 $ 1,310,732 $ 1,022,927 $ 1,987,264 $ 1,145,260
Claims and judgments 855,000 166.623 488.623 533.000 533,000

$ 2,554,459 § 1477355 $ 1511550 § 2,520,264 $ 1.678.260

29



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Compensated absences and the net pension liability are generally liquidated from the General Fund and claims
and judgments are liquidated from the Workers’ Compensation Internal Service Fund.

Note 6 - Interfund Activity

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:

Transfer in

Capital Projects

Fund
Transfers out
General Fund $ 4,600,000

The transfer from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund was used to move unrestricted, one-time savings
to fund one-time capital outlay expenditures.

Note 7- Postemployment Health Care Benefits
Plan Description and Eligibility

Prior to July 1, 2000, the District provided health insurance benefits to retired employees throu gh a single-
employer defined benefit plan. At June 30, 2000, ten retirees were participating in the District’s health benefits
program. On July 1, 2000, pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement for Fire Services and Consolidation, District fire
operations were transferred to the City of Reno and the City accepted liability for the ten retirees under this plan.
In accordance with the Interlocal Agreement, the District pays a proportionate share of employees’ retiree health
benefit costs based on service earned prior to July 1, 2000, for those employees who transferred employment to
the City of Reno and retired prior to June 30, 2012 or during the term of the Interlocal Agreement. Health benefits
under the City's plan included medical, prescription, vision, dental and life insurance. As of July 1, 2010, the Plan
is administered through an irrevocable trust, Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust (Trust), established on May
11, 2010, by the Board of Washoe County Commissioners. The Trust, a multiple-employer trust, was created to
fund and account for the participating employers' costs of retiree healthcare benefits pursuant to Nevada Revised
Statutes 287.017. The District is a participating employer in the Trust. Complete financial statements of the Trust
may be obtained by writing to: OPEB Trust, /o Washoe County Comptroller's Office, P.O. Box 11130, Reno,
Nevada, 8§9520.

The Interlocal Agreement was terminated on June 30, 2012, and the District assumed responsibility for its own
fire district operations as of July 1, 2012. As of June 30, 2012, in preparation of standing up the new fire
operations, 11 former Reno firefighters transferred to the District with the provision the District would provide
retiree health benefits for those 11 employees. Any former District employees remaining employed by the City of
Reno as of July 1, 2012 retained retiree health benefits with the City and the City retained the liability for those
employees. Benefits under the new District plan, a single-employer defined benefit plan, include health, dental,
vision and prescription coverage. Eligible retirees who retire from the District will be required to pay for 50% of
the retirees’ health insurance premium and 100% of the cost of coverage for their families. Eligibility
requirements, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer contributions may be amended by the mutual
agreement of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and the District's Fire Firefighters' Association,

30



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

The amount of annual contributions each year are established through the annual budget process by the District's
Board of Fire Commissioners and may be amended through negotiations with the employee association. The
required contributions are based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an additional amount,
generally equal to the normal cost, to prefund benefits.

The annual OPEB Cost, the percentage of OPEB cost contributed to the Trust, and the net OPEB obligation
(asset) at June 30, 2016 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage of Net OPEB
Annual OPEB Employer Annual OPEB Obligation
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Cost Contributions Cost Contributed (Asset)
2014 $ 223,415 $ . 0.00% $ (1,001,338)
2015 214,891 - 0.00% (786,447)
2016 257,678 - 0.00% (528,769)

The net OPEB obligation (asset) as of June 30, 2016, was calculated as follows:

Determination of Annual Required Contribution:

Normal cost $ 277,767

Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) (42,843)

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 234,924
Determination of Net OPEB Obligation (Asset):

Annual Required Contribution $ 234,924

Interest on prior year net OPEB obligation (asset) (55,051)

Adjustment to ARC 77,805
Annual OPEB Cost 257,678

Retiree benefit plan costs paid by district -
District contributions made to OPEB Trust -

Change in net OPEB obligation (asset) 257,678
Net OPEB Obligation (Asset), Beginning of Year (786,447)
Net OPEB Obligation (Asset), End of Year $  (528,769)

31



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

The funded status as of the most recent actuarial valuation was as follows:

Actuarial valuation date July 1, 2014
Accrued actuarial liability (a) § 3,293,617
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) 3,981,559
Untunded actuarial accrued liability (asset) (a-b) $  (687,942)
Funded ratio (b/a) 120.9%
Covered payroll* (active plan members) (¢) $ 5,155,973
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (asset) as a percentage of covered payroll [(a - b)/c] -13.34%

*The covered payroll for active plan members for the District's retiree group medical plan reported above
represents salaries and wages for the 10 former Reno firefighters who transferred from the City of Reno to the
District in June 2012 and who were still employed by the District at June 30,2016 as well as employees who were
hired by the District prior to July 1, 2014. The UAAL shown includes the District's proportionate share of the
liability, based on service earned prior to July 1, 2000 for the 45 employees who transferred employment to the
City of Reno and retired during the term of the Interlocal Agreement as well as current cligible employees.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far in the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information. The schedule will show whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the

calculations.

An actuarial valuation of retiree health and life benefits was completed as of July 1, 2014, using the Projected
Unit Credit Method. Significant actuarial assumptions used were a 7.00% effective annual discount rate and an
initial 7.75% health cost trend for non-Medicare and 7.50% for Medicare. The non-Medicare health cost trend
assumes a staggered decline before an ultimate trend rate of 4.50% for 2070 and beyond. The Medicare health
cost trend assumes a staggered decline before an ultimate trend rate of 4.50% for 2099 and beyond. The actuarial
assumptions also assume that Medicare will be the primary coverage once the retiree reaches the age of 65. The
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) is the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to employee service
rendered prior to the valuation date. The AAL equals the present value of benefits multiplied by a fraction equal
to service date over service at expected retirement. The Normal Cost is the actuarial present value of benefits
attributed to one year of service. This equals the present value of benefits divided by service at expected
retirement. The plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount over a 17

year closed amortization period.
32



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Plan Description

The District contributes to the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS). PERS
administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system which
includes both Regular and Police/Fire members. PERS was established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947,
effective July 1, 1948. PERS is administered to provide a reasonable base income to qualified employees who
have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed or substantially
impaired by age or disability.

Benefits Provided

Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the number of years of
accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive
months with special provisions for members entering PEKS on or aller January 1, 2010. Benelil payments (o
which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plan include pension benefits, disability
benefits, and survivor benefits.

Monthly benetit allowances ror members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation tor each accredited year
of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of average
compensation. For members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier, PERS offers
several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general, allow the retired employee
to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and various optional
monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 - .579.
Vesting

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of
service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010,
are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with
thirty years of service.

Police/Fire members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 55 with ten years of
service, at age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with twenty-five years of service. Police/Fire
members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at 65 with five years of service, or
age 60 with ten years of service, or age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service.
Only service performed in a position as a police officer or firefighter may be counted towards to eligibility for
retirement as Police/Fire accredited service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a
member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of
average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon
completion of five years of service.

33



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution rates,
is set by statute. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan prior to
July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution plans. Contributions are shared equally by
employer and employee. Cmployees can take a reduced salary and have contributions made by the employer
(EPC) or can make contributions by a payroll deduction matched by the employer.

PERS’ basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary
throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to fund PERS
on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the required rates established by

the Nevada Legislature. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 286.450.

The actuary funding method used is the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. It is intended to meet the funding
objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage of salary.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 the Statutory Employer/employee matching rates were 13.25% for
Regular and 20.75% for Police/Fire. The Employer-pay contribution (EPC) rate for fiscal year ending June 30,
2015 was 25.75% for Regular and 40.50% for Police/Fire.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 the Statutory Employet/employee matching rates were 14.50% for
Regular and 20.75% for Police/Fire. The Employer-pay contribution (EPC) rate for fiscal year ending June 30,
2015 was 28.00% for Regular and 40.50% for Police/Fire.

The District’s contributions were $3,671,552 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

PERS Investment Policy

PERS’ policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the PERS
Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of the
System.

The following was the PERS Board adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015:

Long-term Geometric Expected

Target Allocation Rea] Rate of Return
Asset Class
Domestic Equity 42% 5.50%
International Equity 18% 5.75%
Domestic Fixed Income 30% 0.25%
Private Markets 10% 6.80%

As of June 30, 2015, PERS’ long-term inflation assumption was 3.5%.

34



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30,2016

Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s allocation percentage of the net
pension liability was based on the District’s total contributions due on wages paid during the measurement period.
The District’s proportion of the net pension liability is based on its combined employer and member contributions
relative to the total combined employer and member contributions for all employers for the period ended June 30,
2015. At June 30, 2015, the District’s proportion was 0.22129 percent, which is an increase of .01546 from the
portion measured as of June 30, 2014.

Pension Liability Discount Rate Sensitivity
The following presents the net pension liability of the District as of June 30, 2015, calculated using the discount

rate of 8.00%, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.00%) or 1-pereentage-point higher (9.00%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(7.0070) {0.0U%0) \J.0u%0)
Net Pension Liability $ 38,641,675 $ 25,358,762 $ 14,313,092

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the PERS Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, available on the PERS website.

Actuarial Assumptions

The District’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total pension
liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation Rate 3.50%

Payroll Growth 5.00% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 8.00%

Productivity Pay Increase 0.75%

Projected Salary Increases Regular: 4.60% to 9.75%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 5.25% to 14.5%, depending on service
Rates include inflation and productivity increases

Consumer Price Index 3.50%
Other Assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2015 funding actuarial
valuation

35



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Mortality rates for non-disabled male regular members were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality
Table projected to 2013 with Scale AA. Mortality rates for non-disabled female regular members were based on
the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, projected to 2013 with Scale AA, set back one year. Mortality
rates for all non-disabled police/fire members were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table
projected to 2013 with Scale AA, set forward one year. The mortality table used in the actuarial valuation to
project mortality rates for all disabled regular members and all disabled police/fire members is the RP-2000
Disabled Retiree Mortality Table projected to 2013 with Scale AA, set forward three years.

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of the experience review
completed in 2013.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00% as of June 30, 2015, The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at
the rate specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position at June 30, 2015,
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2015.

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $3,242,594. At June 30, 2016, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 1,907418
Changes in assumptions or other inputs - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments - 1,373,599
Changes in the employer's proportion and differences

between the employer's contributions and the

employer's proportionate contributions 2,077,561 -
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,671,552 -
Total $§ 5,749,113 $ 3,281,017

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date in the amount of $3,671,552 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ending June 30, 2017,

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through

PERS (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2014 (the beginning of the measurement period
ended June 30, 2015) is 6.7 years.

36



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Other estimated amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2017 $ (639,975)

2018 (639,975)

2019 (639,975)

2020 571,066

2021 54,120

Thereafter 91,283
Total $ (17203>456)

Additional Information

The PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is available on the PERS website at www.nvpers.org
under Quick Links — Publications.

Note 9 - Risk Management

The District is exposed, as are all entities, to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The District has joined together with similar
public agencies throughout the State of Nevada to create a pool, Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (NPAIP),
under the Nevada Interlocal Cooperation Act. Property and liability is fully insured with NPAIP with a $5,000
deductible. The District pays an annual premium to the Pool for its general insurance coverage. The Pool is
considered a self-sustaining risk pool that provides coverage for its members up to $10 million per event.
Property, crime and equipment breakdown coverage is provided to its members up to $300,000,000 per loss with
various sub-limits established for earthquake, flood, equipment breakdown, and money and securities.

The District self-funded its health benefits until June 1, 2013. The Health Benefits fund was established to
account for life insurance, medical, prescription, dental and vision programs. The self-funded plans contained
within the Health Benefits fund are handled through contracts with an external claims administrator and through
the purchase of various insurance plans. As of June 1, 2013, the District purchased a guaranteed health benefit
plan and is no longer self-funded.

During the term of the Reno/Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Interlocal Agreement, workers’
compensation was fully insured with the City of Reno’s self-funded workers’ compensation plan. Due to the
termination of the Agreement, as of July 1, 2012, the District is no longer self-funded with the City of Reno but
has purchased a guaranteed workers compensation insurance plan. However, the District is still required to pay
workers' compensation claims costs to the City of Reno for those years the District was self-funded through the
City of Reno's workers' compensation plan.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, the District and the City of Reno instituted a “pay as you go” system
for workers’ compensation claims. The District shared the combined losses with the Reno Fire Department
(RFD). Each year, the District was assigned the portion of paid losses corresponding to the ratio of employees
originally transferred from the District to the total number of current RFD employees. The ratio applied to the
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which was the last fiscal year of the Agreement, was 25%. The

37



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

District established the Workers” Compensation Fund to account for this program. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016, the District paid the City of Reno the amount of $304,133 for the purpose of buying out its
workers' compensation liability for fiscal year 2010,

The liability for workers' compensation was determined through an actuarial valuation performed for the District
as of December 31, 2011. Using a 70% probability level set by the actuary, claims of $2,424,922 were determined
to be long-term in nature. The non-discounted carrying amount of unpaid claims was $2,903,000. The interest rate
used for discount was 3%. Allocated loss adjustment expense is included in the actuarial calculation. Under the
plan, the District and the City of Reno self-insure up to a maximum of $2.5 million for each workers’
compensation claim. Claims incurred prior to fiscal year 2004 remain the liability of the City of Reno under the
guaranteed payment plan in effect prior to July 1, 2003.

Claims’ liability and activity for the past two years were as follows:

Claims liability, July 1, 2014 $ 1,170,000
Claims and changes in estimates 104,862
Claims paid (419.862)
Claims liability, June 30, 2015 855,000
Claims and changes in estimates 166,623
Claims paid (488.623)
Claims liability, June 30, 2016 $ 533,000

Note 10 - Related Party Transactions

As more fully described in Note 1, the District has an interlocal agreement with the Sierra Fire Protection District
to consolidate the operations of the two fire districts, which occurred on July 1, 2016. Sierra Fire Protection
District paid the District $6,681,780 during the year ended June 30, 2016 in accordance with the terms of the
interlocal agreement.

Note 11 - Subsequent Events
Effective July 1, 2016, the District merged with Sierra Fire Protection District in accordance with Washoe County

Ordinance 1577. All of the Sierra Fire Protection District’s fire services, powers, functions, responsibilities and
obligations conferred upon and exercised by the Sierra Fire Protection District were assumed by the District.

38



This page intentionally left blank.



Required Supplementary Information
® Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District

www.eidebailly.com



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — General Fund

(Budgetary Basis)

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues
Taxes
Ad valorem, general
Ad valorem, AB 104
Licenses and permits
Gaming, AB 104
Other
Intergovernmental
Federal grants
Consolidated taxes
Real property transfer tax,
AB 104
Supplemental city/county
relief tax, AB 104

Interlocal cooperative agreement

fire suppression
Charges for services
Services Lo other agencies
Other
Wwilseelialeuus
[nvestment earnings
Net increase in the fair value
of investments
Reimbursements
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Public safety function
Fire
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplics
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from asset disposition
Transfers out

Capital Projects Fund
Contingency

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Var@ance with
Qriginal Final Actual Final Budget
$ 10,911,909 $ 10,911,909 $ 10,953,556 $ 41,647
155,066 155,066 160,597 5,531
1,000 1,000 21,028 20,028
1,000 1,000 1,425 425
108,837 108.837 82,699 (26.138)
5,641,952 5,641,952 5,874,270 232,318
31,454 31,4534 37,076 5,622
667,137 667,137 781,089 113,952
7,266,780 7,266,780 7,219,842 (46,938)
10,700 10,700 10,000 (700)
: E 1,102 1,102
100,000 100,000 155,314 55,314
- - 93,039 93,039
500 500 - (500)
13,892 13,892 557.180 543,288
24,910,227 24,910,227 25,948,217 1,037.990
12,074,396 12,424,396 11,889,177 535,219
6,674,069 6,674,069 6,215,611 458,458
4,678,354 4,678,354 3,633,087 1,045,267
- - 28,508 (28,508)
23,426,819 23,776,819 21,766,383 2,010,436
1,483,408 1,133,408 4,181,834 3,048,426
- - 22,057 22,057
(4,000,000) (4,000,000) (4,000,000) -
(350,000) - - -
(4,350,000) (4,000,000) (3,977,943) 22,057
(2,866,592) (2,866,592) 203,891 3,070,483
8,832,310 8,832,310 10,415,400 1,583.090
$ 5965718 $ 5965718 $ 10,619,291 $ 4,653,573

39



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual — Major Special

Revenue Fund — Emergency Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Miscellaneous
Other $ - $ - $ 478,944 $ 478,944
Expenditures
Public safety function
Fire
Salaries and wages 250,000 250,000 320,625 (70,625)
Employee benefits 25,000 25,000 8,506 16,494
Services and supplies 245,000 245,000 135,863 109,137
Total expenditures 520,000 520,000 464,994 55,006
Net Change in Fund Balances {520,000) (520,000) 13,950 533,950
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 641,851 641,851 644,314 2,463
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 121,851 $ 121,851 $ 658,264 $ 536,413

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 40



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Reconciliation of the General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget

and Actual (Budgetary Basis) to the General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances — Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis)

Year Ended June 30, 2016
General Internally General
Fund Reported Fund
(Budgetary Basis) Funds (GAAP Basis)
Revenues
Taxes $ 11,114,153 $ - $ 11,114,153
Licenses and permits 22,453 - 22,453
Intergovernmental 13,994,976 - 13,994,976
Charges for services 11,102 - 11,102
Miscellaneous 805,533 12,836 818,369
Total revenues 25,948,217 12,836 25,961,053
Expenditures
Current
Public safety 21,737,875 126,748 21,864,623
Capital Outlay 28,508 - 28,508
Mt ncrimmen Aldaccann N1 L YON 1%L SAO D1 oNnY 111
A Vet WA VALMALUL VY Ldy t U U Ly TO -k Iy ke
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures 4,181,834 (113,912) 4,067,922
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from asset disposition 22,057 - 22,057
Transfers out (4,000,000) - (4,000,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (3,977,943) - (3,977,943)
Net Change in Fund Balances 203,891 (113,912) 89,979
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 10,415,400 1,039,969 11,455,369

Fund Balances, End of Year

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

$

10,619,291 $ 926,057

$ 11,545,348

41



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benetits

June 30, 2016
Actuarial UAAL asa
Accrued Actuarial Percentage
Actuarial Liability Value of Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation (AAL) Plan Assets  AAL (UALL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (a-b) {b/a) (c) [(a-b)/c]
7/1/2011  $ 3,361,331  $ 3,533,063 $ (171,732) 105.11%  $ 793,352 (21.65)%
7/1/2013 4,079,936 3,573,083 506,853 87.58% 797,886 63.52 %
7/1/2014 3,293,617 3,981,559 (687,942) 120.89% 5,034,484 (13.66)%

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

42



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Schedule of District’s Share of Net Pension Liability
Public Employee’s Retirement System of Nevada (PERS)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2015 2014
District’s portion of net the pension liability 0.22129% 0.20583%
District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 25,358,762 $ 21,451,071
District’s covered-employee payroll $ 8,435,593 $ 7,783,987
District’s proportional share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 300.62% 275.58%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 75.13% 76.31%

* GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a
full 10-year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those years for which information

is available.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 43



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Schedule of District’s Contributions

Public Employee’s Retirement System of Nevada (PERS)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2016 2015
Statutorily required contribution ' $ 3,671,552 $ 3,415,736
Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution $ 3,671,552 $ 3,415,736
Contribution (deficiency) excess $ - $ -
Employer’s covered-employee payroll $ 9,271,513 $ 8,435,593
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 39.60% 40.49%

* GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a
full 10-year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those yeats for which information

is available.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 44



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2016

Note 1 - Internally Reported (Budgetary Basis) Funds

The accompanying Reconciliation of the General Fund (Budgetary Basis) to the General Fund (GAAP Basis)
presents balances combined for external reporting purposes.

Budget to actual comparisons are presented for all funds of the District, as required by Nevada Revised Statutes.
Such budget comparisons are required to be presented using the budget as adopted and approved by the State of
Nevada Department of Taxation. However, guidance provided by Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, specifies that two of these
internally reported funds of the District do not meet the definition of special revenue funds and do not qualify to
be separately presented for external reporting purposes.

These internally reported special revenue funds of the District (Sick Annual Comp Bencfits Fund and
Stabilization Fund) are combined with the General Fund for external reporting purposes.

Note2 -  Employer Contributions

The District joined the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust in the fiscal year 201 1. Information on employer
contributions can be tound tn the 1rust’s separately 1ssued OPEB ‘Irust, ¢/o Washoe County Comptroller’s ottice,
PO Box 11130, Reno, NV 89520,

Note3-  Trend Analysis

The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) decreased by $786,319 since the last valuation due primarily to a change
under the current labor agreement, requiring retirees to enroll in Medicare at 65. Covered payroll increased by

$4,236,598 since the last valuation due to temporarily opening the plan to allow enrollment of active employees
hired prior to July 1, 2014.

45



Supplementary Information

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection
District

www.eidebailly.com



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Reconciliation of the General Fund Balance Sheet (Budgetary Basis) to the General Fund Balance Sheet
(GAAP Basis) — Governmental Funds

June 30, 2016

General Internally General
Fund Reported Fund
(Budgetary Basis) Funds (GAAP Basis)
Assets
Cash and investments $ 10,283,130 3 924,633 $ 11,207,763
Accounts receivable 141,966 - 141,966
Taxes receivable 102,242 - 102,242
Due from other governments 1,432,150 - 1,432,150
Interest receivable 29,702 1,424 31,126
Deposits 6,432 - 6,432
Total assets $ 11,995,622 $ 926,057 $ 12,921,679
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,227,210 $ - $ 1227210
Due to other governments 68,579 - 68,579
Total liabilities 1,295,789 - 1,295,789
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable reveue
Property taxes 80,542 - 80,542
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 6,432 - 6,432
Assigned 2,979,040 210,000 3,189,040
Unassigned 7,633,819 716,057 8,349,876
Total fund balances 10,619,291 926,057 11,545,348
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balances $ 11,995,622 $ 926,057 $ 12,921,679




Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Combing Balance Sheet ~ Internally Reported (Budgetary Basis) Funds Reported as Part of the General Fund for
External Reporting Purposes

June 30, 2016
Sick Annual Internally
Comp Benefits Stabilization Reported
Fund Fund Total
Assets
Cash and investments $ 335,125 $ 589,508 $ 924,633
Interest receivable - 1,424 1,424
Total assets $ 335,125 $ 590,932 $ 926,057
Fund Balances
Assigned $ 210,000 $ - $ 210,000
Unassigned 125,125 590,932 716,057
Total fund balances $ 335,125 $ 590,932 $ 926,057

47



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Combing Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Internally Reported (Budgetary
Basis) Funds Reported as Part of the General Fund for External Reporting Purposes
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Sick Annual Internally
Comp Benefits Stabilization Reported
Fund Fund Total
Revenues
Miscellaneous $ - $ 12,836 $ 12.836
Expenditures
Current
Public safety 126,294 454 126,748
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (126,294) 12,382 (113,912)
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 461,419 578,550 1,039,969
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 335,125 $ 590,932 $ 926,057

48



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — Sick Annual Comp

Benefits Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ - $ (10,000)
Expenditures
Public safety function
Fire
Salaries and wages 300,000 300,000 104,525 195,475
Employee benefits 8,000 8,000 21,769 (13,769)
Total expenditures 308,000 308,000 126,294 181,706
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (298,000) (298,000) (126,294) 171,706
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 466,419 466,419 461,419 (5,000)
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 168,419 $ 168,419 $ 335,125 $ 166,706

49



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — Stabilization Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings $ 8,000 $ 8.000 $ 7,381 $ (619)
Net increase in the fair
value of investments - - 5,455 5,455
Total revenues 8,000 8,000 12,836 4,836
Expenditures
Public safety function
Fire
Services and supplies 500,000 500,000 454 499,546
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (492,000) (492,000) 12,382 504,382
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 580,698 580,698 578,550 (2,148)
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 88,698 $ 88,698 $ 590,932 $ 502,234

50



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — Capital Projects Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 76,294 $ 26,294
Net increase in the fair
value of investments - - 75,408 75,408
Total revenues 50,000 50,000 151,702 101,702
Expenditures
Public safety function
Fire
Services and supplies 624,546 630,756 526,455 104,301
Capital outlay 6,881,163 6,874,953 1,545,336 5,329,617
Total expenditures 7,505,709 7,505,709 2,071,791 5,433,918
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (7,455,709) (7,455,709) (1,920,089) 5,535,620
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
General Fund 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 -
Net Change in Fund Balance (3,455,709) (3,455,709) 2,079,911 5,535,620
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 4,033,674 4,033,674 4,942,100 908,426
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 577,965 $ 577,965 $ 7,022,011 $ 6,444,046

51



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Combining Statement of Net Position — Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2016

Governmental Activities

Workers' Health
Compensation Benefits
Internal Service Internal Service
Fund Fund Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 3,880,203 $ 615,277 $ 4,495,480
Interest receivable 9,467 1,267 10,734
Total assets 3,889,670 616,544 4,506,214
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Due to other governments 64,789 - 64,789
Claims and judgments 533,000 B 533,000
Total liabilities 597,789 - 597,789
Net Position
Restricted $ 3,291,881 $ 616,544 $ 3,908,425

52



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Internal Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Operating Expenses
Services and supplies
Claims
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earnings
Net increase in the fair value of investments
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

Governmental Activities

Workers' Health
Compensation Benefits
Internal Service Internal Service
Fund Fund Total
$ 166,623 $ B 166,623
48,754 6,159 54,913
36,548 4,850 41,398
(38,612) - (38,612)
46,690 11,009 57,699
(119,933) 11,009 (108,924)
3,411,814 605,535 4,017,349
$ 3,291,881 $ 616,544 3,908,425

53



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Internal Service Funds

Year Ended June 30,2016
Governmental Activities
Workers' Health
Compensation Benefits
Internal Service Internal Service
Fund Fund Total
Operating Activities
Cash payments for services and supplies $ (423,834) $ - (423,834)
Noncapital Financing Activities
Interest paid (38,612) - (38,612)
Investing Activities
Investment earnings 87.489 11,385 98,874
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (374,957) 11,385 (363,572)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 4,255,160 603,892 4,859,052
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 3,880,203 $ 615,277 4,495,480
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash from (used for) operating activities
Operating income (loss) §  (166,623) $ - (166,623)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
net cash used for operating activities
Change in
Due to other governments 64,789 = 64,789
Pending claims (322,000) - (322,000)
Total adjustments (257,211) - (257,211)
Net Cash used for Operating Activities $  (423,834) $ - (423,834)

54



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Budget and Actual — Workers® Compensation

Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Operating Expenses
Services and supplies
Claims

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earnings
Net increase in the fair
value of investments
Interest expense

Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses)

Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
1,000,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 166,623 $ 833,377
50,000 50,000 48,754 (1,246)
. - 36,548 36,548
- - (38,612) (38,612)
50,000 50,000 46,690 (3,310)
(950,000) $  (950,000) (119,933) $ 830,067
3,411,814
$ 3,291,881

55



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Schedule of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Workers’ Compensation Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Operating Activities
Cash payments for services
and supplies $  (1,000,000) $ (1,000,000) §  (423,834) $ 576,166
Noncapital Financing Activities
Interest paid - - (38,612) (38,612)
Investing Activities
Investment earnings 50,000 50,000 87,489 37,489
Net Change in Cash and
Cash Equivalents (950,000) (950,000) (374,957) 575,043
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of Year 4,441,940 4,441,940 4,255,160 (186,780)
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
End of Year $ 3,491,940 $ 3,491,940 § 3,880,203 ) 388,263
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash from (used for) operating activities
Operating income (loss) $  (166,623)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
net cash used for operating activities
Change in
Due to other governments 64,789
Pending claims (322,000)
Total adjustments (257,211)
Net Cash Provided used for Operating Activities $ (423,834

56



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Budget and Actual — Health Benefits Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Operating Expenses
Services and supplies

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment earnings
Net increase in the fair
value of investments

Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses)

Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 611,030 $ 611,030 - $ 611,030
- - 6,159 6,159
; - 4,850 4,850
- - 11,009 11,009
$ (611,030) $ (611,030) 11,009 $ 622,039
605,535
616,544

57



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Schedule of Cash Flows — Budget and Actual — Health Benefits Fund
Year Ended June 30,2016

Operating Activities
Cash payments for services
and supplies

Investing Activities
Investment earnings (loss)

Net Change in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents,
End of Year

2016 Budgeted Amounts 2016

Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget

$ (611,030) $ (611,030) $ - $ 611,030
- - 11,385 11,385

(611,030) (611,030) 11,385 622,415
611,030 611,030 603,892 (7,138)

$ - $ - $ 615,277 $ 615,277

58



EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Board of Fire Commissioners
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Reno, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District (the District) (a component unit of Washoe County, Nevada) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 11, 2016.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting '

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statcments, we considcred the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a
material weakness. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses as finding 2016-A, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

WWW, .com 59
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 Reno, NV 89511-2094 | T775.6892.9100 F775.689.9299 EQE



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s Response to Finding

The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the cntity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

&MZ&?‘Q

Reno, Nevada
November 11, 2016

60



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016-A  Financial Statement Preparation
Significant Deficiency

Criteria:

Condition:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Management’s Response:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective system
of internal control over financial reporting. One of the key components of an
effective system of internal control over financial reporting is having the
capability to prepare full disclosure financial statements.

The District does not have an internal control system designed to provide for the
preparation of the financial statements and related financial statement disclosures
being audited. In conjunction with the completion of our audit, we were
requested to draft the financial statements and accompanying notes to those
financial statements. Although this circumstance is not unusual for a government
the size of Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, the preparation of financial
statements as part of the audit engagement may result in financial statements and
related information included in financial statement disclosures not being
available for management purposes as timely as it would be if prepared by
District personnel. In addition, the absence of controls over the preparation of the
financial statements and related financial statement disclosures increases the
possibility that a misstatement of the financial statements could occur and not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, in a timely manner by the District’s internal
control. It is the responsibility of management and those charged with
governance to determine whether to accept the risk associated with this condition
because of cost or other considerations.

Internally prepared financial information may not be accurate and full disclosure
financial statements may not be available as timely as they would be if prepared
by District personnel.

Due to a shortage of personnel with the ability to prepare full disclosure financial
statements, the District has chosen to contract with Eide Bailly LLP to prepare its
financial statements and related financial statement disclosures.

We recommend Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s finance staff obtain
training in the preparation of governmental financial statements and related
financial statement disclosures in order to gain the knowledge needed to prepare
the financial statements and related financial statement disclosures internally.

Management concurs with the Auditor's Findings. With the consolidation of the
Sierra Fire Protection District into the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
in FY 16-17, the audit work load in the future will be significantly reduced
giving staff more time to prepare the financial statements and related financial
statement disclosures. In addition, the District is currently in the process of hiring
a new Fiscal Officer which will give the District the opportunity to hire the staff
necessary to prepare the financial statements.

61



This page intentionally left blank.



EjdeBailiy.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Auditor’s Comments

To the Honorable Board of Fire Commissioners
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
Reno, Nevada

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (the
District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements,
nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
failed to comply with the specific requirements of Nevada Revised Statues cited below. However, our
audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had
we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the
District’s noncompliance with the requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes cited below, insofar as they
related to accounting matters.

Current Year Statute Compliance
The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration during the

year.

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance
Transfers were monitored during the current year to avoid potential violations with NRS.

Prior Year Recommendations
The prior year finding 2015-A was corrected. The prior year finding 2015-B is repeated as finding 2016-
A in the current year.

Current Year Recommendations
Our current year recommendations are included in the Schedule of Findings and Responses.

&Mur"

Reno, Nevada
November 11, 2016

www.eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste, 150 | Reno, NV 895112094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE

62





